
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Manager Steve Rapson


Consideration of a resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion of Certain Fayette County Ad Valorem Taxes in the 


computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City of Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor.


On November 7, 2013, the Fayetteville City Council passed Resolution R-8-13, and in doing so the Council adopted the Fayetteville 


Highway Corridor Redevelopment Plan and established Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor (the "Highway Corridor 


TAD") within the incorporated portion of Fayetteville, Fayette County, Georgia in the areas of the City.   


 


This resolution, if adopted by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, consents to the inclusion of Fayette County ad valorem taxes 


on real property, specifically the M&O millage, but not including the EMS and 911 millages, within the City of Fayetteville Tax Allocation 


District Number One- Highway Corridor, in the computation of the tax allocation for the TAD, effective as of December 31, 2013.  The City 


of Fayetteville will create a TAD Advisory Committee which which will consider and review each potential TAD project, prior to their 


consideration for adoption by the City Council.  The TAD Advisory Committee will include the County Administrator of Fayette County, or 


that official's designee as a voting member of said Committee.  


 


The Resolution is effective upon adoption.


Approval of a resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion of Certain Fayette County Ad Valorem Taxes in the 


computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City of Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


This is an example of cooperation between the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County in an effort to provide incentive for business to 


come to Fayetteville, providing additional jobs and opportunities to the citizens.


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







DRAFT 


11/01/2013 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 


FAYETTE COUNTY AD VALOREM TAXES IN THE COMPUTATION 


OF THE TAX ALLOCATION INCREMENT FOR THE CITY OF 


FAYETTEVILLE TAX ALLOCATION DISTRICT NUMBER ONE — 


HIGHWAY CORRIDOR; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Fayetteville (the “City”), by Resolution   R-8-


13 adopted on November 7, 2013, (the “City Resolution”), adopted the Fayetteville Highway 


Corridor  Redevelopment Plan (the “Redevelopment Plan”) and established Tax Allocation 


District Number One — Highway Corridor (the “Highway Corridor TAD”) within the 


incorporated portion of Fayetteville, Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) in the area of the 


City (the “Redevelopment Area”) as shown in the City Resolution, a copy of which is 


attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 


 WHEREAS, the City Resolution provides that the Fayetteville Highway Corridor 


TAD was created pursuant to the City’s redevelopment powers as authorized by the 


Redevelopment Powers Law,  O.C.G.A. §36-44-1, et seq., and became effective on December 


31, 2013; and 


WHEREAS, copies of the City Resolution and the Redevelopment Plan for the TAD 


have been furnished to the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County; and 


WHEREAS, the City made certain findings in the Redevelopment Plan with respect 


to the Redevelopment Area, including the following: 


(a) the Redevelopment Area has not been subject to growth and 


development through private enterprise and would not reasonably be 


anticipated to be developed without the approval of the Redevelopment 


Plan; 


(b) the improvement of the Redevelopment Area is likely to enhance the 


value of a substantial portion of the real property in the district; and 


WHEREAS, the City Resolution provides that the City intends to authorize the 


issuance of tax allocation bonds and other obligations as may be necessary to implement 


provisions of the Redevelopment Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Powers Law provides that county ad valorem 


property taxes derived from a municipal tax allocation district may be included in the 


computation of tax allocation increments of the tax allocation district if the governing body of 


the county consents to such inclusion by resolution. 







NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of 


Fayette County, Georgia, and it is hereby resolved by the authority of the same as follows:  


Section 1. The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, as permitted by the 


Redevelopment Powers Law, does hereby consent to inclusion of Fayette County ad valorem 


taxes on real property, specifically the M&O millage, but not including the EMS and 911 


millages, within the City of Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One – Highway 


Corridor, in the computation of the tax allocation increment for the TAD, effective as of 


December 31, 2013. 


Section 2        The City of Fayetteville agrees to create a TAD Advisory Committee, 


which body will consider and review each potential TAD project, prior to their consideration 


for adoption by the City Council. Members of the TAD Advisory Committee shall include the 


County Administrator of Fayette County, or that official’s designee as a voting member of 


such Committee, with the same powers and voting rights as all other members of said 


Committee.  Prior to the financing of any Project for construction or rehabilitation in whole or 


in part from Tax Allocation Increment or with TAD financing, such Projects will be reviewed 


by the TAD Advisory Committee for feasibility and consistency with the objectives of the 


Redevelopment Plan.  Information to be reviewed by the TAD Advisory Committee for each 


proposed Project may include, but not be limited to experience of the Development Team, 


proposed capital improvements to the site, disclosure of non-TAD financing commitments 


and resources of the Project, and projected Tax Allocation Increment expected to be generated 


by such Project. The TAD Advisory Committee will make recommendations to the City 


regarding each project requesting TAD funding and the City will consider the 


recommendations of the TAD Advisory Committee in its approval of projects for TAD 


funding. 


 Section 3.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.   


All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby rescinded to 


the extent of such conflict. 


 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners this 


________ day of _____________, 2013. 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners: 


 


 


By _______________________________ 


 Chairman Steve Brown 


          


 


 


 


ATTEST: [SEAL] 


 


 


______________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk  







_____________________________ 


Commissioner Charles Oddo 


  


_____________________________ 


Commissioner David Barlow 


 


____________________________ 


Commissioner Randy Ognio 


 


____________________________ 


Commissioner Allen McCarty 


 


 







EXHIBIT A 


CITY RESOLUTION AND REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 


 


 







 


ATLANTA:4973231.1  


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


 GEORGIA  


 


RESOLUTION CREATING THE HIGHWAY CORRIDOR TAX 


ALLOCATION DISTRICT NUMBER ONE; DESIGNATING THE 


BOUNDARIES OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA AND TAX 


ALLOCATION DISTRICT; ESTABLISHING THE TAX ALLOCATION 


INCREMENT BASE FOR THE TAX ALLOCATION DISTRICT; 


ADOPTING A REDEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE AREA; 


ESTABLISHING THE INTENT TO ISSUE AND SELL TAX 


ALLOCATION BONDS OR OBTAIN OTHER FINANCING 


NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 


AREA; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL TO ACT 


AS THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO IMPLEMENT THE 


REDEVELOPMENT PLAN PURSUANT TO THE REDEVELOPMENT 


POWERS LAW; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


 


R-8-13 
 


 


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Powers Law (O.C.G.A. §36-44-1, et seq.) provides 


for the exercise of redevelopment powers, the adoption of redevelopment plans, and the 


creation of tax allocation districts by counties and municipalities in the State of Georgia; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to House Bill 495 (April 2011) and approved by a majority of 


the voters in a referendum held on November 6, 2012, the City of Fayetteville (the “City”) is 


authorized to exercise the redevelopment powers as delineated by the Redevelopment Powers 


Law; and 


WHEREAS, the purpose of the Redevelopment Powers Law is to improve economic 


and social conditions within substantially underutilized and economically and socially 


depressed areas that contribute to or cause unemployment, limit the tax resources of counties 


and municipalities while creating a greater demand for governmental services, have a 


deleterious effect upon the public health, safety, morals and welfare, and impair or arrest the 


sound growth of the community; and 


WHEREAS, the City recognizes that new public infrastructure, wastewater treatment 


facilities, traffic improvements, streets, streetscapes and sidewalks, commercial spaces and 


retail are needed to revitalize this defined area and create an attractive historic town center 


and commercial corridor in Fayetteville; and  


WHEREAS, it is in the public interest of the City that the Redevelopment Powers 


Law be exercised to improve the economic and social conditions of the areas identified within 


the City in order to remedy the detrimental effects of its current depressed and underutilized 


state; and 







 


 2 ATLANTA:4973231.1  


WHEREAS, the Fayetteville Highway Corridor TAD can provide incentives and 


funding to catalyze redevelopment of the area; and 


WHEREAS, adoption of the Fayetteville Highway Corridor Redevelopment Plan and 


creation of Tax Allocation District Number One—Highway Corridor is necessary to 


redevelop and revitalize this defined area through a public/private partnership; and 


WHEREAS, the Council has held a public hearing on the Redevelopment Plan and 


TAD Resolution as required by the Redevelopment Powers Law; and 


WHEREAS, the Council now desires to adopt the Redevelopment Plan and create 


Tax Allocation District Number One: Highway Corridor. 


NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 


Fayetteville: 


 


1. The City of Fayetteville declares that the defined Redevelopment Area has not 


been subject to growth and development through private enterprise and would not reasonably 


be anticipated to be developed without the approval of the Highway Corridor Redevelopment 


Plan (hereinafter “Redevelopment Plan”). 


2. The City of Fayetteville declares that improvement of the Highway Corridor, 


as defined in the Redevelopment Plan, is likely to enhance the value of a substantial portion of 


other real property in the district. 


3. The City of Fayetteville adopts the Redevelopment Plan, attached as Exhibit 


“A”, as the Redevelopment Plan for the aforesaid area pursuant to the Redevelopment Powers 


Law, and incorporates the same by reference as though it were set forth in its entirety herein. 


4. City of Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One—Highway Corridor 


is hereby created effective December 31, 2013, pursuant to the Redevelopment Plan and the 


Redevelopment Powers Law, and shall continue in existence until all redevelopment costs, 


including financing costs and debt service on tax allocation bonds, are paid in full. 


5. The City of Fayetteville hereby establishes the estimated Tax Allocation 


Increment Base of $25,943,882. The real property taxes to be used for computing tax 


allocation increments are specified in the attached Redevelopment Plan and incorporated 


herein by reference. 


6. The City Council will act as the redevelopment agency and will exercise 


redevelopment powers as necessary to implement the provisions of the Redevelopment Plan.  


7. The City of Fayetteville agrees to create a TAD Advisory Committee, which 


body will consider and review each potential TAD project, prior to their consideration for 


adoption by the City Council. Members of the TAD Advisory Committee shall include the 


City Manager of the City of Fayetteville, or that official’s designee, the Superintendent of 


Fayette County Schools, or that official’s designee, and the County Administrator of Fayette 


County, or that official’s designee each as a voting member of such Committee, with the same 







 


 3 ATLANTA:4973231.1  


powers and voting rights as all other members of said Committee.  Prior to the financing of 


any Project for construction or rehabilitation in whole or in part from Tax Allocation 


Increment or with TAD financing, such Projects will be reviewed by the TAD Advisory 


Committee for feasibility and consistency with the objectives of the Redevelopment Plan.  


Information to be reviewed by the TAD Advisory Committee for each proposed Project may 


include, but not be limited to experience of the Development Team, proposed capital 


improvements to the site, disclosure of non-TAD financing commitments and resources of the 


Project, and projected Tax Allocation Increment expected to be generated by such Project. 


The TAD Advisory Committee will make recommendations to the City regarding each project 


requesting TAD funding and the City will consider the recommendations of the TAD 


Advisory Committee in its approval of projects for TAD funding. 


8. The City Council intends to authorize issuance of tax allocation bonds and/or 


obtain commercial bank financing and to use the proceeds of any tax allocation bonds or 


financing for any and all eligible uses including, without limitation, costs of issuance of the 


tax allocation bonds or commercial financing; capital costs of public and private 


improvements, including but not limited to streets, bridges, utilities, storm and sanitary 


sewers, sidewalks and streetscapes, parking facilities and parks; professional services costs, 


including fees for architectural, engineering and environmental services; real estate assembly; 


and such other uses deemed necessary pursuant to provisions of the Redevelopment Plan and 


the Redevelopment Powers Law, as it has been and may hereafter be amended. 


9. The property proposed to be pledged for payment or as security for payment of 


tax allocation bonds will include the positive ad valorem tax allocation increments from ad 


valorem taxes levied on all taxable real property within the boundaries of City of Fayetteville 


Tax Allocation District Number One—Highway Corridor. 


Adopted and approved by the City Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia this 7
th


  


day of November, 2013. 


 


      


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 


(SEAL) 


 


By:___________________________ 


 Gregory C. Clifton, Mayor 


Attest: 


 


 


_________________________________ 


Anne Barksdale, Clerk 


Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia 


 





		Administration- TAD Resolution Agenda Request File

		Administration- TAD Resolution Backup

		Administration- TAD Resolution- Backup 1

		Administration- TAD Resolution- Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Approval of a request from the Chanticleer Subdivision Home Owners' Association seeking authorization for the use of motorized 


cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Chapter 10., Article III., Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners approval is required to designate streets for motorized cart travel per Chapter 10., Article 


III., Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.  These are internal subdivision streets that are not subject to the same evaluation as 


external streets that exist outside subdivisions.  From between 1995 to 2008, 23 subdivisions have been approved for motorized cart use 


on internal streets.  The streets in Chanticleer Subdivision include Marion Blvd, Gantt Lane, Chandler Way, Country Squire Drive, 


Knight's Court, Gentry Halt, Waldrop Way, Brasswell Lane, Heatherwood Drive, Martin Court, Canterbury Lane, Wyonia Way and Wynoia 


Court.  All the streets have a posted speed limit of 25 miles per hour. 


 


Once the streets have been approved, staff will update the list of streets authorized for motorized cart use and will forward a copy to 


Captain Brian Eubanks of the Sheriff's Department for enforcement and to Phil Mallon in the Public Works Department for the posting of 


proper signage.


Approval of a request from the Chanticleer Subdivision Home Owners' Association seeking authorization for the use of motorized 


cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Chapter 10., Article III., Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013

















		Planning and Zoning- Chanticl...quest Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Chanticleer Cart Use Request Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, 


International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of 


crops.  This item was tabled by Commissioner McCarty at the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.


The International Property Maintenance Code 2006 was adopted by Fayette County on December 3, 2008.  There was a blank space to 


be filled in with an allowable height for grass / weeds.  That space was left blank. 


 


In order to prosecute this section of the code, a height limit was first proposed to the Board of Commissioners at 12-inches.  The Board of 


Commissioners approved Commissioner McCarty's motion to table this request at the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners 


meeting. 


 


Staff has amended its position for an allowable height for grass and weeds at 14- inches.  An exception to this ordinance is that any 


property being used for the purpose of agricultural purposes, including but not limited to the raising and/or feeding of grazing animals and 


the cutting of grass for hay.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, 


International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of 


crops.  


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


  


ORDINANCE 2013-14 


   
  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA TO AMEND CHAPTER 5 BUILDINGS, GENERAL FEES ARTICLE 1, 


ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO 


PROVIDE FOR SERVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION BY DATE; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW: 


 


  Whereas, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


   


  Whereas, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


adoption of construction codes as required by the State of Georgia, 


 


  Whereas, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia 


shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY 


THEREOF: 


 
Section 1. Part of the Fayette County Code, is hereby amended by adding “14 inches”  as the allowable 


height, adding the exclusion of crops, and exception to the rule found  in Chapter 3 of the International 


Property Maintenance Code, code section number 302.4 “weeds” of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 


County, Georgia to read as follows: 


 


Sec5-4 Adoption of Construction Codes ; sub section J ; International Property Maintenance Code 


(ICC) 


 


302.4 Weeds.  


 


All premises and exterior property shall be maintained free from weeds or plant growth in excess of 


14 inches (exception listed below). All noxious weeds shall be prohibited. Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, 


annual plants and vegetation, other than trees or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include, crops, 


cultivated flowers and gardens. 


 


Upon failure of the owner or agent having charge of a property to cut and destroy weeds after service of a notice 


of violation, they shall be subject to prosecution in accordance with Section 106.3 and as prescribed by the 


authority having jurisdiction. Upon failure to comply with the notice of violation, any duly authorized employee 


of the jurisdiction or contractor hired by the jurisdiction shall be authorized to enter upon the property in 


violation and cut and destroy the weeds growing thereon, and the costs of such removal shall be paid by the 


owner or agent responsible for the property. 


 


Exception: Any property being used for the purpose of agricultural purposes, 


including but not limited to the raising and/or feeding of grazing animals and the 


cutting of grass for hay.  
 


 


Section 2 That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein. 







 


Section 3  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 


paragraphs, sentences clauses, and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed 


by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional.  


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 


severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. It is hereby 


further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed 


by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this article is mutually dependent upon any 


other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this article shall, for any reason 


whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 


decree of any court of competent jurisdiction. It is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners 


that such invalidity, unconstitutionality, or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, 


not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 


sentences, paragraphs, or unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 


clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, 


all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 


constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.  


 


Section 4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 


hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 


herein.  


 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 10
TH


 DAY OF OCTOBER 2013 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


 


      ______________________________ 


      Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


______________________ 


Floyd Jones, Clerk 


   


   





		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2013-14 Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2013-14 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-20 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding  


Article III. Definitions, Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-45. Standards For Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, and Article VI. 


District Use Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District. 


On September 26, 2013, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners gave staff direction to move ahead with amendments to Section 


5-45. Standards For Telecommunications Antennas and Towers regarding the relocation of a telecommunications tower on the same lot, 


and Article VI. District Use Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial 


District regarding changing the Building Height from 35 feet to 50 feet.  


 


Approval of Ordinance 2013-20 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding  Article III. 


Definitions, Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-45. Standards For Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, and Article VI. District 


Use Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District. 


Not Applicable.


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, November 14, 2013







 
 


1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 20 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article III, Definitions, the definition of 


Tower, Planned in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


Tower, Planned.  Any tower that is in the public hearing procedure, site application 


review process, site plan revision process, or has been approved, but not yet constructed 


(see Article V.) 


 
Section 2. . The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by inserting the following in Article V, General Provisions, 


Sec. 5-46.  Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers., H. and existing H. thru M. 


shall now be I. thru N.     


 


H. Revision to a Site Plan for the Relocation of an Existing Tower.  The relocation of an 


existing tower shall require the following: 


1. The relocation site shall be within the same lot as the existing tower. 


2. Submittal of a site plan that meets the specifications of G. Site Plan Requirements 


above. 


3. Letters from all carriers on the existing tower agreeing to the relocation of the tower. 


4. The existing tower being replaced shall be removed from the site within 120 calendar 


days from the date of the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the relocated 


tower. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


2 


Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article VI, Sec 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial 


District, D. Dimensional Requirements, 7. Height limit: in its entirety and replacing it with the 


following: 


 


7. Height limit: 50 feet 


 


Section 4. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article VI, Sec 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and 


Heavy Industrial District, D. Dimensional Requirements, 7. Height limit: in its entirety and 


replacing it with the following: 


 


7. Height limit: 50 feet 


 


Section 5. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 6.   a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 7.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 8.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


3 


 So ordained this 14th day of November, 2013, by the  


 


 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


4 


3. Consideration of Amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 


20. Zoning Ordinance, Regarding Article III. Definitions, Article V. General 


Provisions, Sec. 5-45. Standards For Telecommunications Antennas And Towers, 


and Article VI. District Use Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District 


and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District. 
 


Pete Frisina said the amendment to Sec. 5-45 for cell towers involves a procedure for a cell tower to be 


relocated on the same property through the revision of the site plan and allows two (2) towers to be on the 


same property for a period of time.  He added that the time period to remove the original tower 120 days.   


 


Doug Powell asked why they would do this. 


 


Pete Frisina explained Camp Southern Ground as an example is considering moving an existing cell 


tower to a different location on the property as the current location is in the middle of the camp and it 


would be best to have the procedure in place because someone else may want to  do the something in the 


future on another site.  He added that our County Attorney advised that this procedure should be 


addressed in our ordinance as it will allow two (2) towers in close proximity to each other which is not 


allowed in the ordinance.  


 


Jim Graw asked when the 120 day period starts. 


 


Pete Frisina said when the CO is issued for the replacement tower. 


 


Pete Frisina said the other amendment for this is to the definition of a Planned Tower which now includes 


a process for a revision to a site plan. 


 


Pete Frisina said the other amendments are to M-1 and M-2 and it is to raise the building height limit 


from 35 feet to 50 feet. 


 


Al Gilbert asked if there was any one from the public that would like to comment.  No one spoke on these 


subjects. 


 


Tim Thoms asked if Camp Southern Ground would have to come back through the public hearing process 


to move the tower since they are a PUD. 


 


Pete Frisina said they would not because the tower was in place prior to the rezoning to PUD and the 


applicants mentioned at the rezoning that they may relocate the tower.  He said we only want to go back 


through the public hearing process for significant changes. 


 


Doug Powell made a motion to approve the amendments. Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. 


The motion passed unanimously.   


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


5 


 


Article III Definitions 


 


Tower, Planned.  Any tower that is in the public hearing procedure, site application review 


process, site plan revision process, or has been approved, but not yet constructed (see Article V.) 


(Amended 05/24/12) 
 


 


Article V General Provisions Sec. 5-45 


 
H. Revision to a Site Plan for the Relocation of an Existing Tower.  The relocation of an existing 


tower shall require the following: 


1. The relocation site shall be within the same lot as the existing tower. 


2. Submittal of a site plan that meets the specifications of G. Site Plan Requirements 


above. 


3. Letters from all carriers on the existing tower agreeing to the relocation of the tower. 


4. The existing tower being replaced shall be removed from the site within 120 calendar 


days from the date of the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the relocated 


tower. 


 


 


Sec. 6-22.  M-1 Light Industrial District. 


D. Dimensional Requirements.  The minimum dimensional requirements in the M-1 Zoning 


District shall be as follows: 


 


7. Height limit: 35 50 feet 


 


Sec. 6-23.  M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District. 


D. Dimensional Requirements.  The minimum dimensional requirements in the M-2 Zoning District 


shall be as follows: 


7. Height limit: 35 50  feet 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2013-20 Agenda Request File

		Planning & Zoning Ord 2013-20 Tower Relocation&M-1 & M-2 Building Height Zoning Ord Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs


Approval of Ordinance 2013-18 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article I in General, to include sections 12-7 


Disorderly Conduct; 12-8 Loitering and Prowling; and 12-9 Public Drunkenness; and to provide for enforcement of said regulations by law 


enforcement personnel.


Input for these amendments comes from the Sheriff's Office and their stated need to expand the local scope of protection, safety and 


security of the community through County Code.   


 


In reaction to numerous automobile break-ins in parking lots, the Loitering and Prowling provision includes a defined procedure for law 


enforcement personnel to deter such crimes.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-18 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article I in General, to include sections 12-7 


Disorderly Conduct; 12-8 Loitering and Prowling; and 12-9 Public Drunkenness; and to provide for enforcement of said regulations by law 


enforcement personnel.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-18 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ENACT PROVISIONS PROVIDING FOR THE OFFENSES 


OF DISORDERLY CONDUCT, LOITERING OR PROWLING, AND PUBLIC 


DRUNKENNESS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 


ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC 


HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO OFFENSE AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS (CHAPTER 12), BE 


AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By creating new Sections 12-7, 12-8, and 12-9 in Article I of Chapter 12, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


Sec. 12-7. Disorderly conduct. 


(a) No person shall remain, loiter or prowl in a place, at a time, or in a manner not usual for 


law abiding individuals under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and reasonable alarm or 


immediate concern for the safety of persons or property in the vicinity, after having been ordered 


to clear such place by a law enforcement officer. 







 
 2 


(b) No person shall act in a violent or tumultuous manner toward another whereby any other 


person is placed in fear of safety of his life, limb or health, or whereby the property of another is 


placed in danger of being destroyed or damaged. 


(c) No person shall endanger the lawful pursuits of another by acts of violence, angry threats 


or abusive conduct. 


(d) No person shall cause, provoke or engage in any fight, brawl or riotous conduct so as to 


endanger the life, limb, health or property of another. 


(e) No person shall assemble or congregate with another or others for the purpose of causing, 


provoking or engaging in any fight or brawl.  


(f) No person shall jostle, roughly crowd or push any person in any public place. 


(g)   No person shall use "fighting words," or loud and boisterous language, directed towards 


another so as to create a breach of the peace potentially dangerous to the safety of persons or 


property. 


(h) No person shall congregate with another or others in or on any public way or place so as 


to halt or impede the flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic after having been directed to clear 


such public way or place when ordered by a law enforcement officer. 


(i) No person shall disrupt the actions which tend to incite a breach of the peace, the 


activities of any house of worship, hospital, home for the elderly, school, court, county 


commission chambers. 


(j) No person shall interfere, by acts of physical obstruction, another’s pursuit of a lawful 


occupation or activity. 


(k) No person shall throw bottles, paper, cans, glass, sticks, missiles, or any other debris on 


public property or private property without the consent of the owner or occupant thereof. 







 
 3 


 


Sec. 12-8. Loitering or prowling. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to remain, loiter or prowl in a place, at a time, or in a 


manner not usual for law-abiding individuals under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and 


reasonable alarm or immediate concern for the safety of persons or property in the vicinity. 


(b) The circumstances which may be considered in determining whether alarm is warranted 


include, but are not limited to, the following: 


(1) The fact that the person takes flight upon the appearance of a law enforcement 


officer, refuses to identify himself/herself, or manifestly endeavors to conceal 


himself/herself or any object. 


(2) The person is observed flipping or pulling door handles on vehicles and/or doors 


of vehicles or property that does not belong to him/her and said person does not 


have written permission allowing said activity with regard to said vehicle or 


property. 


(c) Unless flight by the person or other circumstances make it impractical, a law enforcement 


officer shall, prior to any arrest for an offense under this section, afford the person an opportunity 


to dispel any alarm or immediate concern which would otherwise be warranted by requested the 


person to identify himself/herself and explain his/her presence and conduct. 


(d) No person shall be convicted of an offense under this section if the law enforcement 


officer failed to comply with the foregoing procedure or if it appears at trial that the explanation 


given by the person was true and would have dispelled the alarm or immediate concern. 


 


 







 
 4 


Sec. 12-9. Public drunkenness. 


 


 It shall be unlawful for a person to be and appear in an intoxicated condition in any 


public place or within the curtilage of any private residence not his/her own other than by 


invitation of the owner or lawful occupant, which condition is made manifest by boisterousness, 


by indecent condition or act, or by vulgar, profane, loud, or unbecoming language. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 







 
 5 


SO ENACTED this 14th day of November, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2013-18 Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2013-18 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Discussion of a Future Land Use Plan study for the State Route 74 South Corridor.


Ms. Linda Sandwich discussed with staff a proposal to rezone a lot containing an existing single family residence to Office-Institutional for 


conversion into a medical office on SR 74 South. 


 


Staff informed her that the Future Land Use Plan does designate the area for Office uses but is designated for Rural-Residential (1 Unit/2 


to 3 Acres).   


 


Staff is seeking direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether a corridor study of State Route 74 South should be performed for 


designation of non-residential land uses on the Future Land Use Plan.


Direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether a corridor study of SR 74 South should be performed for designation of non-


residential land uses on the Future Land Use Plan.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013

























		Planning and Zoning- SR 74 So...Study Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- SR 74 South Land Use Plan Study Backup

		Letter of Intent 09302013

		SR 74 aerial

		SR 74 LUP

		SR 74 zoning








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of a transfer of the 2013 and 2014 licenses for the sale of alcoholic beverages (package sales of beer and wine) from Amir 


Shahzad, Eight Era, Inc. DBA BP Kenwood, located at 1866 North State Route 85, Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214, to John Carter, Park 


Avenue C-Store II, LLC., DBA Kenwood BP. 


Amir Shahzad was previously approved for a 2013 license and a renewed 2014 license for the sale of alcohol beverage (package sales 


of beer and wine).   


 


The ownership of the store is being transferred to John Carter, Park Avenue C-Store II, LLC., who is seeking an approval of the transfer 


of licenses.  Mr. Carter has met all of the requirements for licensing.


Approval of a transfer of the 2013 and 2014 licenses for the sale of alcoholic beverages (package sales of beer and wine) from Amir 


Shahzad, Eight Era, Inc. DBA BP Kenwood, located at 1866 North State Route 85, Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214, to John Carter, Park 


Avenue C-Store II, LLC., DBA Kenwood BP. 


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, November 14, 2013









		Code Enforcement-Kenwood BP Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement-Kenwood BP Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's request to design and construct a parking lot at the Georgia Department of Driver Services facility, with said 


parking lot including seventy-three new parking spaces, a driveway, and upgrades to the stormwater detention pond, for an estimated 


materials cost of $50,938.00, utilizing Project Contingency Funds.


Staff has met with representatives of the Georgia Department of Driver Services facility and considered various options to alleviate safety 


related concerns at this location. The existing location does not have adequate parking and residents continue to park along the 


intersection. This short-term solution will increase the existing parking capacity on-site resulting in improved parking for our residents.  


 


Please find attached a copy of the cost estimate and layout for your review and consideration. 


 


1. Redesign and reconstruction of detention pond; 


2. Addition of second entrance; 


3. Addition of three parking areas with 73 new spaces (currently there are 49); 


4. Landscaping per County Code, wheel stops, signs and striping. 


Approval of staff's request to design and construct a parking lot at the Georgia Department of Driver Services facility, with said parking lot 


to include approximately seventy parking spaces, a driveway, and upgrades to the stormwater detention pond, for an estimated materials 


cost of $50,938.00, utilizing Project Contingency Funds.


Funding of $50,938 from project contingency is required for this project.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013











Department of Driver Services - Parking Lot Expansion Concept


The DDS facility located at corner of McDonough and McElroy Roads has insufficient parking


and office space.  Currently, customers are paring along shoulder of McElroy and standing in the 


parking lot as they wait.  Much of the existing parking area is used for driver field tests.


Current parking spaces:  49


Cost estimate assumes in-house design and construction.


 


Description Quantity Units Unit Cost


Price


Professional Services


Surveying for Design, Layout and As-Built 1 ea $7,000 $7,000


Subtotal $7,000


Stormwater Mgt - Pond Rebuild


Erosion Control / Pollution Prevention 1 ls $2,500 $2,500


Replace pipe into detention basin (18" dia RCP) 70 lf $12 $842


Headwall for 18" pipe 1 ea $240 $240


Outlet control (48" dia RCP) with lid 1 ea $422 $422


Outlet control pipe (24" dia RCP) 100 lf $18 $1,788


Headwall for 24" pipe 1 ea $294 $294


Rip Rap 18 TN $80 $1,440


Subtotal $7,526


Parking Lot 1   (8 spaces)


GAB 60 tons $8 $480


Asphalt (2" of 9.5 mm Type 2) 19.6 tons $56 $1,095


Striping, wheel stops, signs, etc. 1 ls $158 $158


Landscape Islands 2 ea $250 $500


Subtotal $2,233


Parking Lot 2   (33 spaces)


GAB 480 tons $8 $3,840


Asphalt (2" of 9.5 mm Type 2) 156.4 tons $56 $8,761


Striping, wheel stops, signs, etc. 1 ls $1,260 $1,260


Landscape Islands 4 ea $250 $1,000


Subtotal $14,861


Parking Lot 3   (32 spaces plus 2nd driveway)


GAB 474 tons $8 $3,792


Asphalt (2" of 9.5 mm Type 2) 154.5 tons $56 $8,651


Page 1 of 2







Department of Driver Services - Parking Lot Expansion Concept


Striping, wheel stops, signs, etc. 1 ls $1,244 $1,244


Landscape Islands 4 ea $250 $1,000


Subtotal $14,688


Contingency (10%) $4,631


Total Project Cost $50,938


Page 2 of 2







1


Floyd Jones


From: Philip Mallon


Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2013 5:17 PM


To: Agenda Group


Subject: Public Works - request for DDS parking lot


Public Works added agenda item for parking lot funding and construction at DDS facility.  Money is needed from 


contingencies.  It has Rapson’s support. 


 


Phil Mallon, P.E. 


Fayette County Director of Public Works 


115 McDonough Road 


Fayetteville, GA  30215 


770-320-6010 


pmallon@fayettecountyga.gov 


 





		Public Works- DDS Facility Agenda Request File

		Public Works- DDS Facility Backup 2

		Public Works- DDS Facility Backup

		DMV Site PlanRev9-19-2013-Model

		Cost Estimate for parking



		Public Works- DDS Facility Backup-1








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of the 7th Annual Chair-ity Benefit for The Children's Village at Christian City.


Community leaders and elected officials, including Congressman Lynn Westmoreland, are hosting the 7th Annual Children's Chair-ity 


Event.  This event benefits abandoned, abused, and homeless children who live in the cottages at The Children's Village at Christian 


City.  This event is organized by hard-working volunteers, and local artists paint unique chairs in keeping with the theme for the auction. 


 


In 2012, with the help of over 100 sponsors, volunteers, and local artists, over $54,000 was raised for the children last Christmas. 


 


This event also provides great exposure to the sponsors who enjoy coverage in local newspapers, and has been featured in many 


publications, magazines, and a five-minutes TV commercial post event.  The networking will be at its best, and the food, music, and 


cheer will be top notch.  There will be a silent auction and a "Santa's Workshop". 


 


The Chair-ity Benefit will be held on December 5, 2013 from 5:30 p.m. until 7:30 p.m. at Dolce Atlanta in Peachtree City. 


 


More information about The Children's Village can be accessed at www.christiancity.org.


Recognition of the 7th Annual Chair-ity Benefit for The Children's Village at Christian City.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, November 14, 2013













		Commissioners- Chair-ity Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Chair-ity Backup

		Commissioners- Chair-ity Backup-a

		Commissioners- Chair-ity Backup-1












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staffs' request to replace an existing postage machine with a Neopost IN-750 postage machine at the total first-year cost of 


$11,265.00, and to transfer $9,180.00 from Project Contingency funds to pay the unbudgeted balance of the cost.


Departments located at 140 Stonewall Avenue (except the Tax Commissioner, Public Health, and County Extension) use one postage 


machine to determine the correct amount of postage, affix it to letters and packages, and seal them.  The current machine was 


purchased in 2005.  The technology is now outdated, and company representatives have said that they can no longer obtain repair parts. 


 


The county can acquire a replacement machine by leasing it or purchasing it.  Given the length of time we tend to use a machine, the 


purchase method would provide the greatest value over the life of the asset.  As can be seen by the attached backup, the purchase 


would cost more in the first year.  Each year after that, the purchase would incur lower costs.  The break-even point would be reached in 


the fourth year, with the purchase method realizing additional savings each year thereafter. 


 


It is recommended that the postage machine be purchased, rather than leased.


Approval of staffs' request to replace an existing postage machine with a Neopost IN-750 postage machine at the total first-year cost of 


$11,265.00, and to transfer $9,180.00 from Project Contingency funds to pay the unbudgeted balance of the cost.


A portion of the funds are available in the Purchasing Department's fiscal year 2014 budget: $1,083.00 in 10010517 522231 and 


$1,002.00 in 10010517 522321.  Project Contingency Funds in the amount of $9,180.00 are available for this request.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013







 
 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  October 28, 2013 
 
Subject: Postage Machine 
 
The county departments at Stonewall Avenue use a postage machine to weigh mail and affix 
the correct amount of postage.  In Fiscal Year 2013, it was used to process mailings with 
$21,821 of postage.  The majority was used by Elections (46%), Finance for occupation tax 
certificates (34%), and Purchasing (6%).  Eleven other departments used the remainder. 
 
The county purchased a Neopost Hasler WJ180 unit in 2005, which is still in use.  Neopost 
representatives have advised us that they can no longer supply repair parts due to the age of 
the equipment, and that the software is outdated. 
 
The current-generation equivalent machine is a Neopost IN-750.  The cost would depend on 
whether we lease or purchase.  A cost comparison of the two options is as follows: 


      
     4 Year  


  
   Year 1              Year 2        Year 3           Year 4       Total  


48 Month Lease: 
     


 
Equipment           2,688               3,852               3,852               3,852              14,244  


 
Software              720                  720                  720                  720                2,880  


 
Meter Rental      Included         Included         Included         Included          Included 


 
Maintenance  Included   Included   Included   Included   Included  


 
    Total          3,408               4,572               4,572               4,572              17,124  


       
       Purchase: 


     
 


Equipment              8,463                      -                        -                        -                 8,463  


 
Software              2,286                      -                        -                        -                 2,286  


 
Meter Rental*                 516                  516                  516                  516               2,064  


 
Maintenance      Included              1,083               1,083               1,083               3,249  


 
    Total           11,265               1,599               1,599               1,599             16,062  


 
*The vendor rents the postage meter, regardless of whether customers lease or purchase the 
rest of the machine. 







 
As can be seen, the long-term best value for the county would be to purchase the machine.  
The break-even point would be reached in the fourth year of ownership, and savings would 
increase each year that the machine remained in service after that. 
 
A portion of the funds to pay for the purchase are available in the Purchasing Department’s 
Fiscal Year 2014 budget.  With the Board’s approval, the remaining funds would come from 
the Project Contingency fund, as follows: 
 
   $1,083 Budget for maintenance agreement for existing machine 
     1,002 Remaining budget balance for meter rental 
     9,180 Transfer from Project Contingency funds 
 $11,265 Total first-year cost to purchase 
 
 
The Neopost IN-750 is available under state contract, and has undergone their competitive 
procurement process.  If the Board approves this transaction, staff will transfer funds to the 
appropriate budget and procure the new postage machine. 





		Purchasing- Postage Machine Agenda Request File

		Purchasing- Postage Machine Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Charles Oddo


Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee to appoint Mr. Allen Phinney to the Fayette County Development 


Authority, and for said appointment to begin immediately and to expire on April 9, 2014.


The Fayette County Development Authority is a volunteer body comprised of nine members.  Five members are appointed to at-large 


positions, for four-year terms, by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  Two members are appointed by the City of Fayetteville 


and the Town of Tyrone, respectively.  The remaining two positions are filled by the chairpersons of the Peachtree City Development 


Authority and the Peachtree City Airport Authority. 


 


Fayette County's Development Authority sets policy, determines annual goals, and serves as a liaison between the business community 


and local government.  This board utilizes individual talents and experiences in building consensus in an effort to facilitate an improved 


business climate, diversified economic base, and a steady economy that results in benefits for every citizen, business owner, and 


government in Fayette County. 


 


The Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners Charles Oddo and Allen McCarty, has interviewed applicants who submitted 


applications earlier this year and is nominating Mr. Allen Phinney to serve on the Board of Commissioners until April 9, 2013.


Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee to appoint Mr. Allen Phinney to the Fayette County Development Authority, 


and for said appointment to begin immediately and to expire on April 9, 2014.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


No


Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013

























		Commissioners- Development Authority Agenda Request File

		Allen Phinney










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Steven Rapson


Consideration of staff's recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill (Engineer of Record for the Water System) as outlined under 


Task #1 (Eng. Svc 90-Day-NTE) in the amount of $312,300 and Task #2 (Attached-Regulatory/CIP-Hrly Rate) in the amount of $26,250, 


and for the County Manager to execute said contract and related documents. 


Staff has approved the Engineer of Record (Request for Proposals #888) contract for specialized professional engineering services 


related to the treatment, storage, and distribution of water. As you are aware, this allows the Water System to respond to the needs of 


water customers or the requirements of regulators more rapidly than would be possible otherwise. 


 


The County Manager and Attorney finalized the CH2M Hill rate structure prior to the contract. This contract uses that revised rate 


structure to price the task orders reflected in this request. Task #1 targets resolving EPD Notice of Violations and the remaining Sanitary 


Survey Deficiencies and is already in progress. The remaining Tasks, fast-track operational enhancements, and provides the Water 


System the foundational elements to implement best practices across the organization. These tasks will generate future requests for 


capital improvement, infrastructure development and water treatment plant optimization projects.  


 


This approach collaborates discussions with EPD and begins the process of the Fayette County Water System regaining the public trust 


and confidence. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill (Engineer of Record for the Water System) as outlined under Task 


Task #1 (Eng 90-Day-NTE) in the amount of $312,300 and Task #2 (Regulatory/CIP-Hrly Rate) in the amount of $26,250, to establish a 


budget for this purpose utilizing the Water System Fund 2012 Bond Construction, and to authorize the County Manager to execute said 


contract and related documents.


Funds are available in the Water System Fund 2012 Bond Construction proceeds for this purpose. 505-111128  


Yes Thursday, September 26, 2013


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Water System Fund 2012 Bond Construction proceeds from the tabled MIEX 2012 Bond Project will be utilized for this project. These 


proceeds will also fund future capital improvement, infrastructure development and water treatment plant optimization projects.


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







 


 


Fayette County Water System 
 


Task Order Number 1: 
Engineering Services for Overall Water System 90 Day Support  


Background 
CH2M HILL was recently selected to serve as the Engineer of Record for Fayette County 
Water System (the County). In this official capacity, the County has requested that CH2M 
HILL immediately engage to support the County in developing an overall approach and 
roadmap for improving the County’s water system.  The purpose of this Task Order is to 
provide engineering support to address areas of deficiency and improvements noted as part 
of the Georgia Environmental Protection Division (GA EPD) sanitary survey the Crosstown 
Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and South Fayette WTP, as well as perform other related 
assessments and evaluations for the overall improvement of the County’s water system. The 
engineering support provided by CH2M HILL in the delivery of this Task Order will 
ultimately result in the development of a plan to successfully improve the County’s water 
system in an environmentally and fiscally responsible manner.  


SCOPE OF SERVICES 


The scope of services includes: 


Task 1- Sanitary Survey Responses 


Task 2 – Crosstown WTP Assessment 


Task 3 – South Fayette WTP Assessment 


Task 4 – WTP Operational Evaluation 


Task 5 – System-Wide SCADA Evaluation 


The work to be performed, assumptions, and anticipated deliverables for each of these five 
tasks will now be discussed in further detail to demonstrate CH2M HILL’s understanding of 
the work.  


Task 1 - Sanitary Survey Responses 


CH2M HILL will support the County in preparing the required responses to the sanitary 
survey performed by GA EPD in June 2013. The County is already in the process of 
aggressively addressing many of the deficiencies on their own; however, several items were 
designated by the County as needing to be addressed by the water system’s engineer of 
record. The following tasks will be performed by CH2M HILL to address the sanitary 
survey deficiencies assigned to the engineer of record.  







 


 2


Task 1.1 – Comprehensive Filter Evaluation 


One of the major deficiencies noted during GA EPD’s sanitary survey of the Crosstown 
WTP was the current condition of the granular media filters. Due to the observed condition 
of the filters, GA EPD has required the County to have a professional engineer perform a 
comprehensive assessment of the filters. CH2M HILL will perform the overall filter 
evaluation, which will include the following aspects: 


• Coring of the eight filters at the Crosstown WTP to assess the media depth and integrity 
by conducting analyses at CH2M HILL’s Applied Science Laboratory 


• Observation of the backwashing for each filter to determine bed expansion, to assess the 
operation of the surface sweeps, and assess the functionality of the controls on the filter 
consoles 


• Assessment of the filter valves during normal filter operation to identify leaking valves 
for replacement 


• Conduct a survey of the washwater troughs to assess whether the troughs are level and 
at the appropriate elevation 


• Inspection of the filter underdrains 


Upon the completion of these aspects of the comprehensive filter evaluation, CH2M HILL 
will prepare a technical memorandum (TM) summarizing the methodology and results of 
the evaluation. Also included in the TM will be recommendations for improvements to each 
filter with an estimated cost for each recommended improvement.  


Task 1.2 – Constant Head Device Assessment for Combined Filter Turbidimeter 


GA EPD noted during the sanitary survey that both the Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs 
need a constant head device installed prior to the combined filter turbidimeter. To address 
this deficiency, CH2M HILL will review the existing piping to the combined filter 
turbidimeter to determine the most appropriate means to install a constant head device. 
CH2M HILL will develop an estimated cost for the recommended approach to address this 
deficiency and document the recommendation to the County via e-mail. The installation of 
the constant head device, following the recommendation from CH2M HILL, will then be 
completed by the maintenance staff at each plant.   


Task 1.3 – Chlorine Dioxide System Evaluation 


The location of the chlorine dioxide generation system at the Crosstown WTP was noted as 
a deficiency during the recent sanitary survey. GA EPD would prefer that the generation 
system be located in an isolated, dedicated facility at the plant. In addition, the chlorine 
dioxide system at the South Fayette WTP was noted as not functioning properly and needs 
to be repaired or replaced.  


CH2M HILL will evaluate the chlorine dioxide generation systems at each plant and 
identify potential alternative locations to provide an isolated, dedicated facility. CH2M 
HILL will also assess the potential replacement of the existing chlorine dioxide generation 
systems with new systems to address on-going operations and maintenance issues given the 
current condition of the existing systems. A TM will be prepared to document the 







 


 3


recommendations for the relocation and potential replacement of the chlorine dioxide 
generation system at each plant. The TM will also include equipment costs for the upgrade 
of the existing systems, as well as the cost for potential replacement.  


Task 1.4 – Sedimentation Basin Weir Elevation Assessment 


GA EPD observed that the weirs in Sedimentation Basin #1 at the Crosstown WTP may not 
be level and thus, noted this as a deficiency on the recent sanitary survey. To confirm the 
elevation for the weirs, CH2M HILL will obtain elevation data through a survey of the weirs 
in Sedimentation Basin #1 at the Crosstown WTP. The survey data will then be compared to 
the elevations indicated on the record drawings for the plant. A short TM will be prepared 
to document the procedure to determine whether the weirs were level and present the 
results from the surveying effort. Should the results of the survey indicate the weirs in 
Sedimentation Basin #1 are not level, a recommendation for addressing this issue will also 
be presented in the TM.  


Task 1.5 – Crosstown WTP Clearwell Structural Assessment 


The existing 4 million gallon clearwell at the Crosstown WTP was noted as having minor 
structural deficiencies during the sanitary survey. Specifically, GA EPD noted that the grout 
around the tank base and the cornice of the tank needed to be repaired. Given that the 4 
million gallon clearwell is a prestressed concrete tank, these minor deficiencies require the 
evaluation of a structural engineer to coordinate the required repairs with the tank 
manufacturer. CH2M HILL will conduct a site visit to evaluate the condition of the existing 
clearwell structure and will coordinate the proposed improvements with the tank 
manufacturer. As part of the coordination with the tank manufacturer, CH2M HILL will 
obtain a quote for the improvements and make a formal recommendation to the County in 
an e-mail format.  


Task 1.6 – Solids Lagoon Decant Relocation Assessment 


The recent taste and odor episode at the Crosstown WTP resulted in GA EPD having 
concerns over the recycle practices at the plant given the decant from the solids lagoons 
immediately discharge at the raw water pump station. As part of Task 2 in this Task Order, 
CH2M HILL will evaluate long-term disposal options for the solids and lagoon decant to 
determine if the County should proceed with other disposal options, such as obtaining an 
NPDES permit or conveying the decant water to the sanitary sewer system. However, as a 
temporary solution to address this deficiency on the sanitary survey, CH2M HILL will 
identify an immediate option to temporarily relocate the decant point for the lagoons to a 
different location in the raw water reservoir.  


To identify the recommended option for this temporary solution, CH2M HILL will review 
the record drawings for the Crosstown WTP and visit the site to review field conditions. 
CH2M HILL will then prepare a TM with a recommendation for the County implement 
while longer term options are assessed as part of Task 2.  


Task 1.7 – Raw Water Pump Station Capacity Testing 


GA EPD noted as a deficiency in the recent sanitary survey that the County needed to 
determine the firm pumping capacity of each of its raw water pump stations. To determine 
the firm pumping capacity, CH2M HILL will perform pump testing at each raw water 







 


 4


pump station. It is assumed that the pump testing will be conducted over a one (1) day 
period at each raw water pump station. A total of six (6) raw water pump stations will be 
evaluated for firm pumping capacity – the Flint River, Lake Kedron, Lake Horton, Lake 
Peachtree, Lake McIntosh, and Starr’s Mill raw water pump stations. Given that there is not 
a flow meter at the raw water pump stations, CH2M HILL will utilize either an ultrasonic 
meters or insertion magnetic flow meter to obtain the required flow data for the pump 
testing. The pump testing at each intake location will be coordinated with the County to not 
inhibit or impact overall water production operations.  


Following the completion of the pump testing at each pump station, CH2M HILL will 
analyze the flow data obtained to assess the overall capacity of each pump in order to 
determine the firm pumping capacity. A TM will be prepared to summarize the pump 
testing performed, to present the results from the testing, and to provide the firm capacity of 
each pump station.  


Task 1.8 – Raw Water Pump Station Flowmeter Location Assessment 


GA EPD noted during the sanitary survey that the County needs to install raw water 
flowmeters at the Lake Peachtree, Flint River, Lake Horton, and Starr’s Mill intakes. To 
address this deficiency, CH2M HILL will first review existing site conditions and 
anticipated flow ranges for the pump stations located at each intake. The review of this 
information will allow for the evaluation of flowmeter alternatives, such as full body venturi 
meters and magnetic flowmeters. CH2M HILL will prepare a TM to document the site 
conditions at the four intake locations requiring raw water flowmeters and recommend an 
option for installation. Capital costs will be developed for each flowmeter alternative 
evaluated to provide additional justification and support for the ultimate recommendation 
at each intake site.  


Task 1.9 – Lake Peachtree Walkway Assessment 


As a deficiency on the sanitary survey, GA EPD noted that railing along the walkway at the 
Lake Peachtree intake was required to improve overall safety at the site for the County’s 
operations staff. Given that walkway railing is a structural design element, CH2M HILL’s 
structural engineer will conduct a site visit to the Lake Peachtree intake to review the field 
conditions associated with the walkway to determine the most cost effective and 
appropriate means to provide a railing for the walkway. In addition, CH2M HILL will 
review the record drawings to confirm the structural design of the walkway to facilitate the 
finalizing of an approach to providing railing at the Lake Peachtree intake. A TM will be 
prepared to document the recommendations for the walkway railing. An order of 
magnitude cost estimate to incorporate the recommended railing at the intake site will also 
be provided as part of the TM.  


Task 1.10 – Crabapple and Ellis Road Pump Station Capacity Testing 


GA EPD noted as a deficiency in the recent sanitary survey that the County needed to 
determine the firm pumping capacity of two distribution system booster pump stations. To 
determine the firm pumping capacity, CH2M HILL will perform pump testing at these two 
stations. It is assumed that the pump testing will be conducted over a one (1) day period at 
each booster pump station. A total of two (2) booster pump stations will be evaluated for 
firm pumping capacity – the Crabapple and Ellis Road booster pump stations.  Given that 







 


 5


there is not a flow meter at the booster pump stations, CH2M HILL will utilize either an 
ultrasonic meters or insertion magnetic flow meter to obtain the required flow data for the 
pump testing. The pump testing at each intake location will be coordinated with the County 
to not inhibit or impact overall water distribution operations.  


Following the completion of the pump testing at each booster pump station, CH2M HILL 
will analyze the flow data obtained to assess the overall capacity of each pump in order to 
determine the firm pumping capacity. A TM will be prepared to summarize the pump 
testing performed, to present the results from the testing, and to provide the firm capacity of 
each pump station.  


Task 1.11 – South Fayette WTP Clearwell Roof Assessment 


During the sanitary survey, GA EPD noted the growth of plants in the expansion joints in 
the clearwell at the South Fayette WTP. This resulted in a deficiency requiring the County to 
perform an evaluation of the clearwell roof to ensure structural integrity. To assess the 
integrity of the roof structure, CH2M HILL will review the record drawings for the design 
of the structure and conduct a site visit to physically evaluate the clearwell roof to 
determine the state of the expansion joints.  


Following the site visit to the South Fayette WTP by CH2M HILL’s structural engineer, a 
TM will be prepared to document the recommendations to address any structural integrity 
issues associated with the clearwell roof. This report will outline the evaluation performed, 
the professional opinion of the structural integrity of the clearwell roof, and 
recommendations for improvements to address any structural integrity issues noted during 
the evaluation. The TM will also include an order of magnitude cost to improve the 
structural integrity of the clearwell roof.  


Task 1.12 – South Fayette WTP Flocculator Evaluation 


The design and operation of the flocculation process at the South Fayette WTP was noted as 
a deficiency during the sanitary survey. To evaluate the flocculation process and provide 
documentation to GA EPD that the process is operated within acceptable ranges, CH2M 
HILL will perform design calculations to determine the detention time and the mixing 
intensity (measured in velocity gradient) during each stage of flocculation. The design 
calculations to confirm the current operating conditions for the flocculation process at the 
South Fayette WTP will be based the record drawings for the treatment plant, as well as a 
site visit to review the flocculator operation. Upon completion of the design calculations to 
confirm the operational parameters for the flocculation process, CH2M HILL will compare 
the calculated values to industry standards for flocculation to indicate whether or not the 
operation of the flocculation process falls within acceptable ranges.  


A TM will be prepared to outline the evaluation and calculations performed for the 
flocculation process and how the calculated values compare to acceptable industry standard 
ranges. Should the evaluation indicate the current operation of the flocculators at the South 
Fayette WTP does not fall within acceptable operational ranges, CH2M HILL will include in 
the TM recommendations for the County to implement to modify the flocculator operation 
to ensure that the operational parameters remain in acceptable ranges.   







 


 6


Task 1.13 – South Fayette WTP Sedimentation Basin Velocity Assessment 


CH2M HILL will evaluate the flow-through velocity for the sedimentation basins at the 
South Fayette WTP to address the deficiency noted by GA EPD as part of the sanitary 
survey. The assessment of the velocity through the sedimentation basins will be based upon 
the record drawings for the South Fayette WTP and will be calculated at various plant flow 
rates to determine if the velocities at each flow rate are within acceptable ranges for 
sedimentation basins design. CH2M HILL will prepare a TM documenting the assessment 
of the sedimentation basin velocity and how the calculated velocity compares to accepted 
industry standards. The TM will also note any potential modifications to the sedimentation 
basins to adjust the flow-through velocity should the assessment indicate that the current 
velocity is not within the acceptable range.  


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 1: 


• Each individual TM developed to provide an engineering response to a deficiency noted 
in the sanitary survey will be compiled into one overall document that the County will 
then submit to GA EPD to demonstrate its response to those deficiencies.  


• It is assumed that CH2M HILL will only inspect the underdrain for Filter #7 as this filter 
is currently out of service. Should the County elect to rehabilitate the remaining filters 
following the comprehensive filter evaluation, CH2M HILL will inspect the underdrains 
for the other seven (7) filters as part of that rehabilitation effort under a separate 
authorization.  


• Only the weir elevations in Sedimentation Basin #1 will be surveyed as part of Task 1.6 
to confirm the elevation and level. The survey of the weirs in the other sedimentation 
basins will be considered as an Additional Service.  


• The design of the flowmeter and associated improvements required for the construction 
of the flowmeters at each intake location are not included in Task 1.10.  


• No power monitoring will be performed during the pump testing associated with Tasks 
1.9 and 1.12. Only flow monitoring will be performed to determine the firm capacity of 
each raw water pump station. Should the County request power monitoring to facilitate 
future operational strategies related to energy consumption, this feature can be added as 
an Additional Service.  


Deliverables 


The following deliverables are included in Task 1: 


• Individual technical memorandum or engineering documentation for each deficiency 


• Overall document with each individual technical memorandum or documentation to 
demonstrate how each deficiency was addressed 


Task 2 - Crosstown WTP Assessment 


CH2M HILL will perform an assessment of the Crosstown WTP to identify potential 
modifications to improve the overall treatment process. The focus of this assessment will be 







 


 7


on the existing infrastructure and treatment processes at the plant. CH2M HILL will 
conduct a two day (16 hour) site visit to the plant to evaluate the existing infrastructure and 
overall operation of the plant. During the site visits, CH2M HILL will review the condition 
of the existing infrastructure and mechanical equipment, review how chemicals are applied, 
and discuss the overall operation of the various unit processes with the plant operational 
staff.  Following the site visits, CH2M HILL will review the existing record drawings from 
the Crosstown WTP to assess the design criteria for each unit process to ensure that the 
processes are appropriately sized to treat the permitted plant flow rate.  


Per the concurrence letter received from the Georgia Environmental Protection Division for 
the corrective action plan for the Crosstown WTP, CH2M  HILL will perform a high level 
review of disposal options for the decant and sludge from the two lagoons at the Crosstown 
WTP. A total of three options will be considered, including an NPDES discharge permit for 
the decant, modifications to the existing recycle practice at the plant, and conveying the 
lagoon contents to the Peachtree City Water and Sewer Authority sanitary sewer system. 
For the NPDES permit option, CH2M HILL will only assess where the nearest discharge 
stream is located and conduct an engineering assessment for how the flow from the lagoons 
would be routed to that location.  


A final report will be prepared summarizing the information collected from the site visit 
and the recommended modifications and improvements to the Crosstown WTP. The final 
report will include an estimated budget for each of the improvements recommended.  
CH2M HILL will submit a draft report to Fayette County for review and will respond to one 
set of comments on the draft report. CH2M HILL will then submit a final report to Fayette 
County.   


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 2: 


• The County will provide CH2M HILL with all record drawings for the Crosstown WTP 
and the associated raw water pumping facilities from each source at the outset of the 
project.  


• No permitting support for a potential NPDES permit for the Crosstown WTP is included 
in this scope of services.  


• The assessment of the Crosstown WTP for future expansion is not included in this scope 
of services.  


• The limits of the evaluation of the Crosstown WTP include the raw water pumping 
stations through the high service pump station. No assessment of the distribution 
system is included in this scope of services.  


• The yield for the available raw water sources for the Crosstown WTP to sustain current 
and future demand scenarios is not included in this scope of services. Similarly, no flow 
projections for the County’s water system are included in this scope of services.  


• An architectural and structural assessment of the condition of the existing facilities will 
not be performed. The evaluation of the buildings and structures for structural and 
architectural issues will be considered an Additional Service.   







 


 8


• Subsurface explorations to assess the geotechnical conditions at the site are not included 
in this scope of service and will be considered Additional Services.  


• The assessment of the SCADA system for the Crosstown WTP will be included in the 
overall system-wide SCADA assessment associated with Task 5 and is not included with 
this task.  


• The design of the recommended improvements is not included in this scope of services. 


• A detailed hydraulic model to identify constraints and ‘bottlenecks’ through the plant 
will not be performed. Should the operations staff note hydraulic constraints through 
the plant under various flow scenarios, CH2M HILL will include those in the overall 
assessment report with conceptual level options to address the identified hydraulic 
constraints.  


Deliverables 


The following deliverable is included in Task 2: 


• Technical memorandum summarizing WTP assessment with recommended 
improvements and their associated order of magnitude cost estimates. 


Task 3 – South Fayette WTP Assessment 


CH2M HILL will perform an assessment of the South Fayette WTP to identify potential 
modifications to improve the overall treatment process. The focus of this assessment will be 
on the existing infrastructure and treatment processes at the plant. CH2M HILL will 
conduct a two day (16 hour) site visit to the plant to evaluate the existing infrastructure and 
overall operation of the plant. During the site visits, CH2M HILL will review the condition 
of the existing infrastructure and mechanical equipment, review how chemicals are applied, 
and discuss the overall operation of the various unit processes with the plant operational 
staff.  Following the site visits, CH2M HILL will review the existing record drawings from 
the South Fayette WTP to assess the design criteria for each unit process to ensure that the 
processes are appropriately sized to treat the permitted plant flow rate.  


A final report will be prepared summarizing the information collected from the site visit 
and the recommended modifications and improvements to the South Fayette WTP. The final 
report will include an estimated budget for each of the improvements recommended.  
CH2M HILL will submit a draft report to the County for review and will respond to one set 
of comments on the draft report. CH2M HILL will then submit a final report to Fayette 
County.   


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 3: 


• The County will provide CH2M HILL with all record drawings for the South Fayette 
WTP and the associated raw water pumping facilities from each source at the outset of 
the project.  


• The assessment of the South Fayette WTP for future expansion is not included in this 
scope of services.  







 


 9


• The limits of the evaluation of the South Fayette WTP include the raw water pumping 
stations through the high service pump station. No assessment of the distribution 
system is included in this scope of services.  


• The yield for the available raw water sources for the South Fayette WTP to sustain 
current and future demand scenarios is not included in this scope of services. Similarly, 
no flow projections for the County’s water system are included in this scope of services.  


• An architectural and structural assessment of the condition of the existing facilities will 
not be performed. The evaluation of the buildings and structures for structural and 
architectural issues will be considered an Additional Service.   


• Subsurface explorations to assess the geotechnical conditions at the site are not included 
in this scope of service and will be considered Additional Services.  


• The assessment of the SCADA system for the South Fayette WTP will be included in the 
overall system-wide SCADA assessment associated with Task 5 and is not included with 
this task.  


• The design of the recommended improvements is not included in this scope of services. 


• A detailed hydraulic model to identify constraints and ‘bottlenecks’ through the plant 
will not be performed. Should the operations staff note hydraulic constraints through 
the plant under various flow scenarios, CH2M HILL will include those in the overall 
assessment report with conceptual level options to address the identified hydraulic 
constraints.  


Deliverables 


The following deliverable is included in Task 3: 


• Technical memorandum summarizing WTP assessment with recommended 
improvements and their associated order of magnitude cost estimates. 


Task 4 – WTP Operational Evaluation 


As part of this task, CH2M HILL staff will conduct a third party review of the operations 
and maintenance practices at the Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs. To perform this 
review, CH2M HILL will provide an operational specialist who will conduct site visits to the 
Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs to commence the review. During the site visits, CH2M 
HILL’s operational specialist will meet with the managers for each plant to review the 
overall system operation, to discuss process control methodology, and to understand the 
treatment objectives and challenges for each plant.  Prior to conducting the site visits, CH2M 
HILL will review historical operational data and existing standard operating procedures 
(SOPs) from each treatment plant to develop a basic understanding of the treatment regime, 
chemical dosages, and typical water quality. A key element of the operations review will 
focus on the how the County selects which raw water sources are utilized for treatment and 
how the County balances production needs between the Crosstown and South Fayette 
WTPs.  







 


 10 


During the site visits, CH2M HILL will also interview a cross-section of the operations and 
maintenance staff at each plant to review functions, duties, and assignments to assist in the 
development of an overall staffing plan for the two plants. The staffing plan developed for 
each plant will consider both operations and maintenance staff while considering the 
County’s shift schedule as a basis for the staffing plan.   


CH2M HILL will also develop updated SOPs for the Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs. A 
total of ten (10) SOPs per plant are included in the proposed level of effort for this task. 
CH2M HILL will utilize the existing SOPs as a basis for updating the County’s existing 
operating procedures. CH2M HILL will submit the updated SOPs to the respective plant 
managers for review and comments before finalizing the SOPs as a final deliverable to the 
County.  


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 4: 


• CH2M HILL will develop ten (10) SOPs per plant for a total of twenty (20) SOPs for the 
County.  


• CH2M HILL will provide one (1) operational specialist as part of this effort to review the 
operation and develop the staffing plan, SOPs, and other operational recommendations. 


Deliverables 


The following deliverables are included in Task 4: 


• SOPs for the Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs 


• Overall staffing plan for the operations and maintenance at the Crosstown and South 
Fayette WTPs 


• Site visit report detailing recommendations for operational improvements and 
modifications to enhance the County’s overall water plant operation 


Task 5 – System-wide SCADA Evaluation 


To identify issues and potential improvements to the County’s overall Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, CH2M HILL will conduct an extensive review of 
the County’s existing SCADA system. CH2M HILL will review the system architecture, 
block diagrams, process and instrumentation diagrams (P&IDs), and associated operations 
and maintenance (O&M) manuals for the instrumentation installed throughout the County’s 
system. Following the review of the existing infrastructure, CH2M HILL will conduct a 
series of site visits to each facility (including both treatment plants and raw water pumping 
facilities), as well as remotely monitored distribution system sites such as the elevated 
storage tanks and booster pump stations, to assess the functionality of the existing 
telemetry. During the site visits, CH2M HILL will coordinate directly with the County’s 
existing SCADA integrator (JK Duren) to discuss particular system aspects and challenges to 
further the understanding of the system architecture. 


A key aspect of CH2M HILL’s evaluation of the County’s overall SCADA system will focus 
on the notice of violation included in the sanitary survey related to the current issues 







 


 11 


associated with the recording and storage of system data in the SCADA system. CH2M 
HILL will evaluate the programming logic and data storage systems included in the existing 
SCADA system to develop recommendation for addressing this notice of violation. 


CH2M HILL will develop a detailed TM documenting the existing issues in the County’s 
SCADA system with recommendations for modifications to the programming logic, 
instrument replacement, and other required improvements. The recommendations 
developed for the County’s SCADA system will focus on enhancing the existing 
components and improving functionality and overall operation of the system. CH2M HILL 
will also develop order of magnitude cost estimates for the recommended SCADA system 
improvements to facilitate the inclusion of SCADA related improvements in the County’s 
overall capital improvement plant.  


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 5: 


• CH2M HILL will not perform any design or system integration tasks as part of this 
effort. The work to be performed will focus on evaluating the existing system and 
developing recommendations for a subsequent capital project to improve the County’s 
SCADA system.  


• The County will provide CH2M HILL with existing system documentation related to the 
system architecture, block diagrams, process and instrumentation diagrams (P&IDs), 
and associated operations and maintenance (O&M) manuals for the instrumentation 
installed in the County’s system.  


• CH2M HILL will provide one (1) instrumentation and controls technical resource during 
the site visit to the County’s facilities.  


Deliverables 


The following deliverable is included in Task 5: 


• Technical memorandum summarizing the evaluation of the County’s SCADA system 
and recommendations for capital improvements to the overall SCADA system 


SCHEDULE 


This Task Order is based upon the schedule as shown in Table 1. 


TABLE 1 


Project schedule 


Task  Start Date Duration 


Task 1 – Sanitary Survey Responses Immediately upon issuance of 
Notice to Proceed 


60 days 


Task 2 – Crosstown WTP Assessment Immediately upon issuance of 
Notice to Proceed 


60 days 


Task 3 – South Fayette WTP Assessment Immediately upon issuance of 60 days 







 


 12 


TABLE 1 


Project schedule 


Task  Start Date Duration 


Notice to Proceed 


Task 4 – WTP Operational Evaluation Immediately upon issuance of 
Notice to Proceed 


60 days 


Task 5 – System-wide SCADA Evaluation Immediately upon issuance of 
Notice to Proceed 


60 days 


COMPENSATION 


Compensation for the work in this task order will be based on a lump sum fee of $312,300 
and paid as a percent of completion per identified task. The cost breakdown per task is 
provided in Table 2.  


TABLE 2 


Cost per Task 


Task  Cost 


Task 1 – Sanitary Survey Responses $123,300 


Task 2 – Crosstown WTP Assessment $36,500 


Task 3 – South Fayette WTP Assessment $35,500 


Task 4 – WTP Operational Evaluation $60,000 


Task 5 – System-wide SCADA Evaluation $57,000 


TOTAL $312,300 


 


Approved by:   


Fayette County  CH2M HILL  


Date:___________________________________  Date:___________________________ 


   


________________________________________  


Steve Rapson 
County Administrator 


 ________________________________  


Stuart Jeffcoat, PhD, PE                                     
Business Vice President 


 







Fayette County Water System 


Task Order Number 2: 


Engineering Services for Water System Regulatory Support and 
CIP Development  


Background 
As part of the delivery of Task Order Number 1: Overall Water System 90 Day Support, CH2M 
HILL will identify a number of improvements and make recommendations to improve the 
overall water treatment infrastructure for the Fayette County Water System (the County). The 
prioritization of the recommended improvements at the County’s water treatment plants will be 
essential in developing a fiscally responsible and defensible capital improvement plan (CIP). 
This CIP will then be utilized in negotiations with the Georgia Environmental Protection 
Division (GA EPD) to obtain occurrence with the recommended corrective actions included in 
the proposed CIP. The engineering support provided by CH2M HILL in the delivery of this 
Task Order will focus on providing regulatory coordination support and working with the 
County to finalize the overall water system CIP.   


SCOPE OF SERVICES 


The scope of services includes: 


Task 1- Regulatory Coordination 


Task 2 – Capital Improvement Plan Development 


The work to be performed, assumptions, and anticipated deliverables for each of these tasks 
will now be discussed in further detail to demonstrate CH2M HILL’s understanding of the 
work.  


Task 1 – Regulatory Coordination 


CH2M HILL will provide the County with technical support in addressing system deficiencies 
and notices of violation included in the recent GA EPD sanitary survey. This technical support 
will include the following: 


• Attendance by one (1) CH2M  HILL employee at meetings with GA EPD to discuss system 
regulatory compliance issues related to the sanitary survey, notices of violation, and any 
potential consent order for the County’s water system 


• Assistance in developing an overall package for submission to GA EPD to document 
progress related to the sanitary survey 


• Assistance in preparation of corrective action plans, technical correspondence with GA EPD, 
and other as needed communications with GA EPD on system progress in addressing 
deficiencies and notices of violation 







• Assistance in the review of correspondence submitted to the County by GA EPD in regards 
to overall system compliance 


• Assistance in reviewing future notices of violation and public notifications 


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 1: 


• The level of effort for the preparation and assistance in any communications with GA EPD 
are included in the appropriate tasks associated with this Task Order.   


Deliverables 


There are no formal deliverables associated with this task.  


Task 2 - Capital Improvement Plan Development 


CH2M HILL will meet with the County to discuss the recommended improvements and the 
associated cost estimates identified through the delivery of Task Order Number 1: Overall Water 
System 90 Day Support. The purpose of this meeting will be to review all of the recommended 
improvements to the treatment processes at both water treatment plants in order to develop a 
prioritized list of improvements for implementation. CH2M HILL will develop a preliminary 
prioritization prior to the meeting based upon its technical expertise and experience, and this 
preliminary prioritization will be used to facilitate the discussion during this meeting.  


It is anticipated that this meeting will held with members from the County’s water system, the 
County’s Administration, and selected staff members from the Crosstown and South Fayette 
WTPs. Based upon the feedback from the meeting attendees from the County, CH2M HILL will 
finalize the prioritized list of improvements to develop an overall CIP for the Crosstown and 
South Fayette WTPs.  


Upon completion of the final CIP for the water treatment plants, CH2M HILL will prepare a 
technical memorandum summarizing the overall CIP with an implementation schedule for each 
recommended improvement. CH2M HILL will then draft a letter to the Georgia Environmental 
Protection Division (GA EPD) with the technical memorandum with the CIP and the WTP 
assessment reports included as attachments in order to receive concurrence with the proposed 
CIP at the Crosstown and South Fayette WTPs.  


Assumptions 


The following assumptions are included in Task 2: 


• The development of the CIP will not include water distribution or raw water storage 
improvements, such as water main extensions, new elevated storage tanks, or water supply 
reservoir dam improvements. The focus on the CIP will be on the Crosstown and South 
Fayette WTPs, as well as those other system issues noted in the sanitary survey.  


• The level of effort associated with any meetings with GA EPD to discuss the proposed 
capital improvement plan will be included as part of Task 1.  


• In addition to those recommendations from Task Order Number 1: Overall Water System 90 
Day Support, the only additional improvements that will be considered during the 
prioritization effort relate to the County’s previous work to investigate MIEX as a treatment 







technology and the laboratory testing conducted by CH2M HILL to evaluate opportunities 
to optimize the County’s treatment processes.  


Deliverables 


The following deliverable is included in Task 2: 


• Technical memorandum summarizing overall CIP for the Crosstown and South Fayette 
WTPs 


• Letter to GA EPD for concurrence with proposed CIP 


SCHEDULE 


This Task Order is based upon the schedule as shown in Table 1. 


TABLE 1 


Project schedule 


Task  Start Date Duration 


Task 1 – Regulatory Coordination Immediately upon issuance of Notice to 
Proceed 


90 days 


Task 2 – Capital Improvement Plan Development Upon completion of Task Order Number 1: 
Overall Water System 90 Day Support. 


30 days 


COMPENSATION 


Compensation for the work in this task order will be based on a time and materials basis and is 
estimated to cost $26,250. The cost breakdown per task is provided in Table 2.  


TABLE 2 


Cost per Task 


Task  Cost 


Task 1 – Regulatory Coordination $15,750 


Task 2 – Capital Improvement Plan Development $10,500 


TOTAL $26,250 


 







 


Approved by:   


Fayette County  CH2M HILL  


Date:___________________________________  Date:___________________________ 


   


________________________________________  


Steve Rapson 


County Administrator 


 ________________________________  


Stuart Jeffcoat, PhD, PE                                     


Business Vice President 


 





		Water System- CH2MHill Agenda Request File

		Water System- CH2MHill Fayette County - Task Order #1Backup

		Water System- CH2MHill Fayette County - Task Order #2 Backup2






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown


Giving Thanks and Donating in Fayette County:  Recognition of a few organizations in Fayette County that provide food and clothing 


donations and thanking them for their service to the community.


There are organizations within Fayette County that offer food and clothing donations to those in the community.  The Board of 


Commissioners would like to recognize these organizations and encourage others to support the efforts of these organizations by giving 


to their food pantry.  Those being recognized include:  Fayette Samaritans, Real Life Center and Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, 


Inc, Midwest Food Bank and Bloom. 


 


See attached document for further information on these charitable organizations. 


Recognition of a few organizations in Fayette County that provide food and clothing donations and thanking them for their service to the 


community.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


No


Yes


Fayette County is proud to recognize and support the many charitable organizations located throughout the County and who contribute 


from their own time and effort to make  a difference in the lives of fellow citizens.


Presentation/RecognitionNovember 14, 2013







Across our county, there are churches, houses of worship, non-profit organizations, neighbors and 


families who have stepped up in these hard economic times to help those who are in need.  Many of 


these organizations serve as unsung heroes to those who need help, and they quietly effect change in all 


of us. 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners would like to take time to thank a few of the charitable 


organizations who have chosen to call Fayette County home. 


Fayette Samaritans is a Christian ministry serving those in need in Fayette County, Georgia.  They 


provide food, clothing, and financial assistance for selected emergency needs.  The Fayette Samaritans 


were charted in 1991, with representatives from eleven Fayette County churches, to assess and 


coordinate the critical needs of area residents who may not qualify for assistance from other agencies.  


They are primarily supported by more than 65 churches on a daily basis.  Additional information about 


Fayette Samaritans can be obtained by going to their website at www.fayettesamaritans.org, or by 


calling Fayette Samaritans at (770) 719-2707. 


The Real Life Center is a non-profit organization designed to help hurting people by giving them a 


means to cope with the financial, emotional, and spiritual hardships of life.  The mission of The Real Life 


Center is to help those facing life’s unanticipated challenges by offering hope, guidance, and 


encouragement.  The Real Life Center was founded in 1998 by Dogwood Church and partners with 


additional churches, community organizations and businesses.   By collaborating with supporting 


community referrals, The Real Life Center helps equip individuals and families to navigate through their 


situation.  Additional information about The Real Life Center can be located at their website at 


www.reallifecenter.org or by calling the organization at (770) 631-9334. 


Grandparents & Kin Raising Children was established in 2006 when Fayette FACTOR parents, 


recognizing the special needs of caregivers who have chosen to parent again, established the 


organization by offering support groups, newsletters, training seminars, and assistance in navigating the 


local and state agencies.  In Georgia, there are 102,000 grandparents who are solely responsible for 


their grandchildren, and there are over 1,000 grandparents in Fayette County who have made this life 


changing decision.  Grandparents who are raising grandchildren and kin are often unprepared for the 


challenges associated with this decision, and they often look for support from the community.  


Grandparents and Kin Raising Children provides support groups, information and resource connections, 


scholarships, an annual summer camp, back-to-school supplies, holiday support and family activities.  On 


May 9, 2013, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners recognized Grandparents & Kin Raising 


Children for their voluntary work.  Additional information can be obtained about Grandparents and Kin 


Raising Children by going to their website at www.fayettefactor.org/gkrc----grandparents-and-kin-


raising-children.html or by calling (770) 716-9711. 


 


 







Midwest Food Bank is a faith-based, non-denominational, nonprofit organization that was started 


in 2003 when the Kieser family began providing food out of a building on their family farm.  With a 


beginning of serving about 10 food pantries in McLean County, Illinois, Midwest Food Bank now serves 


approximately 500 organizations across the Midwest with food provided to over 100,000 people 


monthly.  Midwest Food Back stepped in to help with the Hurricane Katrina disaster, supplying food and 


supplies to the residents of Hattiesburg, Mississippi.  Throughout the years, Midwest Food Bank has 


continued to steadily grow, distributing over $1 million in food each month.  Midwest Food Bank is a 


spiritually directed community organization consisting of hundreds of volunteers, donors, and corporate 


partners, all operating to serve those in need.  The Georgia Division of Midwest Food Bank, which is 


located in Peachtree City, helped in the recent disaster left behind by the F5 Tornado in May 2013.  


Additional information can be located at www.midwestfoodbank.org or by calling (770) 486-1103. 


 


Bloom is a private, non-profit organization that was founded in 1986 by Fayette County citizens 


recognizing the need for children to have safe refuge from abuse and neglect.  Through its history, 


Bloom has worked in a relationship with Georgia Baptist Children’s Homes to provide the clinical 


services and staff for children.  A second facility opened in 1998, and in 2005 the locations were 


consolidated into one home, the Friday-Johnson Home located in Brooks, Georgia.  Bloom has 


responded to the rising number of displaced children under the age of six in need of care, and it further 


expanded its services in 2007.  Bloom is licenses to recruit, train and support a network of family foster 


care homes serving children of all ages.  Bloom’s mission is to provide safe shelter and physical, 


educational, and emotional support to children who have been victims of abuse, neglect, or other tragic 


circumstances, in order to strengthen them for the next phase of life.  Their programs are based on the 


conviction that each child is an individual with the right to the kind of care that meets his or her needs 


regardless of sex, race, creed, national origin, or social circumstances.  Bloom works to preserve and 


strengthen a child’s relationship with family members when possible, and holds that each youth has a 


right to stability, security, continuity, and a plan for permanence.  Additional information may be located 


at www.bloomouryouth.org or by calling (770) 461-7020. 


 


(All information provided in this report was obtained from the various websites previously cited.) 





		Commissioners- Giving Thanks ...ating Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Giving Thanks and Donating Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Fayette County Public Safety's Agreement with the Georgia Department of Public Safety and the Georgia Department of 


Transportation regarding the Open Roads Policy.


The goal of the Open Roads Policy is "whenever a roadway or travel lane is closed or partially blocked by a traffic incident, Georgia Law 


Enforcement, Transportation and Local Public Safety agencies shall re-open the roadway as soon as possible IN AN URGENT 


MANNER.  Safety of the public and responders is the highest priority and must be preserved." 


 


"This policy establishes a suggested benchmark for all Georgia traffic incident response agencies to adopt."  The Open Roads Policy 


outlines the responsibilities of the Department of Public Safety, Georgia Department of Transportation and other State, County and Local 


Agencies or Political Subdivisions.


Recognition of Fayette County Public Safety's Agreement with the Georgia Department of Public Safety and the Georgia Department of 


Transportation regarding the Open Roads Policy.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Sheriff Barry Babb and Chief David Scarbrough have signed the Open Road Policy, in commitment to the responsibilities outlined within 


the policy.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, November 14, 2013







State of Georgia 
  


““OOPPEENN  RROOAADDSS  PPOOLLIICCYY””  
(Typical Agreement) 


 
QQuuiicckk  CClleeaarraannccee  ffoorr  SSaaffeettyy  aanndd  MMoobbiilliittyy  


 
 


This agreement by and between the Police Department, Fire Department, Local 
Department of Transportation, State Department of Transportation and Medical 
Examiner establishes a policy for personnel to expedite the removal of vehicles, cargo 
and debris from roadways within the local jurisdictions and to restore, in an urgent 
manner, the safe and orderly flow of traffic, following a motor vehicle crash or other 
incident on the roadways within the jurisdiction. 
 
Whereas: 
 
Public safety is the highest priority and must be maintained especially when injuries or 
hazardous materials are involved. Quality of life is dependent upon the free movement 
of people, vehicles and commerce. Departments share the responsibility for achieving 
and maintaining the degree of order necessary to make this free movement possible. 
Agencies have the responsibility to do whatever is reasonable to reduce the risk of 
responders, secondary crashes and delays associated with incidents, crashes, roadway 
maintenance, construction and enforcement activities. 
 
The following operating standards are based on the philosophy that the roadway system 
will not be closed or restricted any longer than is absolutely necessary. 
 
Be It Resolved: 
 
Roadways will be cleared of damaged vehicles, spilled cargo and debris as soon as it is 
practical and safe to do so. It is understood that damage to vehicles or cargo may occur 
as a result of clearing the roadway, on an urgent basis. While reasonable attempts to 
avoid such damage shall be taken, the highest priority is restoring traffic to normal pre-
incident conditions. Incident caused congestion has an enormous cost to society. 
 
Police Department’s Responsibility: 
 
Police Departments, who respond to the scene of traffic incidents, will make clearing the 
travel portion of the roadway, a high priority. When an investigation is required, it will be 
conducted in as expedient a manner as possible, considering the severity of the 
collision or incident. Non-critical portion of the investigation may be delayed until lighter 
traffic conditions allow completion of those tasks. Police personnel will close only those 
lanes absolutely necessary to safely conduct the investigation. Police personnel will 
coordinate with the Department of Transportation representatives to set up appropriate 


 1







traffic control, establish alternate routes and expedite the safe movement of traffic at the 
scene and to restore the roadway to normal conditions as soon as possible. 
 
Whenever practical, damaged vehicles will be removed to accident investigation sites or 
other safe areas for completion of investigations to reduce the delays associated with 
motorists slowing to “look”. Once the vehicles involved have been safely moved out of 
the travel lanes, or when in a safe area and not a part of traffic control, Police personnel 
will turn off their emergency equipment (blue lights) when safe to do so, again, to  
minimize motorists slowing to “look” reaction. Tow and recovery vehicles will be 
requested and dispatched as soon as it is evident they will be needed to clear the 
roadways. Police personnel will only utilize towing and recovery operators which are 
certified through a professional certifying association (i.e. wreckmaster, etc.) after 
meeting competency levels and that the equipment is of appropriate size, capacity and 
designed to meet the association’s standards. (A complete resource list of heavy and 
specialized equipment available to the Police Department should be provided by the 
Wrecker Company). 
 
The Police Department will not unnecessarily cause any delay in reopening all or part of 
a roadway, to allow a company or individual, to dispatch its own equipment to off load 
cargo or recover a vehicle or load that is impacting traffic during peak traffic hours or 
creating an immediate hazard to the public. 
 
Department of Transportation Responsibilities: 
 
When requested by an emergency service agency, the State and/or Local DOT will 
respond and deploy resources to major traffic incidents 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 
depending on location and severity of the incident. Both State and Local DOT will 
develop and implement response procedures to meet the goal of providing initial traffic 
control within 30 minutes of notification during the assigned working hours and 60 
minutes after normal working hours. 
 
State and/or Local DOT in coordination with the Police Department will upgrade traffic 
controls, determine detour routes and discuss clearance strategies. When requested 
State and/or Local DOT will provide temporary traffic controls to ensure a safe work 
zone for all responders and the motoring public. 
 
State DOT, in cooperation with other responding emergency service agencies, will 
determine and deploy the necessary heavy equipment and manpower (public and/or 
private) to reopen the roadway, if there is a delay in clearing the travel lanes or if it is 
apparent that the task is beyond the capabilities of the wrecker service on the scene. 
 
In the case of cargo or spilled loads (non-hazardous), the DOT and Police personnel will 
continually work together to ensure that the needs of the traveling public are being 
considered and met in the most professional, safe, and efficient manner. 
 
 


 2







Fire Department Responsibilities: 
 
Upon arrival at any roadway incident, the Fire Department will only utilize the lanes 
absolutely necessary for a safe work zone and for the safety of their personnel. The Fire 
Department’s on-scene ranking officer, should coordinate with the on-scene Police 
Department’s ranking officer to determine whether or not the fire equipment might be 
repositioned to allow travel lanes to be reopened. Fire Departments will deploy the initial 
display of traffic cones, in a taper fashion from the rear of the closest piece of 
equipment upstream, toward approaching traffic. Once a Georgia DOT HERO Unit 
arrives on the scene, they will implement traffic control measures to protect both the 
incident scene and emergency responders. Once traffic control is established and traffic 
is flowing safely through and/or around the traffic incident, fire departments should turn 
off their emergency lighting, as soon as the situation allows. Responder safety is 
paramount. 
 
Medical Examiner Responsibilities: 
 
Medical Examiners who respond to the scene of a traffic incident, when applicable, will 
make clearing deceased persons from the travel portion of the roadway a high priority. 
Upon notification of a fatality incident, the Medical Examiner agrees to make all 
necessary arrangements for the immediate processing and transportation of deceased 
persons from the scene of a roadway incident. To expedite the removal of deceased 
persons off travel lanes, the Office of Medical Examiner agrees to accept digital photos 
and/or Polaroid photos of the incident scene from trained police investigators which will 
include aerial type photographs of the overall scene, if available, detailed photos of 
deceased persons and how they are found, the interior of the vehicle, if necessary, as 
well as photographs of the vehicle and its impact points to the incident. Once the police 
investigator has completed taking photos of the deceased person(s) and the incident 
scene, the Office of Medical Examiner agrees to the movement of deceased person(s) 
from the travel lanes. The movement of deceased persons may include ejected 
deceased persons and vehicles containing deceased persons to the shoulder of the 
roadway, to off ramps, accident investigation sites, or other safe areas off the travel 
lanes for completion of investigation to reduce the delays and secondary crashes 
associated with motorists slowing to view the incident scene. 
 
It further agrees that: 
 
Police Department, Fire Department and Department of Transportation should initiate 
cross training standards that will allow all departments to work for the betterment of our 
state/county/city roadway system. 
 
Police Department, Fire Department and Department of Transportation will research, 
evaluate and conduct training in the most advanced technologies, equipment and 
approved; methods for the documentation and investigation of crash or incident scenes. 
Police Department, using these techniques, will prioritize the investigative tasks and 


 3







reopen travel lanes upon completion of those tasks which MUST be conducted, without 
impeding traffic flow. 
 
Roadways will be cleared as soon as possible. It is the goal of all agencies that all 
traffic incidents be cleared from the roadway within 90 minutes of the arrival of 
the first responding officer. This goal being made with the understanding those more 
complex scenarios may require additional time for complete clearance. 
 
Police Department and Fire Department will actively solicit and enlist other county and 
local agencies, political subdivisions, industry groups, professional associations and 
wrecker companies to enforce and become party to this, “Open Roads Policy” for local 
jurisdictions. 
 
All parties agree to participate in the Local Traffic Incident Management (TIM) Team 
and Traffic Incident Management Enhancement (TIME) Task Force. 
 
In witness whereof each party hereto has caused this document to be executed in its 
name and on behalf by it’s duly recognized Department Head. 
 
 
 
By:____________________________  By:________________________ 
                          (Signature)      (Signature) 
 
       _____________________________________         ________________________________ 
                                 (Type Name)                   (Type Name) 
 
       _____________________________________         ________________________________ 
            (Title)           (Title) 
 
       _____________________________________         ________________________________ 
                                    (Agency)         (Agency) 
 
       _____________________________________          _______________________________ 
                                      (Date)           (Date) 


 
  


Reviewed By: 
 
 


_______________________________, ______________ 
           (Agency/Office)            (Date) 


 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


 4







 


PPHHOONNEE  
440044--663355--ttiimmee  ((88446633))  


WWEEBBSSIITTEE  
hhttttpp::////wwwwww..ddoott..ssttaattee..ggaa..uuss//ssppeecciiaallssuubbjjeeccttss//ttiimmee//iinnddeexx..sshhttmmll  


 5





		Commissioners- Open Roads Policy Agenda Request File

		Commissioners - OpenRoadsPolicy Statement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamation honoring a Fayette County couple who is celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.


Mr. and Mrs. Darrell and Karen Hatton are celebrating their 50th wedding anniversary.  Fayette County is honored to recognize the 


Hatton's and to celebrate their marriage. 


Proclamation honoring a Fayette County couple who is celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionNovember 14, 2013







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


               


               


Celebration OF 50 Years of Marriage 


WHEREAS,  The sanctity of marriage, ordained by God, is the most time honored and treasured 


commitment in which a man and woman can join together; and it is within this 


healthy, loving commitment that two people flourish, enjoying the best of what each 


has to offer in life; and 


WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Darrell Hatton met while attending church in Arlington, Virginia; and 


WHEREAS, They were united in matrimony on November 16, 1963 at the Arlington Calvary 


Church of the Nazarene in Fairfax County; Alexandria, Virginia and are celebrating 


50 years of marriage; and 


WHEREAS, Darrell Clay and Karen Darlene have demonstrated a firm commitment to each other 


through good times and bad, through sickness and through health; and 


WHEREAS, This couple share their loving relationship with their two children Darla Lynn and 


Darren Keith and their grandchildren, Brittany Darlene, Bradley Clay, Mara 


Elizabeth, Cole Robert, Chloe Pamela and Clark Nathaniel; and  


WHEREAS, Throughout the years, they continue to show their respect, love and commitment to 


each other, while continually sharing their kindness and wisdom with all that 


surround them; and 


WHEREAS, They have set an example of love, unity, and relationship for others to follow in their 


commitment to the sanctity of marriage for the past 50 years;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby join with the 
residents of Fayette County in congratulating Mr. and Mrs. Darrell and Karen Hatton as they 
celebrate their 50th wedding anniversary.    
 


So proclaimed this 14th day of November 2013,       


  


         
              


                      STEVE BROWN, Chairman  
   





		Commissioners- Wedding Proclamation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Wedding Proclamation Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Environmental Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of Ordinance 2013-19 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article IV Litter, to include Sections 12-91 through 


12-98, to meet the mandated requirements of the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District and provide for enforcement of said 


requirements.


The amendments prohibit the burial of any debris on construction sites to prevent future sink holes, protect the environment and provide 


for the enforcement of these regulations by county personnel.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-19 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article IV Litter, to include sections 12-91 through 


12-98 to meet the mandated requirements of the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District and provide for enforcement of said 


requirements.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-19 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO LITTER; TO 


PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO 


PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY 


AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO LITTER (ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 12), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By deleting Article IV, pertaining to Litter, of Chapter 12, in its entirety, and by 


replacing it with a new Article IV in Chapter 12, to be numbered and read as 


follows: 


ARTICLE IV.   LITTER. 


Sec. 12-91. Purpose and intent. 


 The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the public health, safety, environment, 


and general welfare through the regulation and prevention of litter. The objectives of this 


ordinance are: 







 
 2 


(1)  Provide for uniform prohibition throughout Fayette County of any and all 


littering on public or private property; and, 


(2)  Prevent the desecration of the beauty and quality of life of Fayette County 


and prevent harm to the public health, safety, environment, and general 


welfare, including the degradation of water and aquatic resources caused 


by litter. 


 


Sec. 12-92. Applicability. 


 This ordinance shall apply to all public and private property within Fayette 


County. 


 


Sec. 12-93. Compatibility with other regulations. 


 This ordinance is not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any other 


ordinance, rule or regulation, stature, or other provision of law. The requirements of this 


ordinance should be considered minimum requirements, and where any provision of this 


ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule 


or regulation, or other provision of law, whichever provisions are more restrictive or 


impose higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall be 


considered to take precedence. 


 


Sec. 12-94. Definitions. 


 As used in this article, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the following 


words or phrases shall have the following meanings: 







 
 3 


 Litter shall mean any organic or inorganic waste material, rubbish, refuse, 


garbage, trash, hulls, peelings, debris, grass, weeds, ashes, sand, gravel, slag, brickbats, 


metal, plastic, and glass containers, broken glass, construction and grading debris, dead 


animals or intentionally or unintentionally discarded materials of every kind and 


description which are not "waste" as such term is defined in O.C.G.A., § 16-7-51, 


paragraph 6. 


 Public or private property shall mean the right of way of any road or highway; 


any body of water or watercourse or the shores or beaches thereof; any park, playground, 


building, refuge, or conservation or recreation area; timberlands or forests; and 


residential, commercial, industrial, or farm properties. 


 


Sec. 12-95. Prohibition against littering public or private property or waters. 


 It shall be unlawful for any person or persons to bury, dump, deposit, throw or 


leave or to cause or permit the burying, dumping, depositing, placing, throwing or 


leaving of litter on any public or private property in Fayette County or any waters in 


Fayette County  unless: 


(1)  The property is designated by the State or by any of its agencies or 


political subdivisions for the disposal of such litter, and such person is 


authorized by the proper public authority to use such property; or 


(2)  The litter is placed into a receptacle or container installed on such 


property; or 


(3)   The owner(s) of such property has or have a valid permit from the State of 


Georgia Environmental Protection Division to dispose of any litter on such 







 
 4 


property. 


 


Sec. 12-96. Vehicle loads causing litter. 


 No person shall operate any motor vehicle with a load on or in such vehicle unless 


the load on or in such vehicle is adequately secured to prevent the dropping or shifting of 


materials from such load onto the roadway. 


 


Sec. 12-97. Violations, enforcement and penalties. 


(a) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to 


comply with any of the requirements of this ordinance. Any person who has violated or 


continues to violate the provisions of this ordinance, may be subject to the enforcement 


actions outlined in this section or may be restrained by injunction or otherwise sentenced in a 


manner provided by law. 


(b) Evidence. 


(1) Whenever litter is thrown, buried, deposited, dropped or dumped from any 


motor vehicle, boat, airplane, machinery or other conveyance in violation of 


this ordinance, it shall be prima facie evidence that the operator of the 


conveyance has violated this ordinance. 


(2) Except as provided in paragraph (1), whenever any litter which is dumped, 


buried deposited, thrown or left on public or private property in violation of 


this ordinance is discovered to contain any article or articles, including but 


not limited to letters, bills, publications or other writing which display the 


name of the person thereon in such a manner as to indicate that the article 







 
 5 


belongs or belonged to such person, it shall be a rebuttable presumption that 


such person has violated this ordinance. 


(c) Penalties.  Any person who violates this ordinance shall be guilty of a violation and, 


upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as follows: 


(1) By a fine of not less than $200 and not more than $1,000; and 


(2) In addition to the fine set out in paragraph (1) above, the violator shall 


reimburse Fayette County for the reasonable cost of removing the litter when 


the litter is or is ordered removed by Fayette County; and 


(3) (A) In the sound discretion of the court, the person may be directed to 


pick up and remove from any public street or highway or public right-of way 


for a distance not to exceed one mile any litter he has deposited and any and 


all litter deposited thereon by anyone else prior to the date of execution of 


sentence; or 


 (B) In the sound discretion of the court, the person may be directed to 


pick up and remove any and all litter from any public property, private right-


of-way, or with prior permission of the legal owner or tenant in lawful 


possession of such property, any private property upon which it can be 


established by competent evidence that he has deposited litter. Pick up and 


removal shall include any and all litter deposited thereon by anyone prior to 


the date of execution of sentence; and 


(4) The court may publish the names of persons convicted of violating this 


ordinance. 


(d) Enforcement. All law enforcement agencies, officers and officials of this state or any 


political subdivision thereof, or any enforcement agency, officer or any official of any 







 
 6 


commission of this state or any political subdivision thereof, are hereby authorized, 


empowered and directed to enforce compliance with this article. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 7 


SO ENACTED this 14th day of November, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Envionmental Management- Ordi...13-19 Agenda Request File

		Envionmental Management- Ordinance 2013-19 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Environmental Management Dept Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-22 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 19, Article IV, Stormwater Management and 


establishing a rate-fee schedule and amendments to the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual referenced in this ordinance.


Revisions to the Stormwater Management Ordinance and the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual resulted from public comment 


during three townhall meetings conducted in early 2013.  These amendments summarily refocus the overall use of utility enterprise funds 


from a stormwater management function to a stormwater operations and maintenance function exclusively. 


 


Amendments proposed in this ordinance include: 


1.  Defining stormwater services and stormwater systems, 


2.  Establishing a rate-fee schedule, 


3.  Establishing a late payment penalty and removing sections pertaining to filing a notice of liens as a payment enforcement method, and 


4.  Amending the user-fee appeal process. 


 


Revisions proposed in the Stormwater Utility Technical Manual include: 


1. Removing credits for rain barrel, watershed stewardship and septic tank maintenance,  


2. Adding credits for 10 and 15 acre lots and residential ponds, and 


3. Placing burden of proof of no-impact parcel on environmental management staff in lieu of the property owner.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-22 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 19, Article IV, Stormwater Management and establishing a 


rate-fee schedule and amendments to the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual referenced in this ordinance.


No funding required.


No September 22, 2011


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessNovember 14, 2013







Fayette County Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule 


 


The Fayette County Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule establishes the basis for calculating the 
stormwater user fee rate for developed property within the County.  The below rate schedule was 
contained in the Stormwater Management Ordinance, Article IV, Chapter 19 adopted by the 
Board of Commissioners on September 22, 2011.  The County shall assign the amount of 
impervious area for the fair, reasonable and equitable allocation of the costs to deliver 
stormwater services and shall use this assignment to calculate the stormwater user fee charges for 
all developed properties in unincorporated Fayette County. 


User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 1,000 square feet of impervious 
area located on the property to establish the total number of billing units. The total square 
footage impervious area will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000 ft. increment.  (Example.   A 
property with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall contain 1 equivalent runoff unit.) 


Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent runoff units, because of the 
hydrologic response characteristics of these materials.  (Example.  A property with 2,000 square 
feet of gravel area shall be equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to 1 equivalent 
runoff unit.) 


Calculation of Rate.  


The periodic stormwater user fee charges imposed on all developed properties shall be a rate of 
$0.35 per 1,000 square feet of impervious surface per month. 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA;  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2011-08 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA, CHAPTER 19 UTILITIES, BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE VI, STORMWATER 


MANAGEMENT SERVICES, TO ESTABLISH A STORMWATER UTILITY FOR 


UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY AS A DEDICATED ENTERPRISE ACCOUNTING 


UNIT, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT; TO IDENTIFY THE SERVICE AREA, 


PURPOSES, AND POWERS OF THE UTILITY; TO PROVIDE DEFINITIONS; TO ESTABISH 


GENERAL SERVICE CHARGE RATE POLICIES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 


PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO ESTABLISH AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, the duly elected Governing Authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County is responsible for the protection and preservation of the public 


health, safety, and welfare of the community; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to establish provisions sufficient for 


management of stormwater services throughout the unincorporated areas of Fayette County; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act as amended by the Water Quality Act of 1987 (33 


U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) and rules promulgated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency 


pursuant to the Act place increased emphasis on the role of local governments in developing, 


implementing, conducting and funding stormwater management programs which address water quality 


impacts of stormwater runoff; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County commissioned a stormwater funding feasibility analysis by an 


independent engineering firm from which the Board of Commissioners finds and concludes that 


substantial stormwater management operational and capital investment needs exist for stormwater 


services; and 


 


WHEREAS, financial analysis indicates that adequate and stable funding will be essential if the 


county is to meet the requirements and mandates of future stormwater management operational and 


capital investment needs; and 


 


WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Commissioners to proceed with the development, 


implementation, and operation of a utility for stormwater management services accounted for in the 


County’s budget as a separate enterprise fund dedicated solely to stormwater management services and to 


institute funding methods associated therewith; 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1.  That the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, as amended, Chapter 19, Utilities, is hereby 


amended by adding a new Article VI, Stormwater ManagementServices,  to read as follows: 


 
Sec. 19-96. Findings. 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 2 
 


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia makes the following findings:  


(a) An independent professional engineering and financing analyses as prepared by Integrated Science 


and Engineering, Inc. properly assesses and defines the stormwater management problems, needs, goals, 


program priorities, and funding opportunities of unincorporated Fayette County.   


(b) Given the problems, needs, goals, program priorities, and funding opportunities identified in the 


professional engineering and financing analyses, it is appropriate to authorize the formation of an 


organizational and accounting entity dedicated specifically to the management, maintenance, protection, 


control, regulation, use, and enhancement of stormwater systems in unincorporated Fayette in concert 


with other water resource management programs.  


(c)(a) Stormwater management drainage is applicable and needed throughout the unincorporated 


boundaries of Fayette County. While specific service and facility demands may differ from area to area 


at any given time, a stormwater management service area encompassing all lands and water bodies 


within the unincorporated boundaries of Fayette County is consistent with present and future needs of the 


community.  


(d)(b) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County include, but are not limited to, protecting 


the public health, safety, and welfare. Provisions of for stormwater management programs and 


facilitiesservices renders and/or results in both service and benefit to all properties, property owners, 


citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety of ways as identified in the professional engineering 


and financial analyses. The service and benefit rendered or resulting from provision of stormwater 


management systems and facilities may differ depending on many factors and considerations, including 


but not limited to location, demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater systems and programs, and 


risk exposure.  


(e)(c) Fayette County presently owns and operates stormwater management systems and facilities 


developed over many years. Future usefulness of existing stormwater systems owned and operated by the 


County, and of additions and improvements thereto, rests on the ability of the County to effectively 


manage, protect, control, regulate, use, and enhance stormwater systems and facilities in the County in 


concert with management of other water resources in the County. In order to do so, the County must 


have adequate and stable funding for its stormwater management operating and capital investment needs.  


(f)(d) The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that a Sstormwater Uutility provides 


the most practical and appropriate means of properly delivering and funding stormwater management 


services in unincorporated Fayette County.  


(g)(e) An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities can be provided 


by adopting a schedule of service charges upon properties that is related to the burden of stormwater 


quality control service requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County. Such schedule 


of service charges can be complemented by other funding methods which that address specific needs, 


including but not limited to, allocations of special purpose local option sales taxes to stormwater 


drainage improvement projects. A service charge credit is an appropriate means of adjusting service 


charges in recognition that private stormwater systems and/or actions can effectively reduce or eliminate 


the burden of stormwater quantity and quality control service requirements and costs that a property or 


properties pose for the County. Impervious area is the most important factor influencing stormwater 


service requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County, and therefore is an 


appropriate parameter for calculating stormwater service charges and associated credits. In addition, the 


value to the stormwater utility of certain actions and practices performed by property owners and other 


stormwater utility customers may be recognized by credits based on other factors, including but not 


limited to, the avoided cost of public information and education realized by the utility when public 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 3 
 


information and education about stormwater management is provided by the public school system.  


 


(h)(f) A schedule of Sstormwater Uutility user fee charges based on the area of impervious surface 


located on each improved property is the most appropriate and equitable means of allocating the cost of 


stormwater management services throughout the County. Such user fee charges may be complemented 


by other types of charges which that address specific needs, including, but not limited to, special service 


fees, special assessments, revenue bonds, use of proceeds from special purpose local option sales taxes 


and other forms of revenue, as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners.  


 


(i)(g) The existence of privately owned and maintained on-site or off-site systems, facilities, activities or 


assets that reduce or otherwise mitigate the impact of a particular property on the Stormwater Utility’s 


cost of providing stormwater management services and/or stormwater management systems and 


facilities, can be taken into account to reduce the user fee charge on that property in the form of a credit, 


and such credit should shall be conditioned upon continuing provision of such services, systems, 


facilities, activities or assets in a manner complying with the standards and codes as 


determinedmaintenance of the system as outlined the Fayette County Stormwater Utility Technical 


Credit Manuel by the Stormwater Utility ManagerEnvironmental Management Director. 


 


(j)(h) It is imperative that the proceeds from all user fee charges for stormwater management services, 


systems or facilities, together with any other revenues raised or otherwise allocated specifically to 


stormwater management services, systems or facilities, be dedicated solely to those purposes, and such 


proceeds of user fee charges and revenues shall therefore be deposited into the enterprise accounting 


fund of the Stormwater Utility and shall remain in that fund and be dispersed only for stormwater 


management services including capital, operating and non-operating costson and/or maintenance, lease 


payments and debt service of bonds or other indebtedness for stormwater management purposesservices. 


Sec. 19-97.   Definitions. 


Except as specifically defined in this chapter, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 


definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater user fee charge in recognition 


of a customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that developed property has on the 


County’s stormwater management systems, and/or the efforts of a customer to offset the County’s cost for 


implementation of the stormwater management program activities that include, but not limited to, public 


education, watershed stewardship, etc.  


County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes of this 


ordinance may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County or the County. 


Developed LandProperty. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, compaction, 


construction of structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that hydrologic response of the 


property is changed from that which would occur in the natural undeveloped conditioncontaining 1,000 


square feet or more of impervious area.  


Fayette County Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Technical Manual. A technical guidance manual 


published by Fayette County that defines user fee credits available to private and public entities that who 


undertake specific stormwater management activities. and cCriteria and procedures for customers to 


secure and maintain stormwater user fee credit(s) are detailed in the document.  The ‘Fayette County 


Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Manual’ is hereby incorporated by reference. 


Comment [VTB1]: Steve/Dennis are we allowing 
public education credit to be taken by BOE since 


program now has nothing to do with permit.  BOE 
did not take credit this year. 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 4 
 


Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual published by the 


Atlanta Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management Manual’ is hereby incorporated by 


reference into this ordinance. 


Hydrologic Response. The manner and means whereby stormwater collects, remains, infiltrates, and is 


conveyed from a property. It is dependent on several factors including, but not limited to, the presence of 


impervious area; the size, shape, topographic, vegetative, and geologic conditions of a property; 


antecedent moisture conditions; and groundwater conditions on a property. 


 


Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of 


stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes of 


the sStormwater utilityUtility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved 


areas; improved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 


coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or that 


change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to development. 


 


Non-Single Family Residential Property.  Developed property that consists of various non-residential land 


uses including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, office/institutional, public, 


transportation, industrial, manufacturing and storage buildings and facilities; (2) parking lots, parks, 


public and private schools, universities and hospitals; (3) streets, roads, water and wastewater treatment 


plants; and (4) any other form of use not specifically defined as a single family residential property. 


Service Charge/User Fee.  A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, reflective of the 


service provided by Fayette Countythe Stormwater Utility. Service charges are based on measurable 


parameters which that influence the sStormwater uUtility's cost of providing services and facilities, with 


the most important factor being the amount of impervious area on each parcel of land, which is the user-


rate fee charge. The use of impervious area as a service charge rate parameter shall not preclude the use of 


other parameters to determine the impact on the sStormwater uUtility's cost of providing stormwater 


management services and facilities. Stormwater service charges may also include special charges to the 


owners of particular properties for stormwater services or facilities uniquely related to stormwater 


management of thata set of particular propertyies, including but not limited to charges for development 


plan review, inspection of development projects and on-site stormwater control systems, and an enhanced 


level of stormwater services above those normally provided by the County. 


Single-Family Residential Property.  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with one (1) or 


more bedrooms, a bathroom, and cooling facilities, designed for occupancy by one or more persons, 


regardless of relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may be classified as single-


family residential even if supplemental detached dwelling units are present that include but not limited to 


garages, carports, storage buildings and barns. 


Stormwater. Rainfall that does not seep into the ground, but runs off a surface. 


Stormwater Customers.  All personsFayette County, propertiesy owners, and or entities including 


individual partnership, corporations, LLC, etc., served by and/or benefiting from the utility's acquisition, 


management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater management systems 


and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, and activities related 


thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or benefited as a result of the 


stormwater management program.  


Stormwater Drainage Influence Zone.  Areas lying downstream of a culvert, or other stormwater 


management conveyance system. On the downstream side of the conveyance system, the stormwater 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 5 
 


influence zone will extend for a length of six times the diameter (or width) of the culvert from which 


runoff is being discharged (Field Manual for Erosion and Sediment Control in Georgia, Third Edition, pg. 


99), and within the horizontal limits set forth in the aforementioned field manual. For example, if a 48-


inch diameter culvert is discharging to a private property, the stormwater drainage influence zone shall 


extend 24 feet (six times 48 inches) from the end of the culvert and for the specified width (i.e. typically 


the width of the creek). The County stormwater utility may perform maintenance and/or capital 


construction activities only within that portion of the public water influence zone which the County has an 


ownership interest in, or for which a dedicated easement has been granted to, and accepted by the County 


for such purpose. 


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 


inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systemse. 


Stormwater Management Services.   All services provided by the County that relate to the: 


1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette County 


Stormwaterportion of the Stormwater Management System owned by Fayette County; 


2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems owned by Fayette 


County; and, 


3. Regulatione of the use, maintenance and operation of stormwater management servicesdrainage 


and systems; and,. 


4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and permit 


requirements. 


Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the quantity 


thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, facilities, 


operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) and environmental 


quality (pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds, and 


reservoirs through improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, instrumentalities 


and properties used or useful in the collection, retention, detention, and treatment of stormwater or surface 


water drainage. Any system designed or used for collecting and/or conveying stormwater into receiving 


rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds and reservoirs, including but not limited to any roads or bridges with 


drainage structures, gutters, inlets catch basins, pipes, structural controls, ditches, swales, natural and 


man-made drainage channels, reservoirs, and other drainage structures including dam. 


Undeveloped LandProperty.  Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified to such 


minimal degree as to have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered natural state shall be 


deemed undeveloped. Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, or compacted gravel surfaces or 


structures which create an impervious surface that would prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause 


stormwater to collect, concentrate, or flow in a manner materially different than that which would occur if 


the land was in an unaltered natural state.All real property with less than 1,000 square feet of impervious 


area. 


Sec. 19-98. Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility within the Fayette County Utility Services which that 


shall be responsible for stormwater management services throughout the unincorporated County limits, 


and shall provide for the management, protection, control, regulation, use, and enhancement of the 


County’s stormwater management system. Such utility shall be under the direction of a Stormwater 


Management Director.  


(b) The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish a Stormwater 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 6 
 


Enterprise Fund in the County budget and accounting system, separate and apart from its General Fund, 


for the purpose of dedicating and protecting all funding applicable to the purposes and responsibilities of 


the uUtility, including but not limited to rentals, rates, charges, fees, and licenses as may be established 


by the Board of Commissioners. All revenues and receipts of the stormwater utility shall be deposited 


promptly upon receipt into the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the 


purposes dedicated, and expended exclusively for purposes of the stormwater utilityservices, including 


capital project construction. No other funds of the County shall be deposited in the Stormwater 


Enterprise Fund or commingled with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that other revenues, 


receipts, and resources not accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, including, but not limited 


to, grants, transfers of County funds, loans, and bond proceeds may be combined with and applied to 


stormwater management services as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners, upon 


recommendation of the County Administrator.  


Sec. 19-99. Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility. 


(a) The sStormwater uUtility shall be responsible for stormwater management throughout the 


unincorporated limits of Fayette County government. The utility shall provide for the conservation, 


management, protection, control, use, and enhancement of stormwater through planning, acquisition, 


construction, installation, management, operatione, maintenance, regulation, extension, and improvement 


of the public stormwater drainage systems to collect, control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and 


treat stormwater and through regulation of stormwater management systems on private property. It shall 


be the long-term objective of the County to provide a comparable and consistent level of stormwater 


service to similarly situated properties throughout the service area according to the extent and level of 


service approved by the Board of Commissioners.  


(b) The County owns or has legal access for purposes of operation, maintenance and improvements to 


those segments of the Fayette County Stormwater Management System that:  


(1) Are located within public streets, rights-of-way, and easements; 


(2) Are subject to easements, rights-of-entry, rights-of-access, rights-of-use, or other 


permanent provisions for adequate access for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of 


stormwater drainage systems; or, 


(3)(1) Are located on public lands to which the County has adequate access for operation, 


maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater drainage systems and facilities.  


(c)(b) Operation and maintenance of stormwater management drainage systems located on private 


property or public property not owned by Fayette County and for whichwhere there has been no public 


dedication and acceptance of such systems and/or facilities for operation, maintenance, and/or 


improvement of the systems and facilities shall be and remain the legal responsibility of the property 


owner, or its occupant, except as that responsibility may be otherwise affected by the laws of the State of 


Georgia and/or the United States of America.  


(d)(c) It is the intent of this ordinance to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of all 


properties and persons in general, but not to create any special duty or relationship with any individual 


person or to any specified property within or without the boundaries of Fayette County. Fayette County 


expressly reserves the right to assert all available immunities and defenses in any action seeking to 


impose monetary damages upon the County, its officers, employees and agents arising out of any alleged 


failure or breach of duty or relationship as may now exist or hereafter be created. To the extent any 


permit, plan approval, inspection or similar act is required by the County as a condition precedent to any 


activity by or upon property not owned by the County, pursuant to this or any other regulatory ordinance, 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 7 
 


regulation or rule of the County or under Federal or State law, the issuance of such permit, plan approval, 


or inspection shall not be deemed to constitute a warranty, express or implied, nor shall afford the basis 


for any action, including any action based on failure to permit or negligent issuance of a permit, seeking 


the imposition of money damages against the County, its officers, employees or agents.  


Sec. 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods. 


The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by the County on 


behalf of all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law places necessary and 


appropriate obligations on private property owners as well.  The sStormwater uUtility may provide for 


inspection of private stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities to ascertain that the stormwater 


drainage systems and/or facilities are functioning as designed and approved by the County. 


(a) All property owners of improved property within the incorporated areas of unincorporated Fayette 


County shall provide, manage, maintain, and operate on-site stormwater management systems sufficient 


to collect, convey, detain, and discharge stormwater runoff in a safe manner consistent with all 


applicable County development regulations, ordinances, and State and Federal laws. Any failure to meet 


this obligation shall constitute a violation of this article and be subject to citation and prosecution in the 


Fayette County Municipal Court. Each day such violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, 


subject to the penalties set forth in the Fayette County Code. 


(b) The County shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of this ordinance, for its designated officers 


and employees to enter upon private and public property owned by entities other than the County, upon 


reasonable notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the property and conduct surveys and engineering tests 


thereon in order to assure compliance. 


(c) If determined by the Stormwater Management Department, uUndocumented drainage systems, located 


on private property that are connected to the County’s stormwater drainage system, shall be permitted 


and/or improved by the property owner to ensure proper function to the public stormwater system if 


required by the Environmental Management Department. This determination may be based upon on the 


severity of stormwater problems, current or potential damage to the publicly-owned stormwater 


management system and potential hazards to the public health, safety and welfare. 


(d) In the event a public nuisance is deemed to exist by the Stormwater Environmental Management 


Department, the County may elect to sue in the Superior Court of Fayette County to abate such nuisance. 


In the event a public nuisance is found by the court to exist, which the property owner fails to abate 


within such reasonable time as allowed by the Superior Court, the County may enter upon the property 


and cause work as is reasonably necessary to be performed, with the actual cost thereof assessed against 


the property owner in the same manner as a tax levied against the property. From date of filing of such 


abatement action, the County shall have lien rights which may be perfected, after judgment, by filing a 


notice of lien on the general execution docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County. 


(e) Any failure to meet the obligations set forth in this Ordinance shall constitute a nuisance and be 


subject to an abatement action filed by the County in the State Court. In the event a public nuisance is 


found by the Court to exist, which the owner fails to properly abate within such reasonable time as 


allowed by the Court, the County may enter upon the property and cause such work as is reasonably 


necessary to be performed. The actual cost thereof shall be assessed against the owner in the same 


manner as a tax levied against the property. 


(f) The County shall have lien rights from the date of the filing of the abatement action by the County, 


and said lien rights may be perfected through: 


(1) A judgment; and, 


Comment [VTB2]: Dennis please check to see if 
needed. 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 8 
 


(2) The filing of a writ of fieri facias against all property of the person or entity against whom 


the assessment was made. Upon issuance of said fi. fa., and forwarding of same to the Sheriff, 


the Sheriff shall be authorized pursuant to Georgia law to levy same upon the property of the 


owner to satisfy the amount due on the judgment.  


These enforcement methods shall be perfected by filing a notice of lien on the General Execution Docket 


of the Superior Court of Fayette County. A fi. fa. issued by any court in the State of Georgia can be 


recorded on the General Execution Docket of the Superior Court of any other county in the state in which 


the owner possesses property. When the execution has been entered upon the docket, the lien shall date 


from such entry. 


State law reference — O.C.G.A. § 9-12-81(b). 


Sec. 19-101. Stormwater Service Charges. 


The sStormwater management uUtility shall recover the cost of providing stormwater services and 


facilities by imposing a stormwater user fee on all developed properties within the service 


areaunincorporated Fayette County in a fair and equitable manner. The sStormwater management uUtility 


shall apportion the cost of delivering stormwater services to all developed propertiesstormwater 


customers based on the demand the property places on the County's stormwater management 


programsystem and the stormwater services provided by the County. 


 


It shall be the goal of the Board of Commissioners to establish stormwater user fee rates that are fair, 


equitable and reasonable, and together with other funding sources available to the Fayette County 


Stormwater Management Utility, such as special service fees and charges deemed appropriate by the 


Board of Commissioners to customers for services, systems, and/or facilities related to stormwater 


management (e.g. credit application fees, plan review fees, development inspection fees, regulatory 


compliance inspection fees, special assessments and other fees related to provision of stormwater 


management services), are sufficient to support the cost of the stormwater management services, 


including, but not limited to, the payment of principal and interest on debt obligations, lease payments, 


operating expenses, capital outlays, non-operating expenses, provisions for prudent reserves and other 


costs as deemed appropriate by the County. 


 


The basis for calculation of the stormwater user fee rate to all developed property within the County is 


established in this article. The County shall assign or determine the amount of impervious area and other 


pertinent factors as may be needed for the fair, reasonable and equitable allocation of the costs to deliver 


stormwater management services and to calculate the stormwater user fee charges for all developed 


properties in the County. 


(a) User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


(1) Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 1,000 square feet of 


impervious area located on the property to establish the total number of billing units for 


billing. The total square footage impervious area will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000 


ft. increment. (Ex. A property with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall contain 1 


equivalent runoff unit.) 


(2)(1) Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent runoff units, because 


of the hydrologic response characteristics of these materials.  (Ex. A property with 2,000 


square feet of gravel area shall be equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to 1 


equivalent runoff unit.) 


(b) Calculation of Rate. The periodic stormwater user fee charges imposed on all developed properties 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 9 
 


shall be a rate of $0.35 per 1000 square feet of impervious surface per monthbased on the rate fee 


schedule approved by the Board of Commissioners. 


Sec. 19-102. Stormwater User-fee Billing, /Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. 


(1) The stormwater user fee charge will be billed and collected as deemed most effective and 


efficient by the County. 


(2)(1) Stormwater user fee charges shall begin to accrue (date)on January 1, 2012, and shall 


be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions and credits may 


apply. A bill for stormwater user fee charges may be sent through the United States Postal 


Service or by alternative means, notifying the property owner of the property being billed of 


the amount of the stormwater user fee charge, less credits, the date the payment is due and the 


date when payment is past due. 


(b) Delinquencies. 


(1)  Failure to receive a bill shall not be justification for nonpayment. Regardless of the party 


to whom the bill is initially directed, the owner of each developed property subject to 


stormwater user fee charges on the date the bill is due and shall be obligated to pay 


stormwater user fee charges and any interest on delinquent stormwater user fee charge 


payments. 


(2) Any service charge or portion of a service charge not paid when due may be recovered in 


an action at law or equity by the County.  


(3) No lien shall be imposed for delinquent collections unless a judgment is first obtained 


from a court of competent jurisdiction.A late charge of ten (10) percent, compounded 


annually, shall be assessed against the customer for the unpaid balance of any Stormwater 


Utility user fee charge that becomes delinquent in accordance with applicable State law. In 


addition, the County shall assess all costs of collection, including attorney’s fees and court 


costs, against the property owner.  


(4) Suits for collection shall be commenced by the County in the county of the owner's 


residence; provided, however, if the owner is not a resident of this state, suit may be filed in 


the Superior or State Court of Fayette County, Georgia. If a suit is instituted by the County 


for collection, the owner shall pay court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney's 


fees incurred by the County.  


(5) If suit is instituted for the collection of any fees due hereunder or for the enforcement of 


this Ordinance, the owner shall pay the court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable 


attorney's fees associated therewith.  


Sec. 19-103. Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service User-Fee Charges. 


Except as provided in this section or otherwise provided by law, no public or private property located in 


the unincorporated area of Fayette County shall be exempt from the stormwater user fee charges. No 


exception, credit, offset, or other reduction in stormwater user fee charges shall be granted based on age, 


tax status, economic status, race, religion or other condition unrelated to the Stormwater Utility’s cost of 


providing stormwater management services and facilities. 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 10 
 


(a) Exemptions to the stormwater user fee charges are as follows: 


(1) Railroad rights-of-way (tracks) shall be exempt from stormwater user fee charges.  


However, railroad stations, maintenance buildings, and/or other improved property used for 


railroad purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater user fee charges. 


(2) Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt 


from stormwater user fee charges. This exemption is in recognition of routine drainage 


system maintenance and capital construction services undertaken by GDOT in association 


with GDOT rights-of-way and road systems. However, maintenance buildings and/or other 


improved property used for GDOT purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater user fee 


charges. All other State, Federal, and County properties are subject to the user fee charges on 


the same basis as private properties. 


(3) Fayette County owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from stormwater user fee 


charges. This exemption is in consideration for the County allowing the Stormwater Utility to 


use the County’s existing street, curbs, gutters, drainage ways and ditches, storm sewers, 


culverts, inlets, catch basins, pipes, head walls and other structures, natural and man-made, 


that controls and diverts surface water for the purposes of collecting, diverting, transporting 


and controlling surface and storm waters. However, other improved property owned and used 


for County purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater user fee charges. 


 


(b) The Stormwater Environmental Management Department shall grant credits or adjustments based on 


the technical and procedural criteria set forth in the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual, which 


shall be adopted and amended by and at the discretion of the Board of Commissioners as an operating 


policy of the Stormwater Utility. Copies of the Credit Technical Manual shall be maintained by and 


available from the Stormwater Environmental Management Department. 


Sec. 19-104. Effective Date of Stormwater Charges. 


Stormwater service charges shall accrue beginning January 1, 2012, and shall be billed periodically, 


thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions and credits may apply. 


 


Sec. 19-105. Appeals.  


Any customer who believes the provisions of this Article have been applied in error may appeal in the 


following manner. 


(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Stormwater Environmental Management 


Directorepartment. In the case of service charge appeals, the appeal shall include a survey prepared by a 


registered land surveyor or professional engineer containing information on the total property area, the 


impervious surface area, and any other features or conditions which influence the hydrologic response of 


the property to rainfall events.  


 


(a) Based on the information provided, aA technical review shall be conducted by the Stormwater 


Environmental Management Director of the Stormwater Utility and a written determination will be 


issued within thirty (30) days stating whether an adjustment to the service charge is appropriate and, if 


so, the amount of such adjustment.  


 


(b) In the case of service charge appeals,if an appellant is adverse with a decision of the 


Environmental Management Director, the appellant may resubmit the appeal that shall include a 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 11 
 


survey prepared by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer containing information on the 


total property area, the impervious surface area, and any other features or conditions that influence 


the hydrologic response of the property to rainfall events. A second technical review shall be 


conducted by the Environmental Management Directors based on additional information provided by 


the appellant.  A written determination will be issued within thirty (days) stating whether an 


adjustment to the service charge is appropriate and, if so, the amount of the adjustment. 
 


(c) In response to an appeal, the Stormwater Environmental Management Director may adjust the 


stormwater service user-fee charge applicable to a property in conformance with the general purpose and 


intent of this chapter.  


 


(d) A decision of the Stormwater Environmental Management Director which that is adverse to an 


appellant may be further appealed to the Director’s supervisor within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice 


of the adverse decision. Notice of the appeal shall be served on the Director’s supervisor by the 


appellant, stating the grounds for the appeal. The Director’s supervisor shall issue a written decision on 


the appeal within thirty (30) days. All decisions of the Director’s supervisor shall be served on the 


appellant personally or by registered or certified mail, sent to the billing address of the appellant.  


 


(e) If the person or entity seeking adjustment or relief from the service user fee charge desires, the 


decision of the Stormwater Environmental Management Director’s supervisor may be appealed in 


writing to the Board of Commissioners. Such appeals must be made within thirty (30) days of the 


decision of the Director’s supervisor and include a written basis for the appeal. The decision of the Board 


of Commissioners shall be final. 


 


(f) This appeal process shall not interfere with the rights of the person or entity to seek judicial relief in a 


court of competent jurisdiction, but shall be exhausted before judicial relief is pursued. Any appeal to the 


Superior Court of Fayette County must be filed within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Board of 


Commissioners.  


(g)  


 


(h)(f) Notices of the appeal and decisions shall be served personally or delivered by registered or certified 


mail to the address of record.  


 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 


paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 


the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 


severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby 


further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 


law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 


other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 


 







vbirrell 11/8/2013 10:50:21 AM10/31/2013 4:59:36 PM 12 
 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 


whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 


decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that 


such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 


render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 


sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 


constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 


hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be January 1, 2012. 


 


It is so ordained this 22
nd


 13th day of SeptemberDecember, 20112013, by the 
 


  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


  ______________________________________ 


                   Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


______________________________ 


Clerk/Deputy Clerk 


 







 


 


 
  


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 


Environmental Management Department 


November 2013 







 


 







 


1 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION  


Stormwater Utility user fee credits are given to property owners for being good stewards of the 
natural water resources in Fayette County by performing stormwater best management practices. 
The cumulative effect of these best management practices are intended to reduce demand and 
impact on Fayette County stormwater services, reduce flooding, and provide a cleaner natural 
resource for Fayette County.  


Credits, when applied to the customer’s account, will reduce the customer’s user fee amount. 
These credits will be reviewed on a periodic basis by the County to insure compliance with this 
Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual (the Manual.)  


Summary of Stormwater User Fee Credits  


Table 1 summarizes both structural and non-structural user fee credits available to Stormwater 
Utility customers.  Per County policy, the maximum user fee credit that a customer account can 
receive is 100% for no-impact parcels and 50% for all other parcels.  


Table 1- Stormwater User Fee Credits 


    Potential Stormwater User Fee Credit 


Best Management Practice  Term1  
Single Family 


Residential (SFR)  
Non-Single Family 
Residential (NSFR)  


Residential Environmental Technology  3 YEARS 20 %   
2 acres2 5 YEARS 10 %   
5 acres2 5 YEARS 15 %   
10 acres2 5 YEARS 20% 


 15 acres2 5 YEARS 25% 
 No-impact Parcel Never Expires 100 % 100%  


Residential Pond 1 YEAR 10% 
 


Natural Area Preservation  
Easement 
Duration 20% 20 % 


Water Resources Education Programs   1 YEAR   50 % 
Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria3   


Channel Protection 3 YEARS   15 % 
Overbank Flood Protection 3 YEARS   15 % 


Extreme Flood Protection 3 YEARS   15% 
 
1 - Credits are applicable as long as the property owner or multiple owners (where applicable) account(s) are in good standing 
with the Fayette County Stormwater Utility. 
2 - Credits shall be automatically applied to all parcels that meet the condition, as long as the property owner’s account is in 
good standing with Fayette County Stormwater Utility.  
3 - Residential customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively apply for credits 
detailed in the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria and in this Manuel.  







 


2 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS  


Except as specifically defined in this manual, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 
definitions. For the purpose of this document, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Best Management Practice (BMP):


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater user fee in recognition of a 
customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that developed property has on the 
County’s stormwater system.  


  Schedules of activities, general good housekeeping practices, 
pollution prevention and educational practices, and maintenance procedures that prevent or reduce the 
discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to stormwater, receiving waters, or stormwater conveyance 
systems.  Best management practices also include treatment practices, flood controls, operating 
procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or drainage 
from raw materials storage.  


County.  The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia. 


Developed Property.  All real property containing 1,000 square feet or more of impervious area.  


Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual published by the 
Atlanta Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management Manual’ is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this ordinance. 


Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of 
stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes 
of the Stormwater Utility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved 
areas; improved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 
coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff. 


Non-Single Family Residential Property (NSFR).  Developed property that consists of various 
non-residential land uses including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, office/institutional, 
public, transportation, industrial, manufacturing and storage buildings and facilities; (2) parking lots, 
parks, public and private schools, universities and hospitals; (3) streets, roads, water and wastewater 
treatment plants; and (4) any other form of use not specifically defined as a single family residential 
property. 
 
Service Charge/User Fee


Single-Family Residential Property (SFR).  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with 
one (1) or more bedrooms, a bathroom, and heating facilities, designed for occupancy by one or more 


.  A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, reflective of the 
service provided by the Stormwater Utility.  Service charges are based on measurable parameters that 
influence the Stormwater Utility's cost of providing services and facilities, with the most important 
factor being the amount of impervious area on each parcel of land, which is the user-rate fee charge.  
The use of impervious area as a service charge rate parameter shall not preclude the use of other 
parameters to determine the impact on the Stormwater Utility's cost of providing stormwater services. 
Stormwater service charges may also include special charges to the owners of particular properties for 
stormwater services uniquely related to a set of particular properties, including but not limited to 
on-site stormwater control systems, and an enhanced level of stormwater services above those 
normally provided by the County. 







 


3 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


persons, regardless of relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may be classified 
as single-family residential even if supplemental detached dwelling units are present that include but 
not limited to garages, carports, storage buildings and barns. 
 
Stormwater


Stormwater Customers.  All Fayette County property owners, including individuals, entities, 
partnerships, corporations, LLCs., etc.  


.  Rainfall that does not seep into the ground. 


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 
inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground pipe. 


Stormwater Services.  All services provided by the County that relate to the: 
1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the portion of the 


stormwater system owned by Fayette County; 
2. Maintainance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems owned by 


Fayette County; or 
3. Regulation of the use, maintenance and operation of all stormwater drainage systems. 


Stormwater System.  Any system designed or used for collecting and/or conveying stormwater into 
receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds and reservoirs, including but not limited to any roads or 
bridges with drainage structures, gutters, inlets catch basins, pipes, structural controls, ditches, swales, 
natural and man-made drainage channels, reservoirs, and other drainage structures, including dams. 


Undeveloped Property.  All real property with less than 1,000 square feet of impervious area. 







 


4 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 3 - STORMWATER USER-FEE CREDIT POLICIES  


The County has established the following general policies regarding consideration and approval of 
stormwater user fee credits.  Please refer to Section 19-103 of the Stormwater Services Ordinance 
for additional guidance and requirements pertaining to stormwater user fee credits.  


• Credit applications for existing facilities may be submitted at any time.  However, the 
credit will be applied retroactively to the first stormwater bill cycle only for those credit 
applications received within one year from the end of the month of the 2012 stormwater 
billing cycle.  After that time it will be applied in the next billing cycle after the credit has 
been approved.  


• Credit applications for new construction or redevelopment may be submitted once the best 
management practices are in place and are approved by the County, and the stormwater 
billing is scheduled.  


• A group of customers can apply for a credit if: 


o the property owners enter a Memorandum of Agreement; and 


o all property signing the Memorandum of Agreement are served by the same best 
management practice(s). 


Canceled and/or voided Memorandums of Agreement will result in loss of credit on the 
effected properties for the next billing cycle. 


• A residential homeowner’s association, or a common development such as a multi-family 
apartment complex and/or a manufactured home park, that has its own properly designed, 
constructed, and maintained stormwater best management practice(s) should contact the 
County Environmental Management Department to determine if the homeowner’s 
association members, or common development customers, are eligible for a credit.  For 
the purposes of the credit, the best management practice(s) must be located on a parcel 
that is platted within the common development and owned by the homeowner’s 
association (or a single property owner within the subdivision or common development).  
Best management practice(s) located on County owned properties are not eligible for 
credits to private property owners.  Additionally, best management practice(s) that the 
County maintains through a dedicated maintenance easement or other legal agreement, 
though lying within private property, cannot be used by the customer for credit purposes.  


o For the purposes of awarding the credit, the credit being considered must be in 
compliance for the entire common development and must meet this Manual’s 
criteria.   


o Any resulting credit awarded will be divided among eligible customers within the 
homeowner’s association or the common development. 







 


5 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


 


SECTION 4 - STORMWATER CREDIT APPLICATION PROCESS  


The application process for a stormwater user fee credit is as follows: 


1. The customer shall obtain a copy of this manual (available online or in the Fayette County 
Stormwater Environmental Department) and determine if a credit is applicable to their 
property. 
 


2. If applicable, the customer shall submit a completed application package (see Appendix) and 
an executed right of Entry Agreement, if need for inspection purposes. 
 


3. The County will review the application package and notify the customer if the request is 
approved or denied within 30 days of receipt of the completed application.  Incomplete 
application packages will not be considered by the County and will be returned to the 
customer for completion and/or revision. The County will send written notification when an 
application has been denied.  
 


4. If the credit application is approved, the County will apply the stormwater user fee credit to 
the next customer billing cycle, except those applications submitted and approved before 
June 1, 2012.  Applications submitted and approved before June 1, 2012 shall be 
retro-actively applied up to the time the user fee was initiated.   
 


5. Once approved. the County may choose to conduct an onsite inspection of the applicant’s 
property, or review non-structural practices, to ensure conformance to the manuals criteria.  
As such, the application shall include a Right-of-Entry (Appendix D.)  The Right-of-Entry 
shall be valid for the entire time in which the credit is valid.  


Note: Stormwater user fee credits expire automatically at the end of the credit term.  It 
will be the responsibility of the customer to renew the credit at the appropriate time by 
resubmitting the application package for review and approval by the County.  If a 
customer’s account is not in good standing with Fayette County all credits will be voided.  
The property(s) owner will need to reapply for the credits once the account is in good 
standing.   


 


 


 


 







 


6 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES  


This section explains the procedures involved in applying for a stormwater user fee credit including 
step-by-step instructions and eligibility requirements for obtaining a Stormwater Utility credit.  


Listed below are the stormwater user-fee credits that Stormwater Utility customers are eligible to 
apply for.  Customers should follow the credit application procedures outlined below for each 
credit they desire to secure.  


• Residential Environmental Technology  


• Low-Impact Parcel  


• No-impact Parcel 


• Residential Pond 


• Natural Area Preservation  


• Water Resources Education Programs   


• Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria   


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Channel Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Overbank Flood Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Extreme Flood Protection Volume 


In order to receive credits, the customer shall continue to conduct maintenance on all structural 
credits and will provide Fayette County Environmental Management Department with the 
appropriate information and inspection documentation.   







 


7 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Residential Environmental Technology (10% credit for 3 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: Single Family Residential 


This credit shall be applied to eligible, 
county-approved residential 
environmental technologies. These may 
include but are not limited to cisterns, rain 
gardens, pervious pavements, etc. Home 
owners should work with the 
Environmental Management Department 
to select the appropriate residential 
environmental technology. All residential 
environmental technologies shall be 
designed using the Georgia Stormwater 
Management Manual standards; if the 
Georgia Stormwater Management Manual 
does not have a standard for a 
technology, other technical 
documentation may be used at the 
discretion of Fayette County.  


The credit shall be applied once 
documentation has been approved by 
the Environmental Management 
Department confirming installation of the 
residential environmental technology. 


The customer shall continue to maintain the residential environmental technology during the full 
credit term of three years.  Renewal of the stormwater user fee credit shall be in accordance with 
the procedures outlined in this Manual.  







 


8 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Low-Impact Parcel (10%, 15%, 20%, or 25% credit for 5 years)   


Eligible Customer Classes: Single Family Residential 


There are areas in the County where the 
amount of impervious area in comparison 
to the total lot size reduces runoff 
impacts.  


A credit of 10% shall apply automatically 
to all single family residential customers 
whose parcels are larger than 2 acres and 
their impervious area is less than 10% of 
the total parcel.  


A credit of 15% shall apply automatically 
to all single family residential customers 
whose parcels are larger than 5 acres and 
their impervious area is less than 10% of 
the total parcel.  


A credit of 20% shall apply automatically 
to all single family residential customers whose parcels are larger than 10 acres and their 
impervious area is less than 10% of the total parcel. 


A credit of 25% shall apply automatically to all single family residential customers whose parcels are 
larger than 15 acres and their impervious area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


Note: If the stormwater utility account is delinquent the credit will be revoked and the customer 
will have to reapply for the credit.  







 


9 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


No-Impact Parcel (100%) 


Eligible Customer Classes: Single and Non-Single Family Residential 


  


A property or site that does not contribute 
stormwater runoff to the County’s public 
drainage system either directly or indirectly 
may be eligible for a no-impact stormwater 
user fee credit.  


The no-impact parcel credit is available to 
customers who demonstrate the  
stormwater runoff leaving the property does 
not drain or discharge to a County-owned 
drainage system and/or water supply 
watershed at any point downstream and 
ultimately drains or discharges to a drainage 
system of another local government. 
(Defined by Rules of Georgia Department 
of Natural Resources Environmental 
Protection Division Chapter 391-3-16 Rules 
for Environmental Planning Criteria.)  


A credit of up to 100% will automatically be applied to all No-Impact Parcels.  







 


10 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Residential Pond Credit (10% credit for 1 year) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  Single Family Residential 


Customers are eligible for a 
stormwater user fee credit if the 
customer owns a pond that meets the 
following criteria: 


• constructed prior to 2010 or 
built in accordance with all 
Federal, State and Local 
regulations; 


• located entirely on a parcel 
with more than 2 acres; and, 


• the pond’s water surface area 
must be greater than or equal 
to the amount of impervious 
area on the parcel; 


 


The customer shall provide the county with all applicable documentation that supports the criteria 
listed above including a signed annual inspection.  All applicants for the residential pond credit can 
receive information on pond and dam/impoundment maintenance from the Environmental 
Management Department.  







 


11 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Natural Area Preservation (20% for the Easement Duration) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  Single and Non-Single Family Residential 


A stormwater credit may be granted when 
undisturbed natural areas are conserved 
on a site, thereby retaining their 
pre-development hydrologic and water 
quality characteristics.  These areas can 
include: 


• Undeveloped land;   
• Federally recognized wetlands;  
• Lands containing Federally 


Endangered Species;  
• Undeveloped lands within stream 


buffers and/or floodplains; and  
• Constructed stormwater wetlands.  


The natural area must have a minimum 
contiguous area of 1 acre and must be 
located within an acceptable conservation 
easement instrument that ensures 
perpetual protection of the proposed area. 


The customer shall provide the County all 
applicable documentation regarding the conservation easement instrument, including, but not 
limited to, a plat of the proposed area with the deed book and page number as recorded at the 
Clerk of Court’s office. 


The customer is eligible to receive a 1% credit for every 1% of the total area of the parcel that is 
permanently protected, up to 20%.  The credit is valid for the indicated duration of the 
conservation easement instrument.  


 







 


12 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Water Resources Education (50% for 1 years) 


Eligible Customer  Classes: Non-Single Family Residential 


The County encourages and supports 
the efforts of both public and private 
organizations to educate and inform the 
public on the importance of water 
conservation and water resources 
issues.   


The Water Resources Education 
Program credit is available for 
educational services in all public or 
private K-12 educational systems.  
The education program must be 
consistent with the County’s approved 
stormwater management education 
program and must also be pre-approved 
by the County.  The credit shall be 
available to eligible customers that 
teach at least 500 participants in an 


approved Water Resources Education Program.  


The program must address the following elements: stormwater runoff/pollution prevention or 
water conservation. 


The person responsible for the customer account shall certify to the County Stormwater Utility 
Manager, that a water resources based curriculum is being taught at the facility and provide 
detailed documentation verifying the program.    


A 50% credit off the stormwater user fee is available for the Water Resources Education credit for a 
period of five years.  


 







 


13 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria (up to 40%) 
Eligible Customer Classes:  Non-Single Family Residential*  


*Single Family Residential customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively 
apply for the credits related to the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria 
after consultation with the Environmental Management Department to establish potential eligibility.  


The Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria is an 
integrated approach to addressing stormwater 
runoff impacts associated with both water 
quality and quantity issues.  Each of the unified 
stormwater sizing criteria is intended to be used 
in conjunction with the others to address the 
overall stormwater runoff impacts from a 
development site.  When used as an overall set 
of criteria, the unified stormwater sizing criteria 
controls and manages the entire range of 
stormwater runoff events from the smallest 
storm events to the largest storm events (i.e. the 
100- year storm).  


The customer shall provide a hydrology report 
(or comparable document) prepared and sealed 


by a Georgia Professional Engineer or Professional Hydrologist demonstrating compliance with the 
requirements and criteria outlined herein.  Table 3 presents each treatment level with a 
description of each, as provided in the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. 


A 15% credit off the stormwater user fee per the unified stormwater sizing criteria element is 
available for a period of three years.  


The customer shall continue to conduct maintenance as per the maintenance plan provided with 
the original application.  The customer may reapply for the credit every three years.  If a 


Table 3:  Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria  
Treatment Level  Credit Criteria Description  


Channel Protection  15% Provide extended detention for rainfalls up to the 24-hour, 1-year storm 
event.  Retained water is released over a period of 24 hours to reduce 
bankfull flows and protect downstream channels from erosive velocities and 
unstable conditions.  


Overbank Flood Protection  15% Provide peak discharge control of the 24-hour, 25-year storm event such 
that the post-development peak rate does not exceed the predevelopment 
rate to reduce overbank flooding.  


Extreme Flood Protection  15% Evaluate the effects of the 24-hour, 100-year storm on the stormwater 
system, adjacent property, and downstream facilities and properties.  
Manage the impacts of the extreme storm event through detention controls 
and/or floodplain management.  


Note:  The criteria description for each stormwater runoff treatment level is in general accordance with information published in the Georgia Stormwater 
Management Manual.  


  







 


14 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


customer is reapplying for the unified stormwater sizing criteria credit and site conditions have not 
changed since the original application, the application only needs to include a copy of the original 
design information and certification that all the necessary maintenance has been performed per the 
maintenance plan for re-issuance of the credit.  If significant changes to the site layout and/or site 
stormwater controls has occurred, the County may request design information be updated to 
document compliance with Manual criteria.    


In order to maintain eligibility for the credit, the customer must properly maintain the onsite 
stormwater controls documented in the credit application for the term specified in the Manual.  
Furthermore, all stormwater control design, construction and maintenance shall be done in strict 
accordance with the County’s current ordinances and design standards related to 
post-development stormwater management.  







 


15 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


STORMWATER USER FEE CREDIT APPLICATION FORMS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS FORMS  


  


Stormwater user fee credit applications are required to secure approval of all credits offered in this 
Manual.  The forms and documents attached to the appendices are summarized below.  


  


Appendix A includes the credit application form for single family residential stormwater user fee 
credits described in this Manual.    


 


Appendix B includes the credit application form for the non-single family residential stormwater 
user fee credits described in this Manual.    


 


Appendix C includes the credit application forms for each available credit. 


 


Appendix D includes miscellaneous forms required as part of the stormwater user fee credit 
application process, including a Right-of-Entry Agreement.  







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix A 


Single Family Residential Credit Application 







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix B 


Non-Single family Residential Credit Application 







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix C 


Credit Forms 







 


 







 


 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix D 


Right-of-Entry Agreement 





		Environmental Management- Ord...13-22 Agenda Request File

		Environmental Management- Ordinance 2013-22 Backup

		Environmental Management-Stormwater Utility Ord vtb dec 2013

		Enironmental Management- Utility Credit Technical Manual 11-2013

		SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

		SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS

		SECTION 3 - STORMWATER USER-FEE CREDIT POLICIES

		SECTION 4 - STORMWATER CREDIT APPLICATION PROCESS

		SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Consideration of staff's request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency Operations Center to Atlantic South Construction, Inc., 


in the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from 37530930-541320 2930C. 


Fayette County Purchasing Department, in conjunction with Wakefield Beasley, solicited bids for the construction of the Emergency 


Operations Center (Bid #891).  The proposed construction site is located at the 911 Communications Center located at 100 Volunteer 


Way.   


 


Notices of the opportunity to bid were direct-mailed to 38 contractors. An additional 1,471 contractors, suppliers, and related businesses 


were contacted through the internet-based Georgia Procurement Registry. Representatives of 30 companies attended a mandatory pre-


bid conference held on October 10, 2013. Eleven bids were received by the opening date and time deadline.  Within the bid was the 


request for the cost of site preparation, building construction, parking/paving.  Also included in the bid were two alternatives for 


consideration. (Bid Analysis Attached)  


 


Fire and Emergency Services is recommending the lowest base bidder, Atlantic South Construction, Inc., in the amount of $779,000.00 


and the alternative for the site detention work at $6,400.00 be awarded. The total recommended project award for this project is 


$785,400.00 to Atlantic South Construction, Inc.


Approval of staff's request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency Operations Center to Atlantic South Construction, Inc., in 


the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from 37530930-541320 2930C.


Funding for this project is budgeted in account 37530930-541320 2930C.


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


The alternative for landscaping can be completed for less in-house by Building and Grounds.


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







BASE BID


ALTERNATE:
SITE


DETENTION 
WORK


TOTAL
RECOM-
MENDED


ALTERNATE: 
LANDSCAPING


(Not Recommended)


1. ATLANTIC SOUTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. $779,000 $6,400 $785,400 $15,000


2. INTERNATIONAL CITY BUILDERS, INC. 794,000 5,600 799,600 12,000


3. HEADLEY CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 798,700 6,100 804,800 12,600


4. PEACHTREE MECHANICAL, INC. 799,911 6,000 805,911 11,500


5. POND CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 805,796 5,680 811,476 11,885


6. AARENE CONTRACTING, LLC. 827,000 5,600 832,600 7,100


7. LOVVORN CONSTRUCTION, INC. 862,486 9,029 871,515 2,175


8. DIVERSIFIED CONSTRUCTION OF GEORGIA, INC. 864,000 8,700 872,700 6,700


9. WARD GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC. 935,890 10,495 946,385 7,594


10. GARRISON CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 952,750 14,000 966,750 11,500


11. SOUTHCORE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 980,000 24,000 1,004,000 20,000


COMPANY NAME


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid #891


Construction of Emergency Operations Center





		Fire and EMS- Atlantic South ...ction Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Atlantic South Construction BackupRev

		Tally Sheet Extended








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept monetary and non-monetary donations to the Department of Fire and Emergency Services 


totaling $25,000.00.


Approval to increase Fire Fund's Donations-Miscellaneous Revenue Account (27030003-571001) by $1,550 and to increase Fire Fund's 


Food / Catered Meals Expense Account (27030550-531300)by $1,550.  The Department of Fire and Emergency Services has an annual 


Thanksgiving Dinner that is paid for by donations received from various sources. This year, the department has received $1,550 in 


donations.                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


Approval to increase Fire Fund's Donations-Miscellaneous Revenue Account (27030003-571001) by $819.00 and to increase Fire Fund's 


Computer Equipment Expense Account (27030550-542420) by $819.00.  Desktop computer for Fire Station No. 1 donated by Lt. Jim  


Mask. 


 


Approval to accept Non-cash Donations of $9,079.28 for the following donations: 


The Kiwanis Club of Fayette County - 150 smoke detectors - $1,959.28.  


The Home Depot - 200 smoke detectors - $4,000.00. 


The Ronnie Thames Foundation - 156 Hand held fire extinguishers - $1,560.00. 


The Ronnie Thames Foundation -Vehicle wrap on a Fire Safety Education trailer  - $1,560.00.


Approval of staff's recommendation to allow County Manager to accept monetary and non-monetary donations to the Department of Fire 


and Emergency Services up to $25,000.00.  


N/A


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Approval of staff's recommendation will allow County Manager to accept monetary and non-monetary donations to the Department of Fire 


and Emergency Services up to $25,000.00. This Board of Commissioner agenda item if approved will recognize existing donations of 


$11,448.28, providing the ability to recognize another $13,551.72 for the remainder of this fiscal year. Future budgets will reflect 


estimated revenues and expenditures for this purpose without requiring Board of Commissioner action.


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013

















































		Fire and EMS- Donations Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Donations Backup

		11 14 13 Donations Letters-a

		11 14 13  Donations-b

		11 14 13 Copy of NRG Donation Check-c

		11 14 13 Desktop Donation-d












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


October 24, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on October 24, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 6:59 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow gave his third presentation on the United States Constitution and the third Principal of Liberty
of the Constitution.  A copy of Commissioner Barlow’s PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  Commissioner Barlow then asked Dr. William Holmes Robinson,
pastor of Olivet Baptist Church to offer the invocation, and Pastor Robinson did so.


Commissioner Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to Accept the Agenda as published, to accept a new Agenda Item referred to as New
Business Item #14- Water Committee recommendation to rescind the action taken on May 9, 2013 on the Water
Committee recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on Highway 85 to service
1391 Highway 85 with sewer, and to move New Business Item #12 right after the Presentation / Recognition section
of the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of November 2013 as Epilepsy Awareness Month in Fayette County.


Commissioner Barlow presented the proclamation declaring November 2013 as Epilepsy Awareness Month
in Fayette County.  Ms. Claudia Woodworth and Ms. Susan Dean received the proclamation on behalf of
the Epilepsy Foundation of Georgia.  Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 2",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


2. Recognition of the Fayette County School Board’s VITAL (Volunteer Initiative to Assist Learning)
program.


Commissioner McCarty presented the recognition of the Fayette County School Board’s VITAL program. 
Ms. Sharon Walters, representing the VITAL program, gave a brief PowerPoint presentation on the
beginning of the program and its work.  Copies of the request, recognition, and PowerPoint presentation,
identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


3. Proclamations honoring Fayette County residents who are celebrating milestone wedding
anniversaries.


Chairman Brown read a proclamation recognizing and celebrating milestone wedding anniversaries for the
following couples:


Mr. and Mrs. Mercer and June Fisher’s 60th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of the proclamation recognizing
the Fisher’s anniversary, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


Mr. and Mrs. Lamar and Sandra Feagan’s 51st Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of the proclamation
recognizing the Feagan’s anniversary, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


Mr. and Mrs. Thomas and Shirley Sullivan’s 65th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of the proclamation
recognizing the Sullivan’s anniversary, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


A copy of the proclamation read by Chairman Brown, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


Fayette County Awarded the “Deal of the Year Award: Chairman Brown announced that Fayette County is the
recipient of the “Large Development of the Year” award, and that the award was related to Pinewood Studios.  He
told of all the work and intergovernmental cooperation involved in bringing Pinewood Studios to Fayette County, and
he introduced Ms. Emily Poole who represented the Fayette County Development Authority and who commented on
Fayette County’s award. 







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 3


PUBLIC HEARING:


4. Consideration of Petition No. 1229-13, Olivet Baptist Church, Owner, and Dr. Maurice Ukadike,
Agent, request to rezone property from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-45 Single-Family
Residential District to expand an existing Church Facility, with one recommended condition, and
with said property consisting of 10.408 acres located in Land Lot 250 of the 5th District and fronting
on SR 279.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Public Hearing rules into the record.  A copy of the
Introduction to Public Hearings, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


Chairman Brown asked those who were in favor of the petition to address the Board.


Dr. Maurice Ukadike spoke in favor of the petition.  Pastor William Holmes Robinson spoke about God’s
work and blessing at Olivet Baptist Church, and how the church’s ministry is growing.  He said the church
felt it was time to expand, and that the church has the heart of the community, and that the community was
in the church’s heart.  He told the Board that the church wanted to expand the Kingdom of God, and that
this effort would help in the work.


Chairman Brown asked for those who were in opposition to the petition to address the Board.  No one
spoke in opposition. 


Commissioner Brown asked Mr. Frisina if the requested use was in Fayette County’s Comprehensive Plan,
and Mr. Frisina replied that it was.  Chairman Brown then asked Mr. Frisina to read the recommended
condition into the record.  Mr. Frisina read the following condition into the record:


1) The property owner will work with staff during the Site Plan process to place a gate or other traffic
controls on the property to reduce the potential of cut-through traffic between State Route 249 and
State Route 314.


Mr. Frisina pointed out that the Agenda read that the zoning would be changed from AR-45, and he
corrected the Agenda saying it would change simply to R-45.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve Petition 1229-13, Olivet Baptist Church, Owner, and Dr. Maurice
Ukadike, Agent, request to rezone property from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-45 Single-Family
Residential District to expand an existing Church Facility, with one recommended condition as listed in the
agenda request that is listed as Condition 1 and reads “the property owner will work with staff during the
Site Plan process to place a gate or other traffic controls on the property to reduce the potential of cut-
through traffic between State Route 279 and State Route 314", and with said property consisting of 10.408
acres located in Land Lot 250 of the 5th District and fronting on SR 279.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  Chairman Brown asked Dr. Ukadike if he was agreeable to the condition as stated, and Dr.
Ukadike replied that he was agreeable to the condition.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the
request, Ordinance 1229-13, and Resolution 1229-13, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 4


5. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-15 approving proposed
amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding
Article XII. Planning Commission.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina spoke about staff’s recommendation to approve Ordinance
2013-15 approving proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinance, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance, regarding Article XII. Planning Commission.  He informed the Board that the proposed
amendments affected the Chapter that deals with the Planning Commission and that staff was
recommending changing the requirements for the Planning Commission so that they are the same for
Zoning Board of Appeals; meaning Planning Commissioners only have to live in Fayette County.  He
explained that the proposed amendments allow for one member of the Planning Commission to serve on
the Zoning Board of Appeals.  Mr. Frisina added that the Planning Commissioners recommended that, in
the future once the districts’ situation is settled, that the Board of Commissioners may want to revisit this
issue and revert back to assigning the Planning Commissioners by districts since there could be a better
sense of representation.


Chairman Brown replied that the proposed amendments meant that, if the County has a real super star in
its midst, the Board could choose that person regardless of where they live in the County.  He said the
County needs good people, and that Fayette County has an incredibly deep pool of human capital, and that
the Board intended to take full advantage of those who want to serve.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-15 approving
proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,
regarding Article XII. Planning Commission.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-15, identified as
“Attachment 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Public Hearing to gain public input on the regulation of sexually oriented businesses and
consideration of Ordinance 2013-16 for the amendment of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 6. Business Licenses to now be titled Regulation of Specific Occupations and associated
Fee Schedule.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina spoke about the proposed amendments to the Fayette
County Code of Ordinances.  He said staff was looking at amending the existing Chapter 6 of the Fayette
County Code of Ordinances which is currently called Business Licenses, and that staff is recommending
that the title be changed to Regulation of Specific Occupations.  He said the changes would include
changes to existing amusement activities such as carnivals and fairs, canvassers and solicitors, and
personal care homes.  He continued that the proposed amendments would introduce additional regulations
for sexually oriented businesses and for tattoo and body art regulations.  He said the amendments were
recently adopted by the Board of Health, which they are governed by the Board of Health, and that they
would be regulated by Environmental Health.  He said the Board of Health has recommended placing these
amendments in the Fayette County Code of Ordinances so that citations can be written if there are
violations.  Mr. Frisina informed the Board that these amendments were advertised as a Public Hearing so
that the Board could get public input especially concerning sexually oriented businesses.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 5


Mr. Frisina informed the Board that the Cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City, and that the Town of
Tyrone all have ordinances in place concerning sexually oriented businesses, and that their three
ordinances are very similar.  He explained that these businesses entail First Amendment considerations,
and that the Board needs to be cognizant that it is not infringing on the freedom of speech or the freedom of
expression, while at the same time trying to find a balance in the regulation of these types of businesses. 
He reminded the Board that staff provided studies from other cities and counties since Fayette County does
not have sexually oriented businesses within its jurisdiction.  He said the studies show a correlation of an
increase in crime with these types of businesses coupled with a decrease in residential and commercial
property values, a loss of commerce, and a general negative perception about the businesses.  He said
staff’s recommendation, based on the available studies, is to keep sexually oriented businesses separated
from other uses, and to keep a certain distance between them so that there is not a grouping of sexually
oriented businesses.  Mr. Frisina informed the Board that the recommendation was to limit the
establishment of sexually oriented businesses to the Light Industrial Zoning District, which are usually far
removed from residential and commercial areas.  He told the Board that there are three areas in the county
where there is a predominance of M-1 Zoning; namely State Route 85 North Corridor, an area along State
Route 314 and an area east of Fayetteville on State Route 54 just before McDonough Road.  Mr. Frisina
replied that staff has put in setbacks that are similar to what the three jurisdictions have adopted, and that
the County had to modify its setbacks because the way the cities measured the setbacks it made it very
difficult to find a location.  He said the setbacks would mainly measure from the front door as opposed to
the property line.  Mr. Frisina said that, in terms of the other activities and sexually oriented businesses, the
County would require background checks similarly to the way it requires background checks for alcohol
licenses. 


Chairman Brown asked for people to speak either in favor of or in opposition to the proposed amendments.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio asked why, if there is no need and no one has asked for use of the sexually
oriented business, the county would change its regulations.  She informed the Board that she was very
much against the proposed amendments, and that she was sad that the black community who had been in
attendance had mostly left the meeting.  She said it appeared that the County was trying to put these
businesses in areas where there are already potential problems.


Fanita Williams: Ms. Williams said she was opposed to the proposed amendments.  She did not
understand why the amendments would even be considered, and she was concerned about what areas the
M-1 Zoning was going to affect.  She said she wanted specific information about what those areas in the
community are, since she agreed with Mr. Frisina’s findings that the businesses bring down the community
and encourages crime.  Ms. Williams told the Board that one reason she moved to Fayette County was
because it is a beautiful county and that there is not that type of business going on.  She thought that the
County could do without the proposed amendments.


Chairman Brown stated that this was the second time he had dealt with this issue since the first time he had
to deal with this issue was when he was mayor in Peachtree City.  He suggested that Mrs. Ognio and Ms.
Williams had the argument backwards since the County was not trying to implement an ordinance that
encourages these types of businesses into Fayette County.  He said the County was trying to regulate the
businesses to the point that the County could control the businesses if they decided to come into Fayette
County.  He spoke about Starship, a sexually oriented business in Thomas Crossroads and Sharpsburg in
neighboring Coweta County, was allowed in Coweta County.  He explained that it was able to set up shop
since there was no ordinance in place preventing them from set up; meaning the County had to allow them







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 6


to go into that retail space.  He explained that the County was trying to look at what is an appropriate place
to put these types of businesses that will do the least amount of harm, and that M-1 Zoning is not
necessarily where these types of businesses would typically set up.  He continued explaining that the
County was trying to get ahead of the curve.  He pointed out that Peachtree City and Fayetteville have
already taken similar measures and that he was surprised that Fayette County had not taken this measure. 
Chairman Brown acknowledged that there are First Amendment considerations involved, that the business
cannot be altogether restricted, but if the businesses do come then the County wants to control it to a
certain level.


Commissioner McCarty stated that the Board was not moving any M-1 Zoning District, and that the M-1
Zoning District has already been established.  He stated that, currently, if someone wanted to apply for
these types of businesses anywhere in the county, that technically they would have a legal way of
establishing their business in places where the County does not want them.  He added that the County
does not want the businesses in M-1 Zoning either, but if they do come to Fayette County that is where they
would have to go.  He said they would also have to meet the regulations and other qualifications associated
with M-1 Zoning as well, and that would be a big discouragement.  Commissioner McCarty continued
saying that this effort was a protective effort for the County.


Commissioner Barlow said the County was trying to take a similar approach to Fayetteville so that these
types of businesses could be blocked.  He understood that it was better to have the ordinance than to not
have the ordinance.  Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Frisina if he highly recommended the proposed
amendments to the ordinance, and Mr. Frisina replied that he did highly recommend them.


Fanita Williams: Ms. Williams returned to the podium and stated that she lives north of Fayetteville, and
that it seems that the M-1 Zoning was along State Routes, and Mr. Frisina repeated where the M-1 Zoning
areas were located.  Ms. Williams also asked Mr. Frisina to explain what a setback is, and he explained that
it is the distance between the road and the front door of an establishment like a church. 


Marissa Williams: Ms. Williams asked if there was a study that shows the crime rate in the areas.  She
said it was her understanding that State Route 314 has a lot of crime, but she could recall a time when
areas around the Fayette Pavilion did not have crime.  She suggested that putting these types of
businesses on State Route 314 would invite more crime to the County, especially when there are statistics
that show bringing sexually oriented businesses, which often draw illegal drugs and legalized herbs, will
draw more “customers” to the area.  She said she did not understand why these types of stores would be
put in areas that typically include lower-income establishments or residents, and that it would ask for more
crime to come to the county.  She again repeated her question about whether there were any studies
around the area that dealt with crime.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Ognio responded to Ms.
William’s concerns, and Chairman Brown added that conducting the type of test she was requesting was
not feasible since it would require sexually oriented businesses to first locate to Fayette County.  Ms.
Williams disagreed with Chairman Brown by saying someone could look at the business district and see the
crime that has developed in comparison to the crime that is in the residential areas, and she stated that
there were many tests that show the relationship of crime in residential areas in relation to commercial
settings.  She agreed that the County needed to regulate sexually oriented businesses, but she thought the
County should look at the M-1 Zonings a little closer.  Chairman Brown replied that staff had spent hours
and hours of time going over the locations, and he suggested that if Ms. Williams had another zoning
designation to suggest, then the Board would certainly listen to what she has to say.  Ms. Williams
responded that she would do some research for the Board.  She said she is 24 years old, has lived in







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 7


Fayette County for the majority of her life, and that she has seen Fayette County go down in the past years. 
She said she wanted to bring her kids back to Fayette County, and that she would hate to bring her kids
back to a place where she would have to consider moving to an even more rural area in order to avoid city
and county crime.  Chairman Brown said he agreed with Ms. Williams and said that was the reason the
Commissioners ran for office, and that the people agreed with her too.  He said the County was trying to do
exactly what she had expressed that she wanted, namely, that the County was trying to severely limit the
capacity of the stores to do business in Fayette County.  He conceded that there was no perfect answer,
but this answer was the best that could be given that would not impact churches, schools, parks, and
subdivisions.  Ms. Williams stated that she would do some personal research since she did not feel this
step was good for the community.  Chairman Brown informed Ms. Williams that the Board can always
amend this ordinance.


Commissioner Oddo asked Ms. Williams to understand that the County was not in favor of sexually oriented
businesses, but that the Supreme Court of the United States has said that communities cannot disallow
sexually oriented businesses in their county.  He explained that the best the County could do was to find
the least conspicuous places, and encourage the businesses to remain over there.  He told Ms. Williams
that the County does not want these types of businesses in public areas where everyone can see them and
where they would attract more customers.


Commissioner Barlow asked if Ms. Williams was familiar with the Starship company located in Coweta
County, and he said the Coweta County sued Starship and tried to block them from going into their current
location.  He stated that Starship won the lawsuit because there was not an ordinance in place.  He
explained that if the County did not have an ordinance in place, then the sexually oriented businesses could
go anywhere.  He emphasized that Fayette County had to have an ordinance, as a starting point, and he
suggested that Ms. Williams could make a proposal if she has a problem with placing the businesses in M-1
Zoning.  He added that if the Board could adopt an ordinance that it could also amend the ordinance.  Ms.
Williams clarified that she was for the ordinance, but was not in agreement with the areas it specifies. 
Commissioner Barlow pointed out that the ordinance was properly advertised for two weeks, and that not a
single citizen came forward on the matter.  He mentioned that approximately 35,000 citizens received the
paper, and that it was telling that not a single person came forward with any kind of issues on this matter. 
He told Ms. Williams that this issue had been vetted successfully.  Ms. Williams replied that it was the same
as the Facebook Resolution that the Board passed, and she pointed out that virtually no Fayette County
students or parents knew about it.  


Commissioner McCarty asked Ms. Williams to understand that what everyone was saying was on public
record, and that the Board has committed to Ms. Williams that if she brings back something that can be
used, then the Board would be glad to see her findings.


Commissioner Ognio stated that Mr. Frisina did a lot of work in checking how lawsuits have been filed, in an
effort to create an ordinance that would prevent the County from being sued, and in an effort to make it so
that the County could control the issue.  He said that was the entire idea, to be able to control the issue.  He
said he did not see any other way, other than what had been presented, to control the issue.


County Administrator Steve Rapson clarified that the lawsuit was between Coweta County and Starship. 
Secondly, he clarified that he was confident that staff had done the adequate research, and that staff could
sit down with Ms. Williams and explain how the County reached its decision.  He stated that Mr. Frisina
would contact Ms. Williams and have a meeting with her.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 8


City of Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton: Mayor Clifton spoke in favor of the proposed amendments saying
he thought the County should approve them.  He pointed out that the Board had already stated that it could
amend the ordinance, but the situation that the County finds itself in right now is that the barn door is wide
open and the horse has not gotten out yet.  He suggested the County should close the door before the
horse gets out, and that the County could then look at moving the gate to some other location at a later
time.  Mayor Clifton stated that for those who do not want to see sexually oriented businesses to come to
Fayette County, that the land areas were rather small, and he suggested that someone could open a
church near to each of those properties, and that would solve the situation.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio returned to the podium and said she understood more after hearing the
explanation.  She informed the Board that she was still against the proposed amendments, but that she did
understand why the Board probably would and should vote in favor of them.  She said she still had a
question, namely, if a sexually oriented business or a tattoo parlor were to come to Fayette County, then
could a citizen come and protest the business at that time.  Chairman Brown replied that anybody could
protest anything, but the Board was relegating these businesses to a specific zoning jurisdiction. 
Commissioner McCarty rhetorically asked, “How many of those businesses want to open up next to a
concrete plant?”


Commissioner Barlow moved to adopt Ordinance 2013-16 for the amendment of the Fayette County Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 6. Business Licenses to now be titled Regulation of Specific Occupations and
associated Fee Schedule.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Ordinance 2013-16, identified as “Attachment 11",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Ms. Jeanelle Toddman: Ms. Toddman said she appreciated the Thomas Jefferson quote, as given by
Commissioner Barlow at the beginning of the meeting, especially since she is an alumnus of the University of
Virginia.  She said she had just listened to the previous conversation, and one thing that she wanted to insert was
the concrete plant.  She asked if the Board had considered “beautification of things,” and she asked if it was possible
to consider “covering” the concrete plant with trees.  She explained that the concrete plant tended to be an eyesore. 
She thought the Board should consider that as things are built, and as areas are zoned, what the buildings and
areas would do to the overall aesthetics of the community.  She suggested that the County should maintain a certain
level of beautification.


Chairman Brown explained that the concrete plant is a very old establishment, and as can be observed with some of
the shopping centers and various older establishments, they were in place before the County had formal zoning.  He
explained that those locations have been grand fathered into the County, but some are coming to the age where
they need to be redeveloped.  He told Ms. Toddman that the concrete plant could very well be one of those
establishments, and when they get redeveloped then they would fall under the County’s current Code of Ordinances
including the setbacks, landscaping requirements, facades, building codes and other requirements would then come
into play.  He pointed out that the City of Fayetteville has a Tax-Allocation District (TAD), and that it includes many of
those old shopping centers up and down Highway 85.  He said there is a tax incentive where someone could buy
one of those old places, raze it, and rebuild it into something that looks a lot better.  Chairman Brown said the
County is using some of those tools to try to get some new people in and to do new things with those sites, and that
the Mayor of Fayetteville is actively looking for people who want to do that.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 9


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo asked to remove Consent Agenda Item #9 from the Consent Agenda.  


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept Consent Agenda Items #7, 8 and 10.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation for an amendment to the final supplemental budget adjustment,
in the amount of $2,550.00, to the final amended budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


8. Approval of staff’s request to authorize Tank Pro, Incorporated to install a ladder inside both the
Ellis Road water tower and the Highway 92 water tower for safe access to each tank’s interior, at an
aggregate cost of $29,224.00, to be funded from the Renewal and Extension Fund Account.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to authorize the Fayette County Water System to lower the
water level in Lake Peachtree from January through March 2014.


Commissioner Oddo reminded everyone that he does not have foreknowledge of the future, and that he
wanted to ensure that when the time comes that the County has a little safeguard in place.  He suggested
that the following wording be added: “Approve staff’s recommendation to authorize the Fayette County
Water System to lower the water level in Lake Peachtree from January through March 24 conditioned upon
the approval of the Water System Director.”


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s recommendation to authorize the Fayette County Water
System to lower the water level in Lake Peachtree from January through March 2014 conditioned upon the
approval of the Water System Director.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 14", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There was no Old Business item on the Agenda.


NEW BUSINESS:


11. Consideration of staff’s request to award the bid for renovating the old jail facility to Gleeds USA
Incorporated (Bid #887); establish three new jail deputy positions; abolish one records clerk; and
convert one Administration Assistant into an Administration Specialist to bring the old Jail fully
operational.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 10


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that staff has been working with the Sheriff’s Department, as
well as with the Purchasing Department, and with Sheriff Captain Rhodes who runs the Jail on a daily
basis.  He informed the Board that the County is looking to renovate the existing old jail, use some of the
residual bond funds that the County has, and that staff is requesting approval to set aside $1.4 million for
that purpose, and to spend the first $50,000.00 on awarding the contract to Gleeds USA Incorporated.  He
explained that Gleeds USA would “actually come in, do an assessment of the actual old jail in regards to a
cost estimate, and then we will actually use that to put it on the street to bid.”  He said the Sheriff’s staff has
been outstanding to work with, and that there is a plan on how the old jail would stand up operationally.  He
said the old jail would require three additional personnel, and those new Jail Deputy positions would not be
implemented until the old jail is renovated.  He said the jail renovation would likely be included with next’s
years budget, but that staff wanted to fast-track this project as quickly as possible in order to give the
Sheriff’s Department the flexibility it needs.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s request to award the bid for renovating the old jail facility to
Gleeds USA Incorporated (Bid #887) for $50,675, utilizing residual bond proceeds to renovate the old jail
facility; establish three new jail deputy positions; abolish one records clerk, and convert one Administration
Assistant into an Administration Specialist.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s request to adopt Resolution 2013-22 calling on Facebook
to protect our teenagers from predators and abuses of privacy.


Chairman Brown said that if a person has read the national newspapers, including the Atlanta Journal and
Constitution, during the course of the past week, then that person will have noticed that Facebook is
changing some of their policies and is relaxing some of their standards related to teenagers aged thirteen
through seventeen.  He explained that currently, if a teenager is in that age range, only your Facebook
friends and the friends of your friends can look at your private Facebook postings including pictures,
uploaded videos, and personal information.  Chairman Brown stated that the viewing protections are going
away, and that the problem is that it opens the door for many other problems to occur.  He explained that
strangers will be allowed to look at children’s accounts, and that should make everyone worried.  Chairman
Brown stated that the Board of Commissioners decided that someone has to say something, and that the
Resolution was the Board’s expression of concern.  He asked everyone in Fayette County, in metropolitan
Atlanta, and around the county to get on their Facebook accounts and to ask Facebook to not ruin the
privacy standards for teenagers.  Chairman Brown then gave a brief PowerPoint presentation on this issue
in which he told of a young woman who committed suicide because she was being severely bullied through
social media.  Chairman Brown concluded his remarks by saying that Facebook, as big and as powerful as
it is, does not have the technical expertise that they cannot find a way to connect teen users and
advertisers without exposing personal information to strangers and predators.  He reminded everyone that
public safety is one of the responsibilities of government, and that it is the responsibility of every parent.  He
suggested that those with Facebook accounts to use their medium to talk back to Facebook, and to tell
Facebook to not take away privacy structures from the teenagers.  


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Chairman Steve Brown’s request to adopt Resolution 2013-22
calling on Facebook to protect our teenagers from predators and abuses of privacy.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request,
PowerPoint presentation, and Resolution 2013-22, identified as “Attachment 16”, follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 11


13. Consideration of the October 16, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner McCarty was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the October 16, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called
Meeting Minutes that Commissioner McCarty was not present at.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed. The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty abstaining from the
vote.


14. Water Committee recommendation to rescind the action taken on May 9, 2013 on the Water
Committee recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on
Highway 85 to service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer.


Chairman Brown stated that the Board had an additional item on the dais; namely, a County Agenda
request from the Water System, and that a copy of the document could be obtained from the County Clerk.


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that this issue was primarily a housekeeping item.  He
explained that the circumstances for “this particular business” have changed, basically negating the action
that the Board took on May 9, 2013.  He explained that the Water Committee unanimously recommended
that the Board action be rescinded, and he said a new proposal would be coming back as a
recommendation from the Water Committee probably within the next thirty days.


Commissioner Barlow moved to rescind the action taken on May 9, 2013 on the Water Committee
recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on Highway 85 to service
1391 Highway 85 with sewer, with the revised recommendation being finalized with the developer and will
be presented for consideration and approval in the near future.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Planning Commission: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that since it approved Public
Hearing Item #5, which basically amended the Planning Commission’s Ordinance, there are two Planning
Commission members seats that actually expire in December.  He stated that the positions would be advertised, and
he asked the Chairman to appoint a Board member to review the applications.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner
Oddo agreed to review the Planning Commission applications.


Recreation Department is Revising the Parks and Recreation Ordinances: County Administrator Steve Rapson
informed the Board that the Parks and Recreation Department is in the process of revising its ordinances and that
there is a meeting that is scheduled for Monday, October 28, 2013 at 6:00 p.m.  He said he wanted the meeting to
be noted for the official record, and that the Recreation Commission would be running that particular meeting.


Recommendation of Mr. Lee Pope as Water System Director: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that
staff has made a recommendation to Mr. Lee Pope, who is the “number two person” at Rockdale County for the
Water Director’s position.  He stated that no one would be happier than he is to have Mr. Pope in Fayette County,
and that while he is a Baptist he was glad the Pope was coming.  Mr. Rapson added that Mr. Pope would begin
working for Fayette County on November 5, 2013, and that he has eleven years of experience.  







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 12


Update on the Water System’s Deficiencies: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the Water System
has corrected 57.3% of the deficiencies, and he asked the Board to recall that at the last meeting that there are four
Notices of Violations still outstanding from the ten that the County originally had.  He said staff was continuing to
work on getting the deficiencies and violations completed.  Chairman Brown asked Mr. Rapson to have Mr. Pope go
to a Brooks Town Hall Meeting and introduce himself.  Mr. Rapson replied that Mr. Pope would definitely be making
the rounds.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Two Items of Threatened Litigation and One Review of Executive Session Minutes: Interim County Attorney
Dennis Davenport reported that he had two items of threatened litigation and one review of the October 10, 2013
Executive Session Minutes for consideration in Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow reminded everyone that at the October 16, 2013 Special Called
Meeting, that neither reporters Pat Cooper nor John Munford was present, and that he challenged the Fayette Daily
News and The Citizen to acknowledge the fact that the Board of Commissioners has done everything that it said it
would do.  He stated that it just so happened that Pat Cooper had already published an article and that its two words
started out: “As promised . . .”  He explained that Mrs. Cooper had enumerated everything that the Board had been
talking about, and so he called Mrs. Cooper and thanked her.  He said if he had seen the paper prior to the Special
Called Meeting, he never would have said anything.  He closed his remarks by thanking Mrs. Cooper.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo wished everyone a Happy Halloween.  He pointed out that his brother
may be watching, and that while his brother may not want it, he was going to wish his brother a Happy Birthday
since his birthday is on Halloween.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he was wearing his pink shirt, but this was special since it was in
recognition of his sister, whose birthday will be on Saturday, and who would have been 49 years old.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty thanked everyone who came to the meeting.  He said it was really
exciting to see people come to the meeting, that Fayette County is a wonderful county with wonderful citizens who
seem to care a lot.  He said the Board was getting a lot done, and it could not be done without the citizen’s help.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown said he was glad that Ms. Marissa Williams came to speak, and he thanked her
for speaking and for staying around and participating.  He said it was very refreshing to see someone who was
actually raised in Fayette County and who has come back and who says “I want to stay and I want to keep it the way
I’ve always had it.”  He said the County appreciated her, wished her God’s blessings, and asked her to keep coming
to the meetings.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Two Items of Threatened Litigation and One Review of the October 10, 2013 Executive Session Minutes:
Chairman Brown moved to go into Executive Session for two threatened litigation items and the Executive Session
Minutes from October 10, 2013.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
October 24, 2013
Page Number 13


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:40 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:11 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of the Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit
Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioners Barlow and
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive
Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the October 10, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the October
10, 2013 Executive Session Minutes.  Multiple seconds followed.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting.  Commissioner
Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board adjourned the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting at 9:12 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 14th day of November 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal Dennis Davenport / Steve Rapson


Request for Fayette County to pay for legal representation for Ms. Marilyn Watts.


A request has been made to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners by a sitting member of the Fayette County Board of Elections 


for the Board of Commissioners to authorize legal representation to her in a pending litigation matter. 


 


State Law authorizes a county to purchase liability insurance insuring the members of the governing body and such supervisors, 


administrators, employees, or other elected or appointed officers against personal liability for damages arising out of the performance of 


their duties.  Fayette County has routinely provided legal defense for employees and appointed officials where litigation occurs based 


upon the performance of their duties. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners is being asked to consider providing legal representation for Ms. Marilyn Watts.


A Board decision on whether to provide legal representation for Ms. Marilyn Watts.


Dependent upon the Board's direction and action.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







LAW OFFICES


McNAJ...LY,rex, GRANT& DA~NPeRT
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION


WILLIAM R. McNALLY
PATRICK .J. FOX
PHILIP P. GRANT
DENNIS A. DAVENPORT
PATRICK A. STOUGH
MEREDITH F. McCLURE


TO:


100 HABERSHAM DRIVE


FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 30214-1381


MEMORANDUM


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


TELEPHONE: (770) 461-2223
FACSIMILE: (770) 719-4832


(770) 461-5863


MAILING ADDRESS:


POST OFFICE BOX 849
FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214-0849


FROM:


RE:


DATE:


McNALLY, FOX, GRANT & DAVENPORT, P.CfYf)
LEGAL REPRESENTATION OF APPOINTED OFFICIALS


NOVEMBER 6, 2013


A request has been made to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners ("BOC") by a
sitting member of the Fayette County Board of Elections ("BOE") for the BOC to authorize legal
representation to her in a pending litigation matter.


State law authorizes a county to purchase liability insurance insuring the members of the
governing body and such supervisors, administrators, employees, or other elected or appointed
officers against personal liability for damages arising out of the performance of their duties.
O.C.G.A. ~ 45-9-20. Fayette County has routinely provided legal defense for employees and
appointed officials where litigation occurs based upon the performance of their duties.


Your Claims-Made Coverage for Government Risks identifies an insured as: "Your
current ... appointed officials, but only for the conduct of their duties as your ... appointed
officials." Section IV. State law and your Risk Coverage are tied to the actions at issue being in
the performance of duty for coverage to be allowed.


The pending litigation at issue was commenced by the Fayette County Republican Party
to remove Marilyn Watts from the BOE. Ms. Watts was appointed by the Fayette County
Republican Party for a four-year term and can only be removed for cause. A copy of the petition
is attached for your review. The reasons given in the petition as the bases for her removal are: 1.
Her appointment was invalid because she was appointed by her son, who, at the time, was not a
properly registered elector; 2. She failed to impartially and ethically discharge her duties through
various acts of nonfeasance and misfeasance, to wit: a. she knew her son failed to meet his
residency requirement; b. she failed to report his illegal registration; c. she obstructed the hearing
by failing to comply with a subpoena; and d. she accepted service of an action by her son against
the Board of Elections.


The question before the BOC is whether the action filed against Ms. Watts is based upon
allegations which arise out of the performance of her official duties. Number I does not. The
arguments provided in Number 2 are based upon the same allegations which were heard by the
BOE in August of2012, a hearing in which Ms. Watts did not participate in any way. It appears
none of the allegations arise out of the performance of her official duties.





























































		Legal- Marilyn Watts Agenda Request File

		Legal- Marilyn Watts Backup

		Legal- Marilyn Watts Backup-1

		00000001



		Legal- Marilyn Watts Backup-2

		Legal- Marilyn Watts Backup-3












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


November 14, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 7th Annual Chair-ity for The Children’s Village at
Christian City.


2. Giving Thanks and Donating in Fayette County: Recognition of a few
organizations in Fayette County that provide food and clothing donations
and thanking them for their service to the community.


3. Recognition of Fayette County Public Safety’s Agreement with the Georgia
Department of Public Safety and the Georgia Department of Transportation
regarding the Open Roads Policy.


4. Proclamation honoring a Fayette County couple who is celebrating their
50th Wedding Anniversary.


PUBLIC HEARING:


5. Consideration of a transfer of the 2013 and 2014 licenses for the sale of
alcoholic beverages (package sales of beer and wine) from Amir Shahzid,
Eight Era, Inc. DBA BP Kenwood, located at 1866 North State Route 85,
Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214, to John Carter, Park Avenue C-Store II, LLC.,
DBA Kenwood BP.


6. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-20 amending the Fayette County Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article III.
Definitions, Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-45. Standards for
Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, and Article VI. District Use
Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2
Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


7. Approval of staff’s request to purchase a custom lighting system that will
replace existing peripheral lighting at the Historic County Courthouse, from
Universal Concepts, in the amount of $5,000.00, utilizing Project
Contingency Funds.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
November 14, 2013
Page Number 2


8. Approval of staff’s request to replace an existing postage machine with a Neopost IN-750 postage machine
at the total first-year cost of $11,265.00, and to transfer $9,180.00 from Project Contingency funds to pay
the unbudgeted balance of the cost.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept monetary and non-monetary donations to the Department of
Fire and Emergency Services totaling $25,000.00.


10. Approval of a request from the Chanticleer Subdivision Home Owner’s Association seeking authorization for
the use of motorized cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Chapter 10., Article
III., Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


11. Approval of Ordinance 2013-18 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article I in General, to
include Sections 12-7 Disorderly Conduct; 12-8 Loitering and Prowling; and 12-9 Public Drunkenness; and
to provide for enforcement of said regulations by law enforcement personnel.


12. Approval of Ordinance 2013-19 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article IV Litter, to
include Sections 12-91 through 12-98, to meet the mandated requirements of the Metropolitan North
Georgia Water Planning District and to provide for enforcement of said requirements.


13. Approval of the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 5, International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to include an
allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of crops.  This item was tabled by Commissioner Allen
McCarty at the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff's request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency Operations Center to
Atlantic South Construction, Inc., in the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from 37530930-541320
2930C.


16. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill (Engineer of Record for the
Water System) as outlined under Task #1 (Eng. Svc 90-Day-NTE) in the amount of $312,300.00 and Task
#2 (Attached-Regulatory/CIP-Hrly Rate) in the amount of $26,250.00, and for the County Mananger to
execute said contract and related documents.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and
Parks of the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia.


18. Consideration of staff’s request to design and construct a parking lot at the Georgia Department of Driver
Services facility, with said parking lot including seventy-three parking spaces, a driveway, and upgrades to







Agenda
November 14, 2013
Page Number 3


the stormwater detention pond, for an estimated materials cost of $50,938.00, utilizing Project Contingency
Funds.


19. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette
County, Georgia by enacting provisions pertaining to the regulation of on-site sewage management
systems.


20. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-22 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 19., Article IV.,
Stormwater Management and establishing a rate-fee schedule and amendments to the Stormwater Utility
Credit Technical Manual referenced in this ordinance.


21. Discussion of a Future Land Use Plan study for the State Route 74 Corridor.


22. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee to appoint Mr. Allen Phinney to the
Fayette County Development Authority, and for said appointment to begin immediately and to expire on
April 9, 2014.


23. Consideration of a resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion of Certain Fayette
County Ad Valorem Taxes in the computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City of Fayetteville
Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor.


24. Request for Fayette County to pay for legal representation for Ms. Marilyn Watts.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal Attorney Dennis Davenport


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by enacting 


provisions pertaining to the regulation of on-site sewage management systems.


Fayette County is adopting the regulations established by the State of Georgia's Department of Health.  These regulations currently exist 


because they are statewide, but the County is unable to write citations until they are adopted into the County Code of Ordinacnes. 


 


The Fayette County Department of Health is requesting the Board of Commissioners to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 in order to allow 


Fayette County Code Enforcement to write citations at the county level.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by enacting 


provisions pertaining to the regulation of on-site sewage management systems.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-__ 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ENACT PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO REGULATION OF 


ON-SITE SEWAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 


DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR 


SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, 


AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO BUILDINGS AND GENERAL FEES (CHAPTER 5), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By designating Sections 5-937 through 5-949 of Chapter 5 as “Reserved” and by 


creating a new Article XII, pertaining to “On-Site Sewage Management Systems”, 


in Chapter 5, to be numbered and read as follows: 


ARTICLE XII. 


ON-SITE SEWAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 


Sec. 5-950. Applicability. 
 


These Rules will have application in all except the following cases: 







 
 2 


 


(1)  Any facility or system under the jurisdiction of and regulated by the Department 


of Natural Resources or its successor; 


 


(2)  Any public or community sewage treatment system; 


 


(3) Other shared jurisdiction by Memoranda of Agreement or other agreements. 


 


Sec. 5-951. Definitions. 
 


 For the purposes of this article, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning 


as indicated beside each listing: 


 


 Absorption field shall mean a configuration of absorption trenches installed in a portion 


of land and used for the absorption and final treatment of sewage. 


 


Absorption line shall mean a pipe line of perforated pipe laid in an absorption trench to 


serve as a conduit for sewage effluent. 


 


Absorption trench shall mean an excavation in which an absorption line is laid. 


 


Absorption trench bottom and side soil area shall mean the total interface of bottom and 


side soil area with undisturbed soils of all absorption trenches in an absorption field and 


occurring horizontally and downward from the point of distribution into the soil, expressed in 


square feet. 


 


Aggregate shall mean washed gravel or washed stone meeting the Georgia Department of 


Transportation standards for hardness or other materials approved by the Department and shall 


be one half inch (1/2′′) to two inches (2′′) in diameter. 


 


Alternative on-site sewage management system shall mean any approved on-site sewage 


management system which differs in design or operation from the conventional or chamber 


septic tank system or privy.  


 


Approved or approval shall mean compliance with applicable specifications or criteria 


developed or accepted by the Department. 


 


Auxiliary system shall mean a system to serve a portion of a residence, a pool house or 


other adjunct facility. 


 


Bedroom shall mean any room that is designed primarily for sleeping purposes, as shown 


on the building plan. 


 


Black water shall mean wastewater generated by water closets, urinals, bidets, kitchen 


sinks and garbage disposals. 







 
 3 


 


Building drain shall mean that part of the lowest piping of a building drainage system 


inside the walls of a building, which receives the discharge from soil, waste or other drainage 


systems and conveys the discharge to the building sewer. 


 


Building sewer shall mean that part of the horizontal piping of a building drainage system 


beyond the building drain which receives the discharge from the building drain and conveys it to 


a public sewer, private sewer, on-site sewage management system, or other disposal. 


 


Central on-site sewage management system shall mean an on-site sewage management 


system serving more than one building, business, residence or other facility designed or used for 


human occupancy or congregation. 


 


Chamber septic tank system shall mean a septic tank and a chamber system as defined in 


this section. 


 


Chamber system shall mean a system of chambers with each chamber being a molded 


polyolefin plastic, arch shaped, hollow structure with an exposed bottom area and solid top and 


louvered sidewall for infiltration of effluent into adjoining bottom and sidewall soil areas. 


Chambers may be of different sizes and configurations to obtain desired surface areas. 


 


Community subsurface treatment system shall mean any system which treats primarily 


domestic wastewater other than those serving single family residences or non-domestic sewage 


systems. 


 


Conventional system shall mean a traditionally used system that is composed of 


perforated pipe surrounded by gravel or stone masking for the infiltration of effluent into 


adjoining bottom and side soil areas. 


 


Conventional septic tank system shall mean any septic tank and conventional system as 


defined in this section, but does not include alternative or experimental systems. 


 


County board of health shall mean the Fayette County Board of Health established by the 


Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A. 31-3-1) or its designee. 


 


Department shall mean the Department of Human Resources of the State of Georgia or 


its designee. 


 


Distribution device shall mean a watertight structure which receives sewage effluent from 


a septic tank, dosing tank, or other sewage retention device and distributes it in equal portions to 


two or more absorption lines. 


 


Dosing tank shall mean an approved watertight tank, located after a septic tank or other 


sewage retention de vice, to receive and retain sewage effluent, and so equipped as to discharge 


sewage effluent intermittently to a distribution device , either by pump or by siphon. 







 
 4 


 


 Experimental on-site sewage management system shall mean any on-site sewage 


management system proposed for testing and observation, and provisionally approve d for such 


purposes by the Department, but which has not been fully proven under field use. 


 


Failure shall mean an on-site sewage system in such a condition that it constitutes a 


public hazard by inadequate treatment and/or disposal of sewage. 


 


Filter shall mean an approved device that removes solids or other materials from the 


effluent that could cause failure of an on-site sewage management system. 


 


Flood plain shall mean a generally flat plain or depression susceptible to being flooded 


from any source, including small and intermittent water courses and coastal areas subject to 


intermittent tidal action. 


 


Gray water shall mean wastewater generated by water-using fixtures and appliances, 


excluding water closets, urinals, bidets, kitchen sinks, and garbage disposals. 


 


Grease trap shall mean a device in which the grease content of sewage is intercepted and 


congealed, and from which grease may be skimmed or otherwise removed for proper disposal. 


 


Individual water supply system shall mean a system of piping, pumps, tanks, or other 


facilities, utilizing groundwater to supply a single family dwelling. 


 


Lot shall mean a portion of a subdivision, or any other parcel of land, intended as a unit 


for transfer of ownership, or for development, or both, and shall not include any part of the right-


of-way of a street or road. 


 


Manual for on-site sewage management systems shall mean the technical handbook 


currently adopted and periodically updated which is used by the Department in the 


implementation of this article and is available for inspection at the appropriate State Office in 


Atlanta or at local health departments. The Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems 


and its provisions are herein adopted unless inconsistent with other provisions of law or 


regulation and is hereafter referred to as the “Manual” or “Manual for On-Site Sewage 


Management Systems.” 


 


Mobile home park shall mean a parcel of land developed for subsequent rental or lease 


for placement of two (2) or more mobile homes. 


 


On-site sewage management system shall mean a sewage management system other than 


a public or community sewage treatment system serving one or more buildings, mobile homes, 


recreational vehicles, residences, or other facilities designed or used for human occupancy or 


congregation. Such term shall include, without limitation, conventional and chamber septic tank 


systems, privies, and experimental and alternative on-site management systems which are 







 
 5 


designed to be physically incapable of a surface discharge of effluent that may be approved by 


the department. 


 


Percolation coefficient shall mean the ratio of trench bottom area to percolation time; it is 


expressed as the allowable rate of sewage application in gallons per square foot per day. 


 


Percolation rate shall mean the time, expressed in minutes per inch, required for water to 


seep into saturated soil at a constant rate. 


 


Percolation test shall mean the method used to measure the percolation rate of water into 


soil as described in the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


Person shall mean any individual, partnership, corporation, or association and may 


extend and be applied to bodies, both political and corporate. 


 


Physical development shall mean development which includes, but is not limited to site 


preparation, erection of a structure, road construction, well construction, or installation of on-site 


sewage management systems. 


 


Privy shall mean a structure (and necessary appurtenances) used for the sanitary disposal 


or storage of human wastes without the aid of water carriage; the term does not include chemical, 


composting, portable, or incinerator toilets. 


 


Public water supply system shall mean a system for the provision of piped water to the 


public for human consumption, if such system has at least fifteen service connections, or 


regularly serves an average of at least twenty-five individuals daily, at least sixty (60) days out of 


the year. 


 


Septage shall mean a waste that is a fluid mixture of partially treated or untreated sewage 


solids, liquids and sludge of human or domestic waste, present in or pumped from septic tanks, 


malfunctioning on-site sewage management systems, grease traps or privies. 


 


Sewage treatment system shall mean a system that provides primary treatment and 


disposal, including absorption field components, devices and appurtenances intended to be used 


for disposal of sewage by soil absorption, but does not include a conventional or chamber septic 


tank system. The system shall be designed to be physically incapable of a surface discharge of 


effluent. 


 


Septic tank shall mean an approved watertight tank designed or used to receive sewage 


from a building sewer and to affect separation and organic decomposition of sewage solids, and 


discharging sewage effluent to an absorption field or other management system. 


 


Sewage shall mean and includes human excreta, all water carried wastes, and liquid 


household waste from residences or commercial and industrial establishments. 


 







 
 6 


Sinkhole shall mean a depression in the land surface, generally in a limestone region, 


which communicates or has the potential to communicate with a subterranean passage developed 


by solution; typical sinkholes can be broad, closed basin-like features or steep-sided dropouts, or 


variants thereof. 


 


Site shall mean the location where the absorption field will be installed to include 


replacement area. 


 


Soil classifier shall mean a person who holds at least a Bachelor of Science degree from 


an accredited college or university with a major in Agronomy, Soil Science, or related field, as 


approved by the Soil Classifiers Certification Advisory Committee. Must have completed a 


minimum of 15 semester hours or 25 quarter hours in approved soil science courses including a 


course in pedology and have four years or more of full time experience as a Soil Classifier/Soil 


Scientist actively mapping, identifying and classifying soil features, and interpreting the 


influence of soil features on soil uses. Certification shall be in accordance with guidelines 


published in the Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. Any person who holds a 


valid certificate of registration as a geologist issued pursuant to O.C.G.A. Chapter 19 of Title 43, 


or who holds a valid certificate of registration as an engineer issued pursuant to O.C.G.A. 


Chapter 15 of Title 43 and is practicing within his or her area of engineering competency may 


register with the Department as a Soil Classifier. 


 


Subdivision shall mean any division of a tract or parcel of land into five or more lots, 


building sites, mobile home sites, or other divisions, resulting in any single lot of less than three 


acres, for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale or legacy, and includes resubdivision 


and, where appropriate to the context, relates to the process of subdividing or to the land or area 


subdivided, provided; however, that the following are not included within this definition: 


 


(1) The combination or recombination of previously platted lots or portions thereof 


where the total number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots conform to 


the standards of these rules. 


 


(2) The division of land into parcels, all of which are three acres or more in size with 


minimum width of one hundred and fifty feet (150′) for a distance sufficient to 


provide an adequate area for the placement of structures and improvements 


including wells and approved installation of approved on-site sewage 


management systems. 


 


Well shall mean an excavation or opening into the ground by which groundwater is 


sought or obtained. 


 


Sec. 5-952. General provisions. 
 


(a) On-site sewage management system required.  Where public or community sewage 


treatment systems are not available, the owner, lessee or agent thereof of every building, 


residence or property, designed, used or intended to be used for human occupancy or 







 
 7 


congregation, shall provide an approved on-site sewage management system sufficient for 


persons normally expected to use or frequent the building, residence or other property for two 


hours or more. Connection shall be made to a public or community sewage treatment system 


when such system is available within two hundred feet (200′) of the property line , or available in 


a public right-of-way abutting the property. Where a public or community sewage treatment 


system is to be constructed, or an existing public or community sewer is to be extended to serve 


a lot, or an approved on-site sewage management system is to be used, the building sewer shall 


be installed so that it will insure gravity flow at a self-cleaning velocity throughout. If an existing 


on-site sewage system fails, immediate connection shall be made to a public or community 


sewerage system if such a system is available. Any facility that produces a waste stream with 


BOD5 (Biochemica l Oxygen Demand) and TSS (total suspended solids) higher than 200 mg/L 


shall be required to pretreat the waste to reduce the BOD5 and TSS to 200 mg/L or be low before 


disposal through a conventional or chamber septic tank system. 


 


(b) On-site sewage management system construction permit required.  No person may begin 


the physical development of a lot or structure thereon, where an on-site sewage management 


system will be utilized, nor install an on-site sewage management system or component thereof 


without having first applied for and obtained from the County Health Department a construction 


permit for the installation. 


 


(1) Application for such a construction permit shall be made in writing on forms 


provided by the County Board of Health. The County Board of Health shall 


approve or disapprove such application within twenty days after the receipt of a 


completed application. The application shall include: 


 


(A) Name and address of the owner and the applicant, if other than the owner; 


 


(B) Location of property; 


 


(C) Plans and specifications including location and design of the proposed on-


site sewage management system including surface and subsurface 


drainage and piping; 


 


(D) Nature of the facility to be served; 


 


(E) Location of all water supplies, geothermal systems, or other utilities and 


trash pits on or off the lot, which will bear upon the location of the on-site 


sewage management system; 


 


(F) Number of bedrooms in the dwelling, or the number of persons to be 


served in other types of establishments, or other sewage flow or water 


usage data; 


 







 
 8 


(G) Soil characteristics, including soil types and capabilities, frequency and 


evaluations of seasonal high groundwater tables, occurrence of rock and 


other impervious strata; 


 


(H) Signature of the owner or agent applying for permit; and 


 


(I) Any additional information deemed necessary to determine the suitability 


of the site. 


 


(2) The County Board of Health may waive submission of part of the information 


required for the application, provided the Board deems that such information is 


available from previously submitted subdivision or mobile home park data, or 


from other sources. The information must be sufficient to make an adequate 


appraisal of the acceptability of the proposed lot for the installation of an on-site 


sewage management system. 


 


(3) Repairs, replacement, or additions to existing systems must be permitted and 


inspected. 


 


(4) Any person preparing to modify a lot for the purpose of obtaining a construction 


permit for the installation of an on-site sewage management system shall submit 


plans showing the type and extent of modifications. No modifications shall be 


carried out prior to the approval of the plans by the County Board of Health. Such 


approval shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Department’s current 


Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(c) Requirements for on-site sewage management system construction permit issuance or 


denial.  On-site sewage management system construction permits shall be issued only after a site 


inspection by the County Board of Health shows favorable findings relative to absorption rates, 


soil characteristics, groundwater, rock, and any other factors which would affect the acceptability 


of the lot. No construction permit for an on-site sewage management system shall be issued prior 


to the approval of the public water supply system, where a public water supply system is to be 


utilized. Lot suitability and approval is to be determined by the criteria established by the 


Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. Lots shall be sized 


according to the regulations of the County Board of Health. The County Board of Health may 


deny or revoke an on-site sewage management system construction permit upon finding the lot 


unsuitable or for failure of the applicant to comply with the provisions of these rules. Such denial 


shall be made in accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. §§ 12-8-1, 31-5-2, 31-5-3, 31-5-


4,315-5 and 31-5-6. On-site sewage management construction permits shall remain valid for not 


more than twelve (12) months from the date of issue. 


 


(1) Issuance of a construction permit for an on-site sewage management system, and 


subsequent approval of same by representatives of the County Board of Health 


shall not be construed as a guarantee that such systems will function satisfactorily 


for a given period of time; furthermore, said representatives do not, by any action 







 
 9 


taken in affecting compliance with these rules, assume any liability for damages 


which are caused, or which may be caused, by the malfunction of such system. 


 


(2) On tracts or parcels of land of three acres or more, the conventional or chamber 


septic tank system may be utilized where the percolation rate does not exceed 120 


minutes per inch. All other conditions must comply with the requirements of the 


regulations for onsite sewage management systems. 


 


(d) Inspections.  No person may backfill or use an on-site sewage management system until 


final inspection has been ma de by the County Board of Health to determine compliance with the 


provisions of the construction permit issued under Subsection (c) of this section and written 


approval has been issued by the County Board of Health. 


 


(1) A copy of the final inspection of an on-site sewage management system shall be 


provided to the owner, builder, developer or agent, whichever is appropriate. 


 


(2) Grading, filling, digging trash pits or other landscaping or construction activities 


on the lot subsequent to final inspection by the County Board of Health which 


may adversely affect the on-site sewage management system shall render the 


approval void. Removal or alteration of system components after final inspection 


by the County Board of Health shall render the approval void. 


 


(e) Design limits for conventional or chamber septic tank systems.  To provide for the 


maintenance of sanitary conditions through the proper functioning of a conventional or chamber 


septic tank system for a reasonable period of time, no such system may be installed, constructed, 


or used, having a septic tank design capacity of less than one thousand (1000) gallons or greater 


than ten thousand (10,000) gallons, or where the total length of absorption trenches required 


would exceed three thousand (3,000) linear feet, or where the total absorption trench bottom area 


required would exceed nine thousand (9,000) square feet. 


 


(f) Submission of plans, specifications, and soil data.  Plans, specifications, soil data and, if 


required, absorption test data, submitted to the County Board of Health for the purpose of 


obtaining a construction permit to install an on-site sewage management system, which will 


produce a sewage flow in excess of two thousand (2,000) gallons per day, shall bear the 


registration number and signature of a Registered Professional Engineer, certified and registered 


under the laws of this State. The County Board of Health may accept plans, specifications, soil 


data, and absorption test data for facilities with sewage flow of two thousand (2,000) gallons or 


less per day, when prepared in accordance with these rules, from any person who demonstrates to 


the satisfaction of the County Board of Health that they have sufficient knowledge of on-site 


sewage management system design. 


 


(g) Soil data acceptability for individual lots.  Soil evaluations shall be conducted by 


individuals meeting the requirements established in the Department’s current Manual for On-Site 


Sewage Management Systems. 


 







 
 10 


(h) Soil data or design certification required.  The soil classifier, engineer, geologist or other 


professional approved by the Department shall be required to attach to any soil evaluation 


submitted to the county board of health a copy of a current in force liability insurance certificate 


with limits of liability of no less than one million dollars. Soil evaluation reports submitted in 


compliance with the requirements established by the Soil Survey Report Checklist in Section C 


of the Department’s Manual shall be deemed sufficient and shall be accepted. The county board 


of health shall issue on-site sewage management system permits on sites deemed suitable by soil 


evaluations conducted in accordance with requirements established by the checklist in Section C 


of the Department Manual. In the event that the county board of health finds that the soil 


evaluation is deficient, it shall notify the person or entity that submitted the evaluation in writing 


by mail within 3 business days stating all deficiencies and all measures needed to correct 


deficiencies. Engineer designs submitted in compliance with the requirements established by the  


Engineered Site Plan Checklist in Section F of the Department’s Manual and submitted with a 


copy of current in force liability insurance certificate with limits of liability of no less than one 


million dollars shall be accepted by the county board of health. Engineer designs shall be 


evaluated within 20 days of submission and a written determination of said evaluation shall be 


mailed to the submitter within 3 business days of the findings by the county board of health. If 


the engineer design is rejected, the county board of health shall so notify the submitter listing the 


deficiencies found, the measures needed to correct the deficiencies and of the submitter’s right to 


appeal the county’s decision. 


 


(i) On-site sewage management system notice required.  In the event an on-site sewage 


management system, alternative system or soil fill installation is installed, notice shall be 


delivered to the owner of such property and in the event of new construction homes or 


commercial buildings, notice must be de livered to new owner, by the homebuilder/contractor, at 


the time of conveyance on such property stating the type of installation, design and maintenance 


needs. 


 


Sec. 5-953. Sewers. 
 


(a) Size of sewers.  Sewers connecting component parts of onsite sewage management 


systems shall be of sufficient size to serve anticipated flow conditions. 


 


(b) Sewers.  All solid pipe and fittings used in an on-site sewage management system, 


beginning at the house, shall be NSF International schedule 40 PVC or equivalent and shall be a 


minimum of four inches in diameter. Sewers under driveways or similar areas of load or impact 


shall be of material capable of withstanding anticipated loads or installed so as to provide 


protection from crushing. 


 


(c) Construction.  Sewers, other than perforated pipe or drain tiles used in absorption fields, 


shall be la id with sealed, watertight, root-resistant joints. Such sewers shall be laid on a firm 


foundation, shall not be subject to settling, and shall be installed on a grade that will insure a 


self-cleaning velocity. Where on-site sewage management systems are used, and where 


installation of building drains and building sewers is not covered by duly adopted local plumbing 


codes, or in the absence of a local plumbing code and/or plumbing inspections, the County Board 







 
 11 


of Health may verify the adequacy and acceptability of all or any portion of the building sewer or 


the building drain. 


 


Sec. 5-954. Septic tanks. 
 


(a) Minimum design and construction.  Septic tanks shall provide a minimum of 24 hours of 


retention and shall be designed and constructed to equal or exceed minimum design and 


construction criteria established by the Department as published in the current Manual for On-


Site Sewage Management Systems. After the effective date of these regulations, any person 


seeking approval of septic tanks to be used in on-site sewage management systems, shall submit 


detailed plans and specifications for tank manufacture and other information as may be required 


by the Department. Manufacturers and suppliers may be subject to periodic inspection, and 


approval by the County Board of Health or the Department. Both the inlet and outlet tees shall be 


ASTM 3034 rated or equivalent. In addition, an approved filter shall be installed on the outlet 


end of the septic tank in compliance with the Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(b) Location.  No septic tank shall be installed less than fifty feet (50′) from existing or 


proposed wells/springs, sink holes, or suction water lines, and tanks shall be located downgrade 


from wells or springs if physically possible; less than twenty-five feet (25′) from lakes, ponds, 


streams, water courses, other impoundments; less than ten feet (10′) from pressure water supply 


lines, or less than ten feet (10′) from a property line. No septic tank shall be installed less than 


fifteen feet (15′) from a drainage ditch or embankment. Septic tanks shall be installed so as to 


provide ready access for necessary maintenance. Normally, the distance a septic tank should be 


located from a building foundation is at least ten feet (10′) but, lesser distances may be allowed 


by the County Board of Health. The County Board of Health, after site inspection, may require 


greater separation distances than cited here in due to unusual conditions of topography, or other 


site configuration; subsurface soil characteristics and/or groundwater interference. 


 


(c) Capacity.  The liquid capacity of septic tanks for single family dwellings shall be one 


thousand (1000) gallons for one, two, three or four bedrooms, and 250 additional gallons for 


each bedroom over four. Septic tank capacity shall be increased by (50%) where garbage 


grinders are to be used. Auxiliary systems serving single family residences or other facilities 


shall be based on the maximum daily flow. 


 


(d) Compartmented tanks.  Two compartment tanks shall be required. The first compartment 


shall be at least 2/3 the liquid capacity of the tank. 


 


(e) Tanks in series.  The County Board of Health may approve the installation of two septic 


tanks placed in series provided that the capacity of the first tank is at least one thousand (1000) 


gallons and at least equal to the capacity of the second tank. When tanks in series are used, they 


shall be connected with a sealed sewer line, and all sewage shall initially enter the first tank. 


 


(f) Foundation and backfill.  Septic tanks will be constructed or installed level, on a 


foundation that will prevent settling; backfill shall be placed so that a stable fill results and undue 


strain on the tank is avoided. Earth backfill shall be free of voids, large stones, stumps, broken 







 
 12 


masonry, or other such materials. A minimum earth cover of six inches (6′′) over the tank is 


recommended. With proper documentation, the County Board of Health may approve less cover. 


All openings and manholes shall be constructed so as to prevent the entrance of surface water. 


 


Sec. 5-955. Distribution devices and dosing tanks. 
 


(a) Minimum design and construction of distribution devices.  Distribution devices shall be 


designed and constructed in accordance with minimum design and construction criteria 


established in the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(b) Minimum design and construction of dosing tanks.  Where required, dosing tanks shall be 


designed, constructed, and installed in accordance with the Department’s current Manual for On-


Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


Sec. 5-956. Absorption fields. 
 


(a) Absorption area.  The absorption area shall be based upon the anticipated volume of 


treated sewage and upon the characteristics of the soil in which absorption fields are to be 


located as specified in the Department's current Manual for On-site Sewage Management 


Systems. Soil characteristics and other related data, including percolation tests, may be required 


by the County Board of Health. Absorption areas shall be classified as follows: aggregate, non-


aggregate and other. 


 


(b) Prior approved systems.  Any "Prior approved system" as defined in the Official  


Code of Georgia Annotated § 31-2-7(a)(4) is approved for installation according to 


manufacturer's recommendation. 


 


(c) Location.  No absorption field will be constructed less than one hundred feet (100') from 


existing or proposed wells, springs or sinkholes; less than ten feet (10') from water supply lines 


and buildings with basements and less than five feet (5') from buildings without basements, other 


structures, drives and property lines; less than fifteen feet (15') from an embankment or trash 


pits, nor less than fifty feet (50') from the normal water level of any impoundment, tributary, 


stream, or other body of water, including wetlands. If the water supply line crosses or comes 


within ten feet (10') of the absorption field the water supply line shall be installed at least twelve 


inches (12") above the top of the aggregate layer of the absorption line and shall be encased in a 


single length of larger diameter water pipe. No absorption field shall be installed in areas where 


groundwater, soil characteristics or adverse geological formation may interfere with the 


absorption or effective treatment of sewage effluent. 


 


(d) Minimum design and construction for absorption fields.  Absorption lines and absorption 


trenches shall be designed and installed in accordance with the minimum design and installation 


criteria established in the Department's current Manual for On-site Sewage Management 


Systems. 


 


Sec. 5-957. Privies. 







 
 13 


 


 Privies shall be designed and constructed in accordance with minimum design and 


construction criteria established by the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage 


Management Systems. 


 


Sec. 5-958. Alternative on-site sewage management systems. 
 


 Alternative on-site sewage management systems shall be designed and constructed in 


accordance with the minimum design and construction criteria established by the Department’s 


current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. The Department shall maintain a list 


of approved alternative on-site sewage management systems. 


 


Sec. 5-959. Experimental on-site sewage management systems. 
 


 Any limitations to the use of experimental on-site sewage management systems shall be 


decided by the Department’s technical review committee. 


 


Sec. 5-960. Septage removal and disposal. 
 


(a) Permit required.  No person shall engage in the removal or disposal of the contents of 


septic tanks, pit privies, or other on-site sewage management or experimental systems without 


having first applied for and obtained from the Department or County Board of Health a septage 


removal permit, renewed annually, for such activities. The application for such septage removal 


permit shall be submitted in writing on forms provided by the Department or the County Board 


of Health at least ten (10) days prior to engaging in such activities. The application shall include 


but not be limited to: the business name and address, name and address of the applicant, the 


manner by which such contents are to be removed, transported and given final disposal, and such 


other documentation as may be required by the County Board of Health, including evidence that 


septage removed and transported will be accepted at approved disposal sites.  The permit shall be 


subject to suspension and revocation for failure to comply with the requirements of these 


regulations or the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(b) Pumping and disposal methods.  Approved methods of pumping and disposal of septage 


from on-site sewage management systems shall be: discharge to a public or community sewage 


treatment system for treatment in a wastewater treatment plant, treatment at separate septage 


handling facilities, or direct land application. Pumping and disposal shall be in accordance with 


the requirements of the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(c) Vehicle identification.  The name and address of the person or firm engaging in the 


removal of septage from on-site sewage management systems and the permit number shall be 


lettered on both sides of each vehicle used for septage removal purposes. Letters and numerals 


shall not be less than two inches (2′′) in height and shall be readily visible. 


 


(d) Vehicle maintenance.  Every vehicle used for removal of septage from on-site sewage 


management systems shall be equipped with a watertight tank or body and properly maintained. 







 
 14 


Liquid wastes shall not be transported in open bodied vehicles. All pumps, hose lines, valves and 


fittings shall be maintained so as to prevent leakage. 


 


Sec. 5-961. Grease traps. 
 


(a) Grease traps required.  Grease traps shall be required for commercial or industrial 


establishments with on-site sewage management systems where it is determined by the County 


Board of Health that the amount of grease introduced into the system is in excess of 50 mg/l. 


 


(b) Grease trap design.  Plans and specifications for grease traps shall be submitted to the 


County Board of Health for approval. The County Board of Health shall review the grease trap 


design in accordance with minimum design and construction criteria established by the 


Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. Effluent from grease 


traps shall be disposed of in a septic tank and not directly discharged to the absorption fie ld. 


Grease traps shall be located, installed and constructed so that the temperature of the sewage will 


be reduced to permit congealing or separation of grease, and easy access for cleaning is 


provided. 


 


Sec. 5-962. Sewage flow. 
 


 The design sewage flow of an on-site sewage management system shall be determined 


from the Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. The daily 


sewage flow may be determined by the Department after due consideration of data submitted by 


the owner or his agent on design criteria. Calculations will be made on the basis of peak flow and 


not on long term averages. 


 


Sec. 5-963. Subdivision and mobile home parks. 
 


(a) Pre-development review.  It is recommended that developers considering subdivision or 


mobile home park development, where public or community sewage treatment systems will not 


be available, seek a predevelopment review by the County Board of Health prior to 


developmental improvements. A predevelopment report which indicates disapproval or tentative 


approval may be obtained by submitting a boundary plat including: 


 


(1) A vicinity map; 


 


(2) A topographic map; 


 


(3) A preliminary soil study conducted in compliance with the Department’s current 


Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(b) Proposals and plans required.  The following information is required for subdivision and 


mobile home park proposals: 


 


(1) A boundary plat drawn to a reasonable scale which includes: 







 
 15 


 


(A) A vicinity map; 


 


(B) Proposed lots and streets including lot identification, dimensions, building 


lines and square footage of lots; 


 


(C) A topographic map depicted in two (2) foot contour intervals. Lesser 


contour intervals may be approved by the County Board of Health if the 


slope is sufficiently steep; 


 


(D) A soil map and soil descriptions based on a high intensity soil study 


conducted in compliance with the Department’s current Manual for On-


Site Sewage Management Systems; 


 


(E) The location of all present and proposed wells, water systems, water 


courses, flood plains, sewage systems, structures, right-of-ways, utilities, 


storm water drainage systems and easements on the property and within 


one hundred feet (100′) outside the perimeter of the property; and 


 


(F) The name, registration number and seal of the professional surveyor or 


engineer that prepared the development plan. 


 


(2) A completed Subdivision Analysis Record on forms provided by the Department. 


 


(3) A copy of the following documents issued by the Environmental Protection 


Division of the Department of Natural Resources: 


 


(A) The land disturbance activity permit issued by either the Environmental 


Protection Division or the local “Issuing Authority”. For the purposes of 


this section, “Issuing Authority” means the governing authority of any 


county or municipality, which is certified pursuant to subsection (a) of 


Code Section 12-7-8 by the director of the Environmenta l Protection 


Division; 


 


(B) A letter of approval to begin construction of a public water supply system 


and approving the source of the water supply where a public water supply 


system is to be utilized; and 


 


(C) For a development, which will result in the disturbance of more than five 


(5) acres, a copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) submitted to the 


Environmental Protection Division to be covered under NPDES Permit 


GAR100000 for the discharge of storm water associated with construction 


activity. 


 







 
 16 


(c) Approval required.  No person may sell, offer for sale, lease, rent, begin construction or 


otherwise begin the physical development of a lot or lots in a subdivision or mobile home park 


until written approval of plans for water supply and sewage disposal has been obtained from the 


County Board of Health. This approval constitutes general acceptance of all lots, except those 


lots excluded, for development with on-site sewage management systems. (Excluded lots may 


receive further consideration based on additional information.) 


 


(d) Limits on use of on-site sewage management systems for subdivision and mobile home 


parks.  Approval of subdivisions and mobile home parks utilizing on-site sewage management 


systems shall not be granted: 


 


(1) When a public or community sewage system is available within five hundred feet 


(500′) off the subdivision or mobile home park. 


 


(2) When soil maps, descriptions, and reports compiled by a registered Soil Classifier 


indicate that soil conditions prohibit safe development of on-site sewage 


management systems. 


 


(3) Prior to receipt of a letter(s) from the Environmental Protection Division 


approving the plans to construct the public water supply system and approving the 


source of the water supply where a public water supply system is to be utilized. 


 


(e) Construction permits.  Construction permits for on-site sewage management systems 


shall be issued in accordance with Section 5-952(b)(1). 


 


Sec. 5-964. Subdivision, mobile home park water and sewage. 
 


(a) Subdivision and mobile home park water supply. Connection to a public water supply 


system shall be require d if available within one thousand feet (1,000′) of the proposed 


subdivision or mobile home park. 


 


(b) Subdivision and mobile home park percolation tests.  Where required for planning 


purposes and determination of the general absorptive capacity of soils, the number of percolation 


tests to be made shall be one (1) per lot, in the area where absorption fields are to be located. 


Before construction of on-site sewage management systems, individual lots within the proposed 


development shall comply with Section 5-963. 


 


(c) Subdivision and mobile home park test bores.  Where required for planning purposes, test 


bores to determine groundwater elevations and subsurface rock formations shall be made at 


locations, in numbers and at depths to be determined by the Department or County Board of 


Health. 


 


Sec. 5-965. Certification and decertification of septic tank contractors, inspection 


personnel, pumpers, soil classifiers and maintenance personnel. 
 







 
 17 


(a) Certification required. Individuals performing services related to site approval, the 


design, location, installation, inspection and maintenance of an on-site sewage management 


system, must be certified by the Department. 


 


(1) Guide lines defining certification qualifications for septic tank contractors, 


inspection personnel, pumpers, soil classifiers and maintenance personnel shall be 


established by the Department and shall be published in the Manual for On-Site 


Sewage Management Systems. The guide lines shall be based on education, 


experience, testing and performance. 


 


(2) The Department shall write a protocol for decertification of persons certified 


under the provisions of this Section. 


 


(3) Certification shall be required every two years and shall be based on meeting 


continuing education requirements. 


 


(b) Fee.  The Department shall adopt a fee schedule for the certification and recertification of 


the persons listed in this Section. 


 


Sec. 5-966. Maintenance and operation. 
 


(a) Prohibited discharge.  No person shall allow the unapproved discharge or spillage of 


sewage, nor shall an on-site sewage management system be used or maintained in such a manner 


that will allow the seepage or discharge of effluent from such system to the ground surface, to a 


water course, drainage ditch, open trench, canal, storm drain or storm sewer, water well, 


abandoned well, lake , stream, river, estuary, groundwater, or other body of water. 


 


(b) Maintenance.  The property owner shall be responsible for properly operating and 


maintaining the on-site sewage management system to increase the life expectancy and prevent 


failure. Maintenance of the system shall be in accordance with the criteria established in the 


Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. Where an on-site 


sewage management system is proposed to serve facilities under separate ownership, a contract 


to insure proper operation and maintenance of the system signed by all owners, shall exist as a 


precondition to the issuance of a permit for the construction of an on-site sewage management 


system. 


 


(c) Additives.  No strong bases, acids or organic solvents shall be used in the operation of an 


on-site sewage management system. 


 


(d) Existing system evaluations.  If a performance evaluation of an existing system is 


conducted, the evaluation shall be performed in accordance with the procedure established in the 


Department’s current Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems. 


 


(e) Variances.  The County Board of Health may grant variances in the cases of hardship 


where existing systems are malfunctioning. 







 
 18 


 


Sec. 5-967. Enforcement. 
 


 The administration and enforcement of this chapter shall be in accordance with O.C.G.A. 


Chapter 31-5. 


 


Sec. 5-968. Standards for non-conventional on-site sewage management systems. 
 


(a) The Department shall review absorption field products that differ in design from the 


conventional on-site sewage management system. The following standards will be used to 


determine equivalency to the conventional on-site sewage management system: 


 


(1) The design infiltrative surface is the wetted trench bottom area. 


 


(2) Due to the combined effects of compaction, contact area and fines associated with 


gravel aggregate, the effective infiltrative surface area is reduced by an estimated 


50%. 


 


(3) The minimum amount of effective trench bottom infiltrative surface area per 


linear foot shall be equivalent to the conventional 36-inch wide gravel system. 


 


(4) Sidewall area shall not be considered for design reduction. The minimum amount 


of effective sidewall infiltrative surface area per linear foot shall be equivalent to 


the conventional 36-inch wide gravel system. 


 


(5) The minimum storage volume required for a system shall be equivalent to the 


conventional 36-inch wide gravel system. 


 


(6) The design absorption area required is based on the most hydraulically limiting 


soil horizon that comes into contact with the infiltrative surface of the sidewall, 


trench bottom and for a distance 1 foot below the absorption trench bottom. 


 


Infiltration area for conventional 36-inch wide gravel trench absorption 


Sidewall Infiltration Area:  2 sq. ft./ft. x .50 = 1 sq. ft./linear foot 


Trench Bottom Infiltration Area:  3 sq. ft./ft. x .50 = 1.5 sq. ft./linear foot 


Storage Volume:  3 cubic feet / linear foot x 7.48 gallons / cubic foot x .35  


= 7.85 gallons / linear foot 


 


(b) Prior approval.  Lots approved for development based on a reduction in absorption 


trench length up to 50% shall continue to be approved and permitted for up to a 50% reduction in 


absorption trench length provided the lot is part of a recorded plat or part of a preliminary 


development plan submitted to the County Board of Health within one year of rule adoption. 







 
 19 


Preliminary plans must include as a minimum: proposed lots and streets with lot identifications, 


lot dimensions and square footage; a topographic map with water courses and flood plain 


identified; a level 3 soil report; the location of the water supply system, right-of-ways, easements 


and utilities; and the name , registration number and seal of the professional surveyor or 


engineer. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 







 
 20 


 


 


 


SO ENACTED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Legal- On-Site Sewage Management Systems Agenda Request File

		Legal- On-Site Sewage Management Systems Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Manager Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's request to purchase a custom lighting system that will replace existing peripheral lighting at the Historic County 


Courthouse from Universal Concepts, in the amount of $5,000.00, utilizing Project Contingency Funds.


The Christmas lights at the Historic County Courthouse are old and partially dry-rotted.  Staff is recommending replacing the lights at the 


Historic Courthouse with new LED lights that can be utilized for even more holidays.  This request is to purchase a new custom lighting 


system that will include professional installation and removal of existing lights. 


 


This is a joint holiday lighting enhancement project being implemented by Fayetteville Main Street. 


Approval of staff's request to purchase a custom lighting system that will replace existing peripheral lighting at the Historic County 


Courthouse from Universal Concepts, in the amount of $5,000.00, utilizing Project Contingency Funds.


Project Contingency Funds in the amount of $5,000.00 are available for this request.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


This is another example of intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County, City of Fayetteville and Fayetteville Main Street to 


bring enhanced beauty to the community for the enjoyment of every person.


ConsentThursday, November 14, 2013







QUOTATION/CONTRACT


Date


10/24/2013


QUOTATION #


1460


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE
240 GLYNN STREET S.
FAYETTEVILLE, GA. 30214-2040


P.O. No.


BRIAN WISMER


Rep


LORI


Total


Subtotal


Sales Tax  (0.0%)


FROM:  UNIVERSAL CONCEPTS
             P.O. BOX 56
             CUMMING, GA  30028
             1-800-522-0718
             FAX  770-844-9972
             sales@universalconcepts.info
             www.christmasdecorandmore.com


CUSTOMER FAX / E-MAIL:


CONTACT PERSON:


CUSTOMER SHIP-TO ADDRESS:


IF ACCEPTED PLEASE SIGN & FAX BACK. THANK YOU!  FREIGHT IS NOT INCLUDED
AND WILL BE INVOICED AFTER SHIPPING.  A 25% RESTOCKING FEE APPLIES ON
ALL RETURNED ORDERS WITHIN 30 DAYS OF PURCHASE.  IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CUSTOMER TO REPORT ANY MISSING OR DAMAGED
ITEMS OF THE SHIPMENT TO THE FRIEGHT COMPANY IMMEDIATELY UPON
ARRIVAL.
ACCEPTED BY:___________________________________________
DATE: __________________________


Item Description Qty Cost Total


PERIPHER... CUSTOM LIGHTING SYSTEM TO REPLACE EXISTING
PERIPHERAL LIGHTING ON COURTHOUSE PLUS FOUR CORNERS
AS DISCUSSED.  TO INCLUDE C7 RGB COBALTS, LIGHT-O-TRON
CONTROLLER WITH WEATHER PROOF HOUSING, CUSTOM
FITTED WIRING HARNESS, CUSTOM FITTED DATA CABLES, AND
OUTDOOR RATED TRANSFORMERS.  INCLUDES PROFESSIONAL
INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL OF EXISTING LIGHTS.


1 5,000.00 5,000.00


TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
A.  CUSTOMER MUST SUPPLY ALL ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS.
2.  50% DEPOSIT OF $2500 REQUIRED TO CONFIRM ORDER.
3.  BALANCE DUE NET 30 UPON COMPLETION.


$5,000.00


$5,000.00


$0.00





		Administration- Christmas Lights Agenda Request File

		Administration- Christmas Lights Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and Parks of the Code of 


Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia.


The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the amendment to put their standard operating procedures into the County Code.  A  


public meeting to present and get public input on the proposed ordinances was held on October 28, 2013.  No one from the public 


attended the meeting. 


 


Two essential changes are presented in Ordinance 2013-17 for consideration: 


 


Change #1 proposes adding a general section to the Parks and Recreation Ordinance.  The current ordinance, as it stands, does not 


have a general section for parks and recreation as it only addresses water parks. 


 


Change #2 is that the penalty for violation for water parks has changed, and the new proposal aligns with the penalty for all ordinances in 


Fayette County; as expressed in Section 1-8. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and Parks of the Code of Ordinances 


for Fayette County, Georgia.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 14, 2013







 


 


To:          Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


 


From:      Anita Godbee, Director 


   Parks and Recreation Department 


 


Subject:  Proposed Parks and Recreation Ordinance 


 


 


The Recreation Commission is recommending adopting Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 


Recreation and Parks of the Code of Ordinance for Fayette, County Georgia. 


 


The current ordinance only addresses the water parks.  The Recreation Commission recommends the 


amendment in Ordinance 2013-17 Chapter 14 which will add the standard Parks and Recreation 


operating procedures into the County Code.   


 


The Recreation Commission is also recommending changing the penalty for violation in Chapter 14 for 


the water parks.  The recommendation in Ordinance 2013-17 Chapter 14 will align the penalty for all 


ordinances for Fayette County as is stated in Section 1 – 8. 


 







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-17 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ENACT GENERAL PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO 


RECREATION AND PARKS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE 


THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO RECREATION AND PARKS (CHAPTER 14), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By deleting Article I, pertaining to “In General”, of Chapter 14, in its entirety, and 


by replacing it with a new Article I in Chapter 14, to be numbered and read as 


follows: 


ARTICLE I.   IN GENERAL. 


Sec. 14-1. Definitions. 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 


meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 


different meaning: 







 
 2 


 


County means Fayette County, Georgia. 


Department means the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department, a 


department under the jurisdiction of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


Parks means all parks and all facilities located thereon, owned and/or controlled 


by the county and operated under the jurisdiction of the Fayette County Parks and 


Recreation Department. 


Person means any individual, citizen, group, association, firm, corporation or 


other legal entity that is authorized to use and enjoy the county's parks and any structure 


or facility located therein. 


Park and/or recreation facility means all recreation areas in parks, including land, 


buildings, lakes, ponds, streams, swimming pools, sports fields, cemeteries, and all other 


property and buildings owned, leased, or managed by the county, the department the 


designated agents or departments of the county or the county recreation authority, and 


including all recreation areas and parks in the county owned by the state or federal 


government and managed by the county. 


Vehicle means any motor-driven or engine-driven equipment, such as an 


automobile, truck, motorcycle, bicycle, sled, go-cart, scooter, skateboard, ATV, child's 


toy vehicle, or Segway. 


Weapon means firearm, rifle, pistol, revolver, paintball gun, or any weapon 


designed or intended to propel a shot, bullet, or other missile of any kind, or any device 


capable of discharging a projectile by air, spirit, gas or explosive, or any explosive 


substance or harmful solid, liquid and gaseous substance, or any spear, arrow, bow and 







 
 3 


arrow, slingshot, crossbow, spear or spear gun, or any knife, as defined by State law, dirk, 


Bowie knife, switchblade knife, ballistic knife, or any other knife, straight-edged razor, 


spring stick, metal knuckles, blackjack, any bat, club or other bludgeon-type weapon, or 


any flailing instrument or any disk which is designed to be thrown or propelled and 


which may be known as a throwing star or oriental dart, or any weapon of like kind, and 


any stun gun, taser or similar device. 


 


Sec. 14-2. Penalties. 


(a) Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed guilty 


of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished in accordance with the Fayette 


County Code of Ordinances. 


(b) Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter may be barred or 


suspended by the department from using any or all parks, if in the combined discretion of 


the department and law enforcement, such action is necessary to protect a park, the 


facilities located therein, or the public's health, safety or welfare. 


(c) Any person causing a disturbance or engaging in any activity which shall 


unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of the park by citizens/visitors or who 


shall violate any ordinance of the county or law of the State shall leave the park upon 


notification by any authorized park employee or any law enforcement officer, and he/she 


shall not return to such park for a period of 24 hours. 


 


Sec. 14-3. Authority to issue citations for violations. 


This chapter shall be enforced by any authorized law enforcement officer of the 







 
 4 


county. Where there has been a violation of any provisions of this chapter, the law 


enforcement officer in his discretion may issue a citation, warning and/or order the 


person to leave the park or recreation area. 


 


Sec. 14-4. Development of recreation programs. 


The authority to develop programs of recreational activities and services designed 


to meet the leisure time needs of all persons is hereby granted to and vested in the 


department. The department shall have the power to maintain and equip parks, 


playgrounds, recreation centers, and the facilities associated therewith, and to establish, 


develop, and maintain a recreational system as provided in O.C.G.A. § 36-64-1 et seq. 


 


Sec. 14-5. Use of grounds and facilities generally. 


Every person using the parks shall clean up all debris, extinguish all permitted 


fires, and leave the premises in good order and the facilities located thereon in a neat and 


sanitary condition. 


 


Sec. 14-6. Prohibited acts. 


It shall be unlawful for any person using the parks, grounds, or facilities to either 


perform or permit to be performed any of the following acts: 


(1) Willfully mar, deface, disfigure, injure, tamper with or displace or remove 


any buildings, bridges, tables and benches, fireplaces, railings, paving or 


paving material, water lines or other public utilities or parts or 


appurtenances thereof, signs, notices, or placards, whether temporary or 







 
 5 


permanent, monuments, stakes, posts, or other boundary markers, or other 


structures or equipment, facilities or park property or appurtenances 


whatsoever, either real or personal. 


(2) Throw, discharge, or otherwise place or cause to be placed in the waters of 


any fountain, pond, lake, stream, or other body of water in or adjacent to a 


park or tributary, stream, storm sewer, or drain flowing into such water, 


any substance, matter or thing, liquid or solid, which will or may result in 


the pollution of such waters. 


(3) Damage, cut, carve, transplant, or remove any tree or plant or vegetation, 


or any part thereof. 


(4) Hunt, molest, harm, frighten, kill, trap, chase, tease, shoot, or throw 


missiles at any animal, or remove or have in one's possession the eggs, 


nest, or young of any wild animal. 


(5) Bring in, dump, deposit, or leave any bottles, broken glass, ashes, paper, 


boxes, cans, dirt, rubbish, waste, garbage, refuse, or other trash or debris 


in a park or waters in or contiguous to a park, except within public 


receptacles and in such a manner that the litter will be prevented from 


being carried or deposited by the elements upon any part of the park.  


Where public receptacles are not provided, all such litter shall be carried 


away from the park by the person responsible for its presence and shall be 


properly disposed of elsewhere.  It shall be prohibited to take into, carry 


through, or put into a park, any litter generated from outside the park. 


(6) Disturb the peace, or use any profane, obscene or inflammatory language. 







 
 6 


(7) Commit any assault or battery, engage in fighting, or commit any other 


offense in violation of federal, state or county law. 


(8) Endanger the safety of any person by any conduct or act. 


(9) Prevent any person from using a park, or any of its facilities, or interfere 


with such use in contravention of the provisions of this chapter and rules 


applicable thereto. 


(10) Dress or undress in a park, or in any vehicle, restroom, or other place 


located within a park, except in such bathing houses or structures as may 


be provided for such purpose. 


(11) Apply any chemical or fertilizer to any lawn, athletic field, soil, structure 


or facility of a park, unless so authorized by the department. 


(12) Introduce any plant material, seed, sod, tree, or shrub to any lawn, athletic 


field, forest or soil of a park, unless so authorized by the department. 


(13) Construct any new facility, paint any facility or make changes in present 


facilities without written approval of the department. 


(14) Vend, sell, peddle, or offer for sale any commodity or article within a 


park, unless such activity is authorized in writing by the department. 


(15) Possess, display, use, set off or attempt to ignite any firecracker, 


fireworks, smoke bombs, rockets, black powder guns or other 


pyrotechnics, except in conjunction with a written permit issued by the 


department. 


(16) Use any of the county parks and recreation facilities for fundraising 


activities and/or any political rallies or events, except in conjunction with 







 
 7 


a written permit issued by the department. 


(17) Whistle, hiss, or holler at another person in a boisterous, unbecoming or 


erring manner or make any loud, unnecessary or unusual noise or display, 


play or operate any sound amplification device including radios, television 


sets, stereos, public address systems, musical instruments, CD players and 


the like in such a manner as to unreasonably annoy, disturb, injure or 


endanger other persons, or to otherwise destroy the comfort, repose, peace 


or safety of other persons in a park unless authorized by the department. 


(18) Erect or use any temporary carnival or amusement ride or inflatables in a 


park unless authorized by the department. 


(19) Start, fly, or use any fuel powered engine, jet-type or electric powered 


model aircraft, boat or rocket or like powered toy or model, except at 


those areas designed by the department for such use and then only in 


accordance with such rules, regulations, and restrictions promulgated by 


the department. 


(20) Launch hot air balloons and hobby rockets from a park unless approved by 


written permit by the department. 


(21) Set up a tent, shack, or any other temporary shelter for the purpose of 


overnight stay, or leave in a park after closing hours any movable structure 


or vehicle to be used or that could be used for overnight stay, such as a 


house trailer, camp trailer, wagon, or the like, unless authorized by the 


department. 


(22) Violate any rule or regulation promulgated by the department relative to 







 
 8 


the use of a park. 


 


Sec. 14-7. Hours of operation. 


All parks shall be open daily to the general public between the hours of sunrise to 


sunset, unless authorized by the department.  It shall be unlawful for any person other 


than county personnel conducting county business therein to come onto or be present in a 


park during any other hours. A park or section of a park may be closed to the public by 


the department at any time and for any length of time, either temporarily or at regular or 


stated intervals. 


 


Sec. 14-8. Group activity. 


Whenever any group or organization desires to use a park for a particular purpose, 


such as a picnic, party, sports event or theatrical or other entertainment performance, a 


representative of such group shall first obtain a permit from the department for such 


purpose, unless the group is sponsored by the department as one of its scheduled 


programs. The department shall grant the application for a permit if it appears that the 


group will not interfere with the general use of the park by individual members of the 


public, and if the group meets all other reasonable conditions which may be imposed by 


the department. Such application may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond 


and/or on site security to protect the county from liability of any kind or character and to 


protect county property from damage. 


 


Sec. 14-9. Picnic areas and use. 







 
 9 


No person shall use any picnic area or any facility located in a park for the 


purpose of holding picnics or other activities to the exclusion of other persons, nor shall 


any person use such area or facility for an unreasonable length of time if the area is 


crowded. 


 


Sec. 14-10. Games. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to endanger the general public in a park by 


taking part in or abetting the playing of any games involving thrown or otherwise 


propelled objects such as balls, stones, arrows, javelins, or model airplanes except in 


areas set apart for such forms of recreation. The playing of rough or potentially 


dangerous games such as football, baseball, and soccer is prohibited except on the fields, 


courts, or areas provided therefor. Park areas other than those designated as golf clubs or 


driving ranges may not be used for golf practice, driving ranges, or putting greens. 


 


Sec. 14-11. Swimming. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to swim, bathe, or wade in any waters or 


waterways in or adjacent to a park except in such waters and at such locations as are 


designated therefor. Such swimming activity shall be in compliance with regulations 


pertaining thereto as set forth in this chapter or hereafter adopted. 


 


Sec. 14-12. Boats and rafts. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to use a boat or raft or other flotation device on 


any waterway, stream, lake or pond in a park unless written authorization allowing such 







 
 10 


activity is received by the department or as otherwise authorized in this chapter. 


 


Sec. 14-13. Fires restricted. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to build or maintain a fire in a park or 


recreation facility except in designated areas which are clearly marked by signs or 


defined with fire rings, fireplaces, grills or other facilities designated for the purpose of 


safely maintaining a fire, except by written permit by the department. Fires shall be 


confined to those areas so designated, shall not be left unattended and must be completely 


extinguished prior to departure. 


 


Sec. 14-14. Animals. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to bring a dangerous animal into a park; to 


permit a dog to be in a park unless such dog is on a leash of not more than six feet in 


length; to bring any animal onto an athletic or sports field/court within a park; to ride, 


graze or walk a horse or other type of hoofed animal within a park without obtaining 


written authorization from the department, unless the park is specifically designated for 


such use; to fail to immediately remove from the park and dispose in a sanitary manner 


excrement deposited by an animal in the person's possession and control while in a park; 


to fail to have in such person's possession, having possession and control of an animal, a 


device or equipment for the collection and removal of animal excrement. The provisions 


of this section shall not apply to a person having possession or control of an animal 


aiding the handicapped (i.e., guide dog) or to police or rescue personnel. 


(b) It shall be the duty of every animal owner or custodian of such animal in a park to 







 
 11 


immediately remove from such park such animal upon such animal exhibiting aggressive 


behavior toward any person or toward any other domesticated animal.  For the purposes 


of this subsection, aggressive behavior includes, but is not limited to, barking, growling, 


bearing of teeth or fangs, biting or attempts to bite, or any other behavior that could 


reasonably be expected to scare or intimidate any person or domesticated animal. 


 


Sec. 14-15. Automobiles and off-road vehicles; parking restrictions. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or park any automobile or off-road 


vehicle except on a street, driveway, or parking lot in a park. Law enforcement or other 


public safety officials, and county employees whose duties require them to drive vehicles 


and equipment in other areas of a park shall be exempt from the limitations set forth in 


this section. 


(b) The speed limit for all vehicles shall be 10 miles per hour within all parks. 


(c) It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle or trailer in a park or recreation facility 


except in those areas designated by the appropriate signs as vehicle parking areas or in 


marked parking spaces. It shall be unlawful to leave a vehicle or trailer standing or 


parked in a park or recreation facility during hours when the park or recreation facility is 


closed. It is unlawful for any person to park a vehicle or trailer in a parking space or 


location designated for handicapped parking unless the vehicle properly displays a 


handicapped parking permit.  It shall be prohibited for any person to park in a recreation 


area if the owner of the vehicle or trailer is not utilizing the park unless authorized by the 


department.  In all such instances in which a parked vehicle or trailer violates any 


provisions of this section, the vehicle or trailer may be towed and impounded from the 







 
 12 


park or recreation facility at the owner’s expense.  


(d) It shall be prohibited for persons to congregate within a parking area of a park so 


as to disrupt traffic or other persons, or so as to create a safety hazard. 


 


Sec. 14-16. Alcoholic beverages and tobacco products. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, possess or consume alcoholic beverages 


within a park except as provided in Chapter 3 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances. 


(b) It shall be a violation of this article for persons to smoke or use tobacco products 


in enclosed buildings in all parks or recreation facilities, and in all other areas of a park or 


recreation facility, unless otherwise posted. Persons under 18 years of age in possession 


of tobacco products can and will be charged under State law 


(c) No person shall possess or use any drug or any other controlled substance, as 


defined in the laws of this state, except as permitted by the laws of this state, in any park. 


 


Sec. 14-17. Signs. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to paste, glue, tack, post, erect or cause to be 


erected any sign, placard, advertisement, or inscription whatsoever within a park or 


highway or street adjacent to a park. This provision shall not apply to any properly 


authorized government official in pursuit of his official duty or by a person having 


received written authorization from the department. Any sign, placard, advertisement, or 


inscription authorized to be erected shall be in compliance with the county's sign 


ordinance and other applicable county regulations. 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to distribute any handouts or dodgers or scatter 







 
 13 


or place any paper, books, and pamphlets of any kind in or about any of parks. 


 


Sec. 14-18. Fees. 


A user fee shall be charged for any special or sports event, or other extraordinary 


program or activity as may be hereafter established by the department. 


 


Sec. 14-19. Weapons prohibited. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge any weapon or similar device in a 


park or recreation facility. 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to take into a park or recreation facility a 


weapon, or to use, carry or employ any weapon or similar device in a park or recreation 


facility, except as otherwise provided by applicable law. This subsection (b) shall not 


apply to firearms as defined by O.C.G.A. § 16-11-171(3) or to knives as defined by 


O.C.G.A. § 16-11-125.1. 


 


Sec. 14-20. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


Permits for special events in a park or recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the department or employees under the direction of the 


director. Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the park or 


recreation facility; 


(2)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 







 
 14 


unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, 


welfare, safety and recreation of a park or recreation facility; 


(3)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility is not 


reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime, or disorderly conduct; 


(4)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


entail unusual, extraordinary, or burdensome expenses or policy operation 


by the county; 


(5)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


conflict with existing parks and recreation services; 


(6)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility desired 


has not been reserved for other use; 


(7)  That the permitting person or persons will abide by all other state, county 


and parks and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall 


be liable for any loss, damage, or injury sustained by any person 


whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or persons to whom 


such permit shall have been issued; 


(8)  That the director or the director's agent shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or 


regulations or upon good cause shown; and 


(9)  Persons may apply for a permit for a proposed activity or use of the park 


or recreation facility under the following categories: picnicking, fund-


raising, special event, food service for approved activities, and park or 


recreation facility rentals. 







 
 15 


 


Sec. 14-21. Improper personal conduct. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in any violent, abusive, lewd, 


profane, vulgar, wanton, obscene or otherwise disorderly speech or conduct that is or may 


be disturbing or annoying to other persons, or that could cause injury to other persons 


while in a park, which conduct may include, but is not limited to, loitering, fighting, 


throwing or breaking articles, indecent exposure, inappropriate sexual acts, urinating or 


defecating in public, or public drunkenness.  No person shall upon or in connection with 


a park by act or speech willfully or unreasonably hinder, interrupt or interfere with any 


duly permitted activity or unreasonably or willfully intrude on any areas or into the 


structures designated for the use of a certain person or persons to the exclusion of others 


by written permit of the department. 


 


Secs. 14-22--14-25. Reserved. 


 


Section 2. By deleting Section 14-30, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article II 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 


 


Section 3. By deleting Section 14-44, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article III 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 


 


Section 4. By deleting Section 14-64, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article IV 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 







 
 16 


 


Section 5. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 6. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 7. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 17 


SO ENACTED this 14th day of November, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Backup 5

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Backup

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Backup-1

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Backup-b











